
AGENDA 

Regional Transportation Council 
Thursday, February 11, 2016 

North Central Texas Council of Governments 

 1:00 pm Full RTC Business Agenda 
(NCTCOG Guest Secured Wireless Connection Password:  rangers!) 

1:00 – 1:05 1. Approval of January 14 and January 20, 2016, Minutes
 Action   Possible Action   Information Minutes:  5 
Presenter: Mark Riley, RTC Chair
Item Summary: Approval of the January 14 and January 20, 2016, minutes

contained in Reference Item 1.1 and Reference Item 1.2 will be 
requested. 

Background: N/A 

1:05 – 1:05 2. Consent Agenda
 Action   Possible Action   Information Minutes:  0 

2.1. Unified Planning Work Program Modifications 
Presenter:  Dan Kessler, NCTCOG 
Item Summary: Regional Transportation Council approval of modifications 

to the FY2016 and FY2017 Unified Planning Work 
Program (UPWP) will be requested. 

Background:  The Unified Planning Work Program is required by federal 
and State transportation planning regulations and 
provides a summary of the transportation and 
transportation-related air quality planning tasks to be 
conducted by Metropolitan Planning Organization staff. 
The FY2016 and FY2017 UPWP identifies the activities to 
be carried out between October 1, 2015, and  
September 30, 2017. Amendments to this document are 
being proposed to reflect project modifications and 
funding adjustments. The proposed amendments have 
been presented to the public through the January 7, 12, 
and 13, 2016, public meetings and are also included as 
Reference Item 2.1.1. The Surface Transportation 
Technical Committee has recommended RTC approval. 
Additional information is provided in Electronic Item 2.1.2. 

1:05 – 1:20 3. Orientation to Agenda/Director of Transportation Report
  Action   Possible Action   Information Minutes: 15 
Presenter:  Michael Morris, NCTCOG

1. Introduction of Naval Air Station Fort Worth Joint Reserve Base Captain
Mike Steffen

2. Mesquite Transit Update (Electronic Item 3.1)
3. Texoma Area Paratransit System Update
4. Earth Day 2016:  Regional Toll Revenue/North Texas Tollway Authority

Thank You



5. January Public Meeting Minutes (Electronic Item 3.2) 
6. February Public Meeting Notice (Electronic Item 3.3) 
7. Mobility Matters (Handout) 
8. Air Quality State Implementation Plan (Electronic Item 3.4) 
9. Air Quality Funding Opportunities for Vehicles (Electronic Item 3.5) 

10. Dallas-Fort Worth Clean Cities Outstanding Recognition and Annual Report 
(Electronic Item 3.6) 

11. Recent Correspondence (Electronic Item 3.7) 
12. Recent News Articles (Electronic Item 3.8) 
13. Recent Press Releases (Electronic Item 3.9) 
14. Transportation Partners Progress Reports 

 
1:20 – 1:30   4. Proposed Policy for Possible Employer Location 

  Action   Possible Action   Information Minutes: 10 
Presenter:  Michael Morris, NCTCOG 
Item Summary:  At the January 14, 2016, Regional Transportation Council (RTC) 

meeting, staff proposed a policy for RTC consideration 
regarding how the Council may wish to consider requests for 
infrastructure assistance associated with the location of new 
employers to the Dallas-Fort Worth region. This item came at 
the request of Councilmember Sandy Greyson. RTC members 
determined that additional time was needed to consider how to 
handle such requests. 

Background:  In October 2015, the RTC was asked to approve a funding 
request for infrastructure needed to attract/retain a potential 
major employer in a specific location in the region. At the 
meeting, RTC members expressed a desire to develop a policy 
for handling such requests fairly in the future to ensure that all 
interested localities have an equitable chance to participate. To 
this end, at the January 2016 RTC meeting, staff proposed a 
two-step process. Initially, after a request is received, an item is 
posted on the RTC agenda declaring that an employer is 
considering a relocation to Dallas-Fort Worth and that 
infrastructure has been requested by the potentially affected 
entity. This notification is intended to level the playing field and 
allow other entities to participate in the process. Then, the actual 
funding request will be brought back to the RTC for action. In 
most cases, the provision of funding for transportation 
improvements will be contingent upon the location being chosen 
(i.e., if the location is not chosen, the funding would not be 
needed for transportation improvements). Reference Item 4 
contains the proposed RTC policy to assist local governments in 
attracting large employers (This is unchanged from last month 
and would need to be developed further if the RTC is 
interested). Significant discussion occurred at the January 2016 
RTC meeting with members asking staff to bring the item back 
this month for further consideration. One possible solution would 
be to eliminate the first step and not have a policy. The RTC 
would simply respond to the step two request and confirm its 
intent based on the merits of the transportation 
recommendation.  



1:30 – 1:50   5. Mobility 2040 and Transportation Conformity 
  Action   Possible Action   Information Minutes: 20 
Presenters:  Chad McKeown and Chris Klaus, NCTCOG 
Item Summary:  Staff will provide an update on the development of  

Mobility 2040, the next long-range transportation plan for the 
region and the associated 2016 Transportation Conformity. Draft 
recommendations will be presented, including major roadway 
and transit corridors. Staff will also provide a review of the policy 
bundle initiative. In addition, staff will provide preliminary results 
of the air quality conformity analysis. 

Background:  One of the primary responsibilities of the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) is the development and maintenance of a 
metropolitan transportation plan (MTP). The last comprehensive 
update of the MTP occurred in 2011 with the adoption of 
Mobility 2035. Since then, Mobility 2035 has gone through two 
revisions: an update in 2013 and an amendment in 2014, along 
with two successful conformity determinations. Work has been 
completed throughout 2015 on the development of a new MTP, 
Mobility 2040. This plan reassesses existing recommendations 
and includes new demographics, financial forecasts, and 
planning initiatives. 
 
The Clean Air Act (CAA) requires MPOs to perform an air 
quality conformity determination when a new MTP is developed 
to ensure the multi-modal transportation system complies with 
applicable Motor Vehicle Emission Budgets (MVEB) established 
for the region. Per the CAA, staff has conducted the analysis for 
the required MVEB analysis year (2017), the MTP horizon year 
(2040), and two interim years (2027 and 2037), not more than 
10 years apart. 
 
Staff has initiated the formal public involvement process on the 
draft recommendations of Mobility 2040 and the associated 
transportation conformity. The draft MTP recommendations are 
summarized in Electronic Item 5.1, including the draft results of 
the conformity analysis, and the draft Mobility 2040 document is 
available for review at the link provided in Electronic Item 5.2. 
Staff will request RTC approval of Mobility 2040 in March 2016. 

 
1:50 – 2:00   6. Cotton Belt Corridor Policy 

  Action   Possible Action   Information Minutes: 10 
Presenter:  Michael Morris, NCTCOG 
Item Summary:  Staff will present the draft Regional Transportation Council 

(RTC) Policy Position on Transit Implementation in the Cotton 
Belt Corridor. 

Background:  At its December 10, 2015, meeting, the RTC requested public 
input on recommendations in the Cotton Belt Corridor. Public 
comments were presented at the January 14, 2016, RTC 
meeting, as well as a draft policy regarding transit service in the 
Cotton Belt Corridor. A copy of the policy is provided in 
Electronic Item 6. It is unchanged from last month's meeting. 



Staff is requesting members provide possible amendments to 
the policy so it can be approved with Mobility 2040 at the  
March 10, 2016, meeting.  

 

2:00 – 2:10   7. Federal Legislative Update 
  Action   Possible Action   Information Minutes: 10 
Presenter:  Amanda Wilson, NCTCOG 
Item Summary:  The Regional Transportation Council will be provided with 

information on the new long-term transportation bill, the Fixing 
America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act.  

Background:  The FAST Act was approved by Congress and signed by the 
President on December 4, 2015. The FAST Act replaces the 
Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) Act 
and provides five years of authorization and funding for federal 
highway and transit programs. A summary of the bill is provided 
in Electronic Item 7. Congress had been working to approve a 
new surface transportation bill since MAP-21 expired on 
September 30, 2014, and was continuing on multiple 
extensions.  

 

2:10 – 2:20   8. Manages Lanes Communication Workshop Update 
  Action   Possible Action   Information Minutes: 10 
Presenter:  Amanda Wilson, NCTCOG 
Item Summary:  An overview of the Managed Lanes Communication Workshop 

will be presented. Staff will outline a path forward to improve the 
understanding and purpose of managed lanes in the region.  

Background:  A Managed Lanes Communication Workshop took place prior to 
the January 14, 2016, Regional Transportation Council meeting. 
The agenda and presentation is provided in Electronic Item 8. 

 

2:20 – 2:30   9. Update Regarding the Texas Department of Transportation Congestion 
Relief Program 
  Action   Possible Action   Information Minutes: 10 
Presenters:  Michael Morris and Christie Gotti, NCTCOG 
Item Summary:  Staff will update the Regional Transportation Council (RTC) 

regarding the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) 
Congestion Relief partnership with the RTC. 

Background:  Last month, TxDOT indicated that statewide funding of 
approximately $1 billion - $1.3 billion was available for 
partnerships with metropolitan areas of the State for congestion 
projects. At the Texas Transportation Commission (TTC) 
meeting on January 28, 2016, the final dollar amount of  
$1.3 billion was confirmed. The Dallas-Fort Worth region’s share 
of the total funding is $163.8 million for the western subregion 
and $364 million for the eastern subregion. Through this agenda 
item, staff will brief the RTC on changes to specific projects 
resulting from the larger dollar amount. Any adjustments to the 
region's east/west equity will be addressed during the March 
RTC meeting, when the quarterly east/west equity report is 
presented. TxDOT’s final approval date is scheduled for 
February 25, 2016. Electronic Item 9 provides additional details 
about the partnership and the proposed projects. 



2:30 – 2:40 10. 2017-2020 Transportation Improvement Program Development Draft 
Listings  
  Action   Possible Action   Information Minutes: 10 
Presenter:  Adam Beckom, NCTCOG 
Item Summary:  Staff will brief the Council on the 2017-2020 Transportation 

Improvement Program (TIP) development process and present 
the draft project listings. 

Background:  A new TIP is developed every two years through a cooperative 
effort among the North Central Texas Council of Governments 
(NCTCOG), the Texas Department of Transportation, local 
governments, and transportation authorities. The TIP is a 
staged, multi-year listing of transportation projects with 
committed funding from federal, State, and local sources within 
the Dallas-Fort Worth metropolitan area. Electronic Item 10.1 
contains the draft project listings to be included in the  
2017-2020 TIP. Comments from local and transportation 
agencies are due to NCTCOG by February 12, 2016, in order 
for updated information to be included in the final listings being 
presented at public meetings in early March 2016. These listings 
were provided to Surface Transportation Technical Committee 
members on January 22, 2016, to initiate the review process. 
Additional details regarding the 2017-2020 TIP development 
effort are available in Electronic Item 10.2. 

 
2:40 – 2:50 11. Air Quality Freight Initiatives  

  Action   Possible Action   Information Minutes: 10 
Presenter:  Jeff Hathcock, NCTCOG 
Item Summary:  Staff will provide information regarding current air quality 

initiatives that are related to freight activities and provide an 
update on the new Texas Department of Transportation Freight 
Mobility Plan. 

Background:  Heavy-duty diesel vehicles contribute approximately 41 percent 
of all on-road nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions in the Dallas- 
Fort Worth ozone nonattainment area. The Regional 
Transportation Council has authorized staff to pursue a variety 
of activities that directly address emissions from this sector. The 
initiatives include SmartWay, idling restrictions, the Heavy-Duty 
Diesel Inspection and Maintenance Pilot program, and a new 
education and outreach program titled Saving Money and 
Reducing Truck Emissions. Through these initiatives, air quality 
will be improved through three of the seven air quality emphasis 
areas:  high-emitting vehicles, idling, and energy/fuel 
consumption. Finally, the new Texas Freight Mobility Plan was 
recently approved by the Texas Transportation Commission and 
will provide a blueprint for future economic growth by 
strengthening freight mobility throughout the State. Electronic 
Item 11 provides additional details. 

 
  



2:50 – 3:00 12. Lawsuits Against Volkswagen Group of America, Inc., Audi of  
America, LLC, and Porsche Cars North America 
  Action   Possible Action   Information Minutes: 10 
Presenters:  Chris Klaus and Ken Kirkpatrick, NCTCOG 
Item Summary:  Staff will highlight findings and activity related to emission test-

cheat devices installed in certain Volkswagen, Audi, and 
Porsche diesel vehicles. 

Background:  Late last year, certain 2.0 and 3.0 liter diesel engines in 
Volkswagen, Audi, and Porsche vehicle models were identified 
to have emissions test-cheat devices allowing tailpipe emissions 
up to 40 times the legal level of nitrogen oxides (NOX). In 
response to these findings, both the Texas Attorney General 
(AG) and the United States Department of Justice (DOJ) have 
separately filed lawsuits against the auto manufacturers. 
Elsewhere in Texas, Harris County filed a separate suit for 
actions related to Harris County. 
 
Electronic Item 12.1 is draft correspondence to the DOJ and 
Texas AG requesting, if any settlement funds are awarded as a 
result of the lawsuits against Volkswagen, Audi, and Porsche, 
these funds be dispersed to nonattainment regions for air quality 
projects and/or programs. At the March 10, 2016, Regional 
Transportation Council meeting, staff will request approval to 
transmit this correspondence to the DOJ and Texas AG. 
Additional information is provided in Electronic Item 12.2. 

 
 13. Progress Reports 

  Action   Possible Action   Information 
Item Summary:  Progress Reports are provided in the items below. 
 

 RTC Attendance (Reference Item 13.1) 

 STTC Minutes and Attendance (Electronic Item 13.2) 

 Local Motion (Electronic Item 13.3) 
 

 14. Other Business (Old or New):  This item provides an opportunity for members 
to bring items of interest before the group. 
 

 15. Future Agenda Items:  This item provides an opportunity for members to bring 
items of future interest before the Council. 
 

 16. Next Meeting:  The next meeting of the Regional Transportation Council is 
scheduled for 1:00 pm, Thursday, March 10, 2016, at the North Central Texas 
Council of Governments.   

 



MINUTES 
 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COUNCIL 
January 14, 2016 

 
The Regional Transportation Council (RTC) met on Thursday, January 14, 2016, at 1 pm in the 
Transportation Council Room of the North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG). 
The following members or representatives were present:  Monica R. Alonzo, Bruce Arfsten, 
Douglas Athas, Brian Barth, Carol Bush, Elba Garcia (representing Mike Cantrell), Rudy 
Durham, Andy Eads, Charles Emery, Gary Fickes, Robert Franke, Sandy Greyson, Mojy 
Haddad, Roger Harmon, Clay Jenkins, Ron Jensen, Jungus Jordan, Stephen Lindsey, Brian 
Loughmiller, John Horn (representing David Magness), Scott Mahaffey, Matthew Marchant, 
Maher Maso, Cary Moon, Stan Pickett, Mark Riley, Kevin Roden, Amir Rupani, Kelly Selman, 
Gary Slagel, Lissa Smith, Mike Taylor, Stephen Terrell, Oscar Trevino, William Velasco II, 
Oscar Ward, Bernice J. Washington, Duncan Webb, Andy Nguyen (representing Glen Whitley), 
Kathryn Wilemon, W. Jeff Williams, Erik Wilson, and Ann Zadeh (representing Zim 
Zimmerman).  
 
Others present at the meeting were:  Vickie Alexander, Gustavo Baez, Melissa Baker, Arturo 
Ballesteros, Berrien Barks, Jay Barksdale, Carli Baylor, Bryan Beck, Natalie Bettger, Keith 
Bilbrey, Brandi Bird, Alberta Blair, David Boski, Cal Bostwick, Shauna Bowman, Kristina 
Brevard, Tanya Brooks, Bob Brown, Jason Brown, Ron Brown, Loyl Bussell, David Cain, Marrk 
Callier, Jack Carr, Angie Carson, Sarah Chadderdon, Michael Copeland, John Cordary, Michael 
Coyle, Mike Curtis, Clarence Daugherty, Ruben Delgado, Gordon Dickson, Kim Diederich, Jerry 
Dittman, Mike Eastland, Chad Edwards, Traci Enna, Brittney Farr, Kevin Feldt, Aaron Flint, Joel 
Flint, Keineth Fuller, Matthew Geske, Bob Golden, Philip Haigh, Phillip Hanley, Dan Harbeke, 
Linda Harper Brown, Tony Hartzel, Jeff Hathcolck, Tommy Henderson, Edgar Hernandez, 
Rebekah Hernandez, Jesse Herrera, Mark Hilderbrand, Greg Janes, Sholeh Karimi, Travis 
Kelly, Dan Kessler, Ken Kirkpatrick, Rachel Knapp, Paul Knippel, Whitney Laning, Brian Lee, 
April Leger, Eron Linn, Sonny Loper, Paul Luedtke, Barbara Maley, Mickey Marlow, Steve 
McCullough, Adam McGough, James McLane, Cesar Molina, Amy Moore, Erin Moore, Michael 
Morris, Bailey Muller, Ron Natinsky, Jeff Neal, Mark Nelson, Markus Neubauer, Emily 
Nicholson, James Paris, Allix Philbrick, John Polster, James Powell, Vercie Pruitt-Jenkins, Chris 
Reed, Molly Rendon, Milton Richter, Bill Riley, Carrie Rogers, Kyle Roy, Greg Royster, Moosa 
Saghian, Steve Salin, Russell Schaffner, Randy Skinner, Chelsey Smith, Rick Stopfer, Jahnae 
Stout, Neil Strassman, Dean Stuller, Gerald Sturdivant, Vic Suhm, Blanco Torres, Francisco 
Torres, Don Treude, Lauren Trimble, Kevin Tubb, Frank Turner, Victor Vandergriff, Dan Vedral, 
Leslie Wade, Mitzi Ward, Karla Weaver, Joy Weist, Kendall Wendling, Devin Wenske, Sandy 
Wesch, Elizabeth Whitaker, Amanda Wilson, Brian Wilson, Jeff Wilt, and Mykol Woodruff.  
 
1. Approval December 10, 2015, Minutes:  The minutes of the December 10, 2015, meeting 

provided in Reference Item 1 were approved as amended. Monica Alonzo (M); Charles 
Emery (S). The motion passed unanimously.  
 

2. Consent Agenda:  The following item was included on the Consent Agenda.  
 

2.1. Transportation Improvement Program Modifications:  A motion was made to approve 
February 2016 revisions to the 2015-2018 Transportation Improvement Program 
provided as Reference Item 2.1.1 administrative amendments from the November 
2015 cycle were provided for information in Electronic Item 2.1.2.  
 

Oscar Ward (M); Lissa Smith (S). The motion passed unanimously.  

REFERENCE ITEM 1.1



3. Orientation to Agenda/Director of Transportation Report:  Kelly Selman discussed the 
December 26, 2015, storm damage along SH 78 in Collin County through the George 
Bush/IH 30 Interchange in Garland. He commended the cities and counties for their efforts 
following the storm. Michael Morris noted the passing of Chris Anderson, Transportation 
Department Program Manager who had worked at the North Central Texas Council of 
Governments for the past seven years. He reminded members of the specially called 
Regional Transportation Council (RTC) meeting scheduled for January 20, 2016. Mr. Morris 
also noted the new Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Executive Director, James 
Bass. Information regarding the Smart City Challenge funding opportunity was provided in 
Electronic Item 3.1, air quality funding opportunities for vehicles were provided in Electronic 
Item 3.2, and information about the City Efficiency Leadership Council meeting was 
provided in Electronic Item 3.3. December public meeting minutes were provided in 
Electronic Item 3.4, and the January public meeting notice was provided in Electronic  
Item 3.5. A fact sheet on the AirCheckTexas program was provided in Electronic  
Item 3.6. Recent correspondence was provided in Electronic Item 3.7, recent news articles 
in Electronic Item 3.8, and recent press releases in Electronic Item 3.9. Transportation 
partner progress reports were provided at the meeting.  
 

4. New Texas Department of Transportation Congestion Relief Program:  Michael Morris 
introduced a proposed partnership between the Texas Department of Transportation 
(TxDOT)/Texas Transportation Commission (TTC) and the Regional Transportation Council 
(RTC). Details were provided in Reference Item 4. The Governor's office is exploring an 
initiative focused on congestion relief projects. TxDOT is anticipated to allocate $1.0 billion 
to $1.3 billion statewide for projects that have early construction timeframes. Funding is only 
available in Houston, Austin, San Antonio, Dallas, and Fort Worth. TTC support is 
anticipated on January 28, 2016, for action in the February timeframe. The effort creates a 
funding partnership to implement priority projects in the east and the west that will move 
forward as a congestion relief package. Mr. Morris noted that performance measures are 
being provided along with the proposed projects, and reviewed examples of congestion on 
Lowest Stemmons in Reference Item 4.2 and Reference Item 4.3, provided at the meeting. 
If approved, both TxDOT and the RTC will commit funding for the proposed projects. TxDOT 
funding will be suballocated to the east and west and totals were highlighted at both the  
$1.0 billion and $1.3 billion levels. Proposed projects in the western subregion are staged 
projects that are not fully funded. These include the SH 121/SH 360 Interchange, SH 199, 
and IH 820 (from SH 121 to Randol Mill). In the eastern subregion, proposed projects 
include the Southern Gateway (IH 35E and US 67) and Lowest Stemmons (IH 35E). He 
noted supplemental projects that will be discussed in Agenda Item 6:  IH 635E and US 75. 
Projects in the western subregion were presented in detail. The first project, the SH 121/ 
SH 360 Interchange, is a $60 million project as part of the DFW Connector. The second 
project is on SH 199. The project cost is approximately $56.5 million to complete some of 
the previous stages north of IH 820. The final project, IH 820, extends from SH 121 back 
towards IH 30. The project will be scaled to meet funding at a cost of approximately  
$111 million or up to $137 million if the upper range of funding is allocated. Projects in the 
eastern subregion were also presented in more detail. For the Southern Gateway, the 
project is approximately $655 million. Revenue sources were reviewed, which include 
approximately two-thirds of the funding from TxDOT and approximately $243 million from 
the RTC. The project includes a deck park as a way to create bicycle and pedestrian activity 
connecting the Dallas Zoo to the Trinity River. A companion project, US 67 south of IH 20 
will proceed as an independent project. The second project is Lowest Stemmons from IH 30 
to north of Oak Lawn. The total project cost is approximately $100 million. Revenue of  
$20 million in congestion relief funding is proposed, with up to $100 million proposed if the 

2



higher allocation of funding is received. Proposition 1 funds will be used to supplement 
revenue depending on the total allocation of congestion relief funds. If approved by the RTC, 
elected officials, district engineers, and RTC staff will represent the region at the January 28, 
2016, Texas Transportation Commission meeting to support and encourage the program for 
TTC approval in February. Mr. Morris highlighted a list of policy questions that should be 
asked of the Commission at the appropriate time. Details were provided in Reference  
Item 4.1, provided at the meeting. The first potential concept is that the use of tolling should 
be scaled back in proportion to the Legislature's ability to identify revenue to meet the 
congestion funding needs of metropolitan areas. Another potential concept is that maybe 
tolls should only be used in large metropolitan areas trying to address rapid population 
growth. He also discussed the last potential concept, noting the continuing need for tolled 
managed lane projects that are being built in phases that need funding in order to be 
completed. There will need to be future conversation with the Commission on how to finish 
projects such as Midtown Express/SH 183 and IH 35E Express. It was suggested that this 
was not the time to raise the issues in order to keep the congestion relief program 
straightforward. Andy Eads noted he was supportive of the proposed projects. He asked if 
staff believed this would be an annual program. Mr. Morris noted the Governor has 
committed to focusing on congestion, but that he cannot speak for the frequency of the 
program. A motion was made to approve the proposed projects for the Texas Department of 
Transportation Congestion Relief Program in Reference Item 4. Jungus Jordan (M); Rob 
Franke (S). The motion passed unanimously. 
 

5. Mobility 2040:  Chad McKeown provided an update on the development of Mobility 2040, 
the region's next long-range transportation plan. The seven guiding principles were 
highlighted, with focus on the reevaluation of toll facility recommendations. Roadway 
recommendations in Mobility 2040 are reflective of the reevaluation of toll facilities in 
proportion to the amount of new revenue coming from the State. He also noted the 
reassessment of regional rail recommendations in relation to high-intensity bus options that 
was detailed at previous meetings. Mr. McKeown highlighted Mobility 2040 prioritization and 
expenditures, noting that the total expenditures for Mobility 2040 had been updated since 
the last meeting. The expenditures now total $126.6 billion, which is higher due to the 
inclusion of the Dallas-Fort Worth portion of the high-speed rail corridor between Dallas and 
Houston. Although the project is privately funded, it must be accounted for in the Plan. 
Recommendations for Mobility 2040 were reviewed. The Regional Veloweb was highlighted, 
which includes over 500 miles of existing and funded projects with an additional 1,291 miles 
of network trails. For transit recommendations, no changes have been made since 
presented in December. The existing rail system, proposed extensions to the rail system, 
and corridors identified for high-intensity bus lines were highlighted. Mr. McKeown noted 
discussion at the December 10 meeting regarding the Cotton Belt corridor and the request 
for public feedback on bus or rail options, as well as the need for the seamless connections 
policy between TEX Rail west of the Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport and the Cotton 
Belt corridor east of the Airport. Feedback to date was provided in Electronic Item 3.4. 
Support was expressed for continuing the seamless connections policy and comments 
showed local support for pursuing a rail-first solution in the Cotton Belt corridor. Cotton Belt 
corridor proposed recommendations include a regional rail line from DFW International 
Airport to Plano with one-seat ride connectivity to TEX Rail. The corridor will be expedited to 
be included in the "10-Year Plan." Also included will be the RTC policy position on transit 
implementation, as well as other information on expediting the Cotton Belt. A draft policy 
was provided in Electronic Item 5.3. Mr. McKeown highlighted major roadway 
recommendations. Similar to transit, roadway recommendations remained unchanged since 
the December 2015 meeting. Recommendations include new or additional freeway capacity, 

3



managed lane capacity, toll road capacity, and capacity maintenance. General consensus 
was highlighted for some of the highest priority roadways including the Southern Gateway, 
LBJ East, and US 75. Details were provided in Electronic Item 5.1. Mobility 2040 also 
includes funded improvements to major arterials highlighted in the presentation and detailed 
in Electronic Item 5.2, as well as illustrative major corridors for future evaluation. Planning is 
an ongoing process and the illustrative map identifies areas of transportation need that are 
not included in the financially constrained portion of the Plan. Areas in Collin County and 
western Tarrant County were highlighted as areas of growth that are lacking needed 
infrastructure. Staff is working directly with agencies in those areas on studies that could 
form the basis of recommendations for future Mobility Plans. Related to Mobility 2040 is air 
quality conformity. Preliminary results for 2017 indicate that nitrogen oxides and volatile 
organic compounds results are below the allowable budgets. Results for the remaining 
analysis years to be included in Mobility 2040 will be provided at future meetings. Mr. 
McKeown reviewed the Mobility 2040 development schedule noting that RTC action is 
anticipated in March 2016. A draft version of the Mobility Plan was provided in Electronic 
Item 5.2 and also available at www.nctcog.org/mobility2040. Michael Morris discussed the 
draft RTC Policy Position on Transit Implementation in the Cotton Belt Corridor, provided in 
Electronic Item 5.3. At the December 10, 2015, RTC meeting, there was discussion 
regarding options to proceed if rail is not expedited in the Cotton Belt corridor. Presentations 
were made at December 2015 and January 2016 public meetings. The policy recommends 
regional rail in the Mobility Plan, as well as the "10-Year Plan." It also requests 
communication with Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART) regarding regional rail. In addition, if 
rail cannot be expedited, the policy proposes the review of options for potential high-
intensity bus service as an early implementation phase. This policy is proposed for approval 
as a stand-alone policy, as well as an appendix in Mobility 2040. Members were encouraged 
to review the draft policy for discussion at future meetings. Bruce Arfsten reiterated the 
positions of the Cities of Addison and Richardson in support of rail and in opposition of bus 
rapid transit as part of the Cotton Belt. He expressed frustration that Addison is an original 
DART member city that does not yet have rail. He also discussed full support from the 
Canyon Creek Homeowners Association in Richardson for rail-based service on the Cotton 
Belt. He asked about the statement in the policy for rail service in the next four years. Mr. 
Morris discussed what is considered a reasonable time frame for DART to expedite rail in 
the corridor. DART has approved rail funding in its 2035 financial plan. However, the region 
is interested in innovative ways to advance rail prior to 2035. Addison has requested RTC 
assistance to develop an innovative approach for regional rail, which was presented to 
DART. DART is reviewing and is interested. Staff is interested in hearing feedback from 
DART about how much time it needs to determine if it can expedite rail before 2035. Gary 
Slagel noted that the DART Board has approved 2035 for the Cotton Belt corridor. To date, 
the Board has not received feedback from staff about a timeframe to expedite rail. It is 
anticipated to be a topic of discussion at a future Board retreat. Mr. Morris noted that the 
draft policy indicates there will be rail in the future and rail in the "10-Year Plan." It also 
addresses steps forward if rail cannot be expedited. Staff will gather comments about the 
draft policy over the next few weeks. Mr. Arfsten also expressed concern that if bus rapid 
transit becomes the alternative, it will be placed on the back burner. Mr. Morris noted that 
staff has the same concern and the draft policy includes specific questions of DART to that 
point. Matthew Marchant thanked staff for its work on the policy, noting it was a fair 
rendering of his intent. He discussed how citizens are unfamiliar with bus raid transit. His 
thought is instead of waiting until 2040 for something that might not come, the region should 
be ready to move forward with what is possible. He noted much of the transit ridership in the 
region comes from buses, and the people who actually use the services will likely use 
whatever system is available and makes their commute shorter. He added if rail can be 

4

http://www.nctcog.org/mobility2040


expedited over the next 2-3 years, he is supportive and is simply being practical about 
options to connect the east to the west for everyone in the corridor. Sandy Greyson 
expressed appreciation to Mr. Marchant and staff for working on the draft policy. Mike Taylor 
asked if the point is to develop a ridership base that would ultimately migrate to the rail. Mr. 
Morris noted light rail has a proven ability to draw economic development opportunities. 
Regional rail that looks like light rail is hoped to have a similar impact. The interest is in rail 
as a transportation mode to provide safer and more reliable transportation, but also as an 
option to encourage anticipated population growth to locate more efficiently in the region by 
providing choice. 
 

6. Eastern Subregion Supplemental Projects:  Michael Morris presented eastern subregion 
supplement projects not included in but associated with the proposed Congestion Relief 
initiative by the Governor. Details were provided in Reference Item 6. The first project,  
LBJ East includes tolled managed lanes on IH 635 from US 75 to Miller and gas tax 
supported lanes from Miller to IH 30. Also included is the advancement of the noise walls 
from east of Greenville Avenue to IH 30 and the IH 30 at IH 635 Interchange. The total 
anticipated project cost is $1.3 billion. Revenue for the project includes approximately  
$500 million in toll bonds and $500 million-$800 million in future Proposition 7 funds. The 
noise wall portion of the project is approximately $31 million funded with Regional Toll 
Revenue savings from the LBJ backstop on the LBJ Express project. The noise walls have 
the dual benefit of reducing noise once the project is open, but also while the LBJ East 
project is under construction. The interchange improvement on IH 635 at Skillman/Audelia is 
a $65 million project. Expected revenue sources include approximately $60.6 million of 
Proposition 1 and $4.4 million of Category 12 funds (as a result of the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization Revolver swap). The suggestion is that all projects proceed together. Mr. 
Morris also highlighted the proposed US 75 project, Phase 1. The proposal is to use the 
shoulders during the peak period from IH 635 to the north, similar to the SH 161 pilot 
project. The project cost is approximately $40 million, proposed for funding with Surface 
Transportation Program-Metropolitan Mobility dollars. In addition to the use of shoulders 
during the peak periods, it is proposed that the shoulders also be used for the management 
of incidents or accidents. He noted that action was requested for initial approval to move 
forward on IH 635 and US 75. This action will allow staff to move ahead to include the 
projects in the Transportation Improvement Program and other appropriate documents. 
Additional action may be needed in the future to reaffirm the Regional Transportation 
Council's (RTC's) position related to Mobility 2040. Clay Jenkins discussed the RTC tolled 
managed lane policies related to the 2+ discount. He noted that he was in support of this 
item, but wanted the record to reflect that supporting the item in no way expresses support 
for removing the subsidy currently paid by the RTC. Mr. Morris discussed the subsidy being 
paid for 2+ users during the peak period. He noted that at this time, staff is suggesting the 
RTC subsidy be extended past the June 2016 deadline. Duncan Webb noted he believed 
Proposition 7 was not eligible on the LBJ East project. Mr. Morris discussed the usage of 
Proposition 7, noting staff was comfortable with the proposal on IH 635 and believed it was 
eligible and that the project could be split into multiple pieces or contracts. A motion was 
made to approve putting into motion the ability to proceed with IH 635 east of US 75 and  
US 75 north of IH 635. Details were provided in Reference Item 6. Lissa Smith (M); Duncan 
Webb (S). The motion passed unanimously.  
 

7. Proposed Policy for Possible Employer Location and Announcement of a Specific 
Request in Irving:  Michael Morris discussed a proposed policy regarding how the Regional 
Transportation Council (RTC) may wish to consider requests for infrastructure assistance 
associated with the location of new employers to the Dallas-Fort Worth region. At the 

5



October 8, 2015, RTC meeting, Sandy Greyson expressed a desire to develop a policy to 
handle future requests to approve funding for infrastructure needed to attract/retain a 
potential major employer at a specific location in the region. A copy of the draft policy was 
provided in Reference Item 7. The policy requires that an item be posted on the RTC 
agenda declaring an employer is considering a relocation to the Dallas-Fort Worth region 
and that infrastructure has been requested. The policy would not apply to companies 
wishing to relocate within the region. In addition, the actual funding request would be 
brought back to the RTC for action. Mr. Morris noted he believed the policy needed 
additional refinement and requested members provide comments to staff. He proposed no 
action be taken at the meeting to allow time for members to review the proposed policy. In 
addition to introduction of the policy, the agenda item also serves to inform the RTC that a 
request from the City of Irving has been received for consideration of funding for a rail 
station and roadway improvements related to the potential location of a large employer. 
Sandy Greyson noted she appreciated the responsiveness of staff and was happy with the 
way the policy was coming together. She asked if the transportation component for which 
funding is requested should be regionally significant versus site specific. Mr. Morris noted 
that it may be difficult to know the details of the request in the beginning. Lissa Smith 
discussed the competitive nature of a large employer locating in the region. Cities within the 
region compete against each other, and in most instances the employer is not known or the 
cities must follow or honor nondisclosure agreements. She noted she would have an issue 
with not knowing the name of the employer requesting improvements. Bernice Washington 
noted she was concerned about the friction that could come from entities competing for 
large employers to locate in the region. Roger Harmon discussed the RTC's primary motive 
of transportation and noted he would hate to see the competitiveness of economic 
development cause friction between members. Rob Franke discussed how businesses 
determine where they will locate and the challenge to RTC. He suggested that perhaps the 
RTC does not become involved until a location has already been determined. Elba Garcia 
noted it was a great opportunity to review this policy. Mr. Morris asked that members provide 
comments to him over the next few weeks and that a future item will be placed on the 
agenda. A motion was made to take no action on the proposed draft RTC policy that assists 
local governments in attracting large employers, provided in Reference Item 7. Oscar 
Trevino (M); Kathryn Wilemon (S). The motion passed unanimously.  
 

8. Managed Lane Auto-Occupancy Detection Equipment Procurement:  Ken Kirkpatrick 
discussed efforts to procure technology to automatically detect vehicle occupancy in 
managed-lane corridors. Over the past year, the Texas Department of Transportation 
(TxDOT) and Regional Transportation Council (RTC) staffs have been working to procure 
the technology. The RTC's Tolled Managed Lane Policies provide for a discount for high-
occupancy vehicles of 50 percent during the peak periods for 2+ occupancy at this time. The 
current policy is manually enforced, but does provide for advanced technology usage over 
time to create a more automated, seamless process for the user and a safer, more cost 
efficient option for enforcement. TxDOT has cancelled its procurement as of November 2015 
with RTC staff concurrence. No award was made, but it is believed that technology exists to 
meet the RTC policy. TxDOT is recommending that the procurement be refined and 
reissued based on what has been learned over the past six months and are requesting  
RTC staff take the lead on the procurement with TxDOT support. He noted this is primarily 
an issue being raised in the Dallas-Fort Worth region as a result of its managed lane 
system. RTC staff believes it can increase the competition, potentially lower the cost, and 
also believe this issue exists across several MPOs in the nation and might gain national 
interest if the procurement is structured appropriately. Once the formal request from TxDOT 

6



for RTC staff to take the lead has been received, the procurement will be refined and 
reissued. Staff will continue to provide updates to members.  
 

9. Multimodal/Intermodal/High-Speed Rail/Freight Subcommittee Follow-Up:  Postponed 
from the December 10, 2015, Meeting:  Rob Franke, Chair of the Regional Transportation 
Council (RTC) Multimodal/Intermodal/High-Speed Rail/Freight Subcommittee provided an 
overview of the Subcommittee meeting held on December 10, 2015. He discussed the 
three-station concept policy, the one-seat ride policy, and the status of the Houston to Dallas 
high-speed rail project. He noted that Michael Morris had met with United States Department 
of Transportation Secretary Foxx and positive feedback was received. In addition, he noted 
some rural areas in the region are concerned about high-speed rail and want to be heard. 
Ellis County has approved a committee to gather input from the rural areas. He noted staff 
will be reaching out to the Ellis County committee to work together with the Subcommittee to 
ensure information is shared. He also welcomed Ellis County Judge Carol Bush to become 
a member of the Subcommittee to ensure more rural areas in the region are represented. 
Michael Morris discussed the meeting with Secretary Foxx and Mayor Rawlings, as well as 
recent conversations with Texas Central Partners regarding the Dallas to Houston high-
speed rail project. He noted efforts will be made to reach out to the citizens of Ellis County to 
ensure their concerns are fully understood, as well as the sensitivities of all parts of the 
region. In addition, Michael Morris and Mayor Betsy Price met with the Governor to talk 
about the importance of high-speed rail. He noted many conversations are occurring and the 
effort is moving forward positively. Design money has been received that helps with Grand 
Prairie, Arlington, Dallas, Irving, and Fort Worth. The agreements are in Austin and once 
signed, more site-specific planning can begin. Matthew Marchant asked about the timeframe 
for the Dallas to Houston piece. Mr. Morris noted the region is under the assumption the 
private sector is going to pull together its piece. There is a conversation about how a request 
for information will be issued. At this time, efforts are to focus on a revenue source that does 
not compete with other projects.  
 

10. Progress Reports:  Regional Transportation Council attendance was provided in 
Reference Item 10.1, Surface Transportation Technical Committee meeting minutes and 
attendance was provided in Electronic Item 10.2., and the current Local Motion was 
provided in Electronic Item 10.3.  
 

11. Other Business (Old or New):  There was no discussion on this item.  
 

12. Future Agenda Items:  There was no discussion on this item.  
 

13. Next Meeting:  The next meeting of the Regional Transportation Council is scheduled for 
Thursday, February 11, 2016, 1:00 pm, at the North Central Texas Council of Governments.  
 

The meeting adjourned at 2:40 pm.  

7



MINUTES 
 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COUNCIL 
January 20, 2016 

 
The Regional Transportation Council (RTC) met on Thursday, January 20, 2016, at 2 pm in the 
Transportation Council Room of the North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG). 
The following members or representatives were present:  Bruce Arfsten, Brian Barth, Rudy 
Durham, Charles Emery, Gary Fickes, Robert Franke, Roger Harmon, Clay Jenkins, Greg 
Giessner (representing Ron Jensen), Jungus Jordan, Lee Kleinman, Stephen Lindsey, Tito 
Rodriguez (representing Scott Mahaffey), Cary Moon, Mark Riley, Greg Johnson, Amir Rupani, 
Kelly Selman, Gary Slagel, Lissa Smith, Mike Taylor, Stephen Terrell, Oscar Trevino, Oscar 
Ward, Duncan Webb, Glen Whitley, Kathryn Wilemon, Sheri Capehart (representing W. Jeff 
Williams), and Ann Zadeh (representing Zim Zimmerman).  
 
Others present at the meeting were:  Vickie Alexander, Berrien Barks, Randy Battey, Natalie 
Bettger, Brandi Bird, Kristina Brevard, Michael Bridges, Bob Brown, Chris Burkett, Sally Cain, 
Jack Carr, Angie Carson, Dave Carter, Jim Cline, John Cordary, Clarence Daugherty, Kim 
Diederich, Mike Eastland, Marshall Elizer, Lauren Freriks, Keinith Fuller, Chuy Gonazlez, 
Christie Gotti, Jerry Haddican, Wade Haffey, Heather Haney, Tony Hartzel, Tommy Henderson, 
Rebekah Hernandez, Mark Hilderbrand, Jodi Hodges, Karen Hunt, Air Hunter, Yagnesh 
Jarmarwala, Megan Kenney, Dan Kessler, Ken Kirkpatrick, Chris Klaus, Dan Lamers, Brian Lee, 
April Leger, Paul Luedtke, Stanford Lynch, Ricky Mackey, Barbara Maley, Wes McClure, Monte 
Mercer, Cliff Miller, Cesar Molina, Amy Moore, Susan Morgan, Michael Morris, Ron Natinsky, 
Jeff Neal, Markus Neubauer, Jen Newman, Andy Nguyen, Mickey Nowell, Todd Plesko, John 
Polster, James Powell, Vercie Pruitt-Jenkins, Stephen Ranft, Molly Rendon, Cristal Retana, 
Gary Roden, Steve Salin, Russell Schaffner, Lori Shelton, Cory Shipman, Walter Shumac, 
Randy Skinner, Gerald Sturdivant, Dan Vedral, Karla Weaver, Sandy Wesch, Marc Williams, 
Amanda Wilson, Jim Wilson, Bruce Wood, and Ed Wueste. 
 
1. Introduction:  Regional Transportation Council (RTC) Chair Mark Riley introduced 

Commissioner J. Bruce Bugg, Jr., from the Texas Transportation Commission (TTC). 
Michael Morris presented the RTC construction pin to Commissioner Bugg, Chuy Gonzalez, 
Office of the Governor, and Marc Williams, Interim Executive Director of the Texas 
Department of Transportation (TxDOT) as a representation of the partnership among TTC, 
TxDOT, the Governor's Office, and RTC. Mr. Morris thanked them each for taking the time 
to meet with the region.  
 

2. Presentation by Texas Department of Transportation:  Members of the Regional 
Transportation Council (RTC) members introduced themselves to Commissioner Bugg in 
order to show the diversity of elected officials and agencies that represent the region. 
Michael Morris welcomed Commissioner Bugg to the region and thanked him for presenting 
the congestion relief initiative from the Governor's Office and the Texas Transportation 
Commission (TTC).  
 
Commissioner Bugg introduced himself and thanked Chair Mark Riley for holding the special 
RTC meeting. He noted that it is a privilege to have been appointed to the Texas 
Transportation Commission by Governor Greg Abbott in February 2015. Since that time, the 
Commission has been working on the concept of congestion relief. One of the five tenants 
on which Governor Abbott ran for office was the need to improve funding for transportation 
infrastructure. Commissioner Bugg noted that he believed that citizens of Texas spoke loud 

REFERENCE ITEM 1.2



and clear in passing Proposition 7 by 83 percent. He complimented the RTC on how the 
region has worked together over the years to put transportation issues forward and noted 
the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) now has a focused Congestion Relief 
Initiative. Commissioner Bugg thanked Chuy Gonzalez, Office of the Governor, and various 
members from TxDOT for traveling with him to present to the metropolitan regions and 
provided an overview of the Congestion Relief Initiative. On September 23, 2015, Governor 
Abbott called on the Texas Transportation Commission to take on the congestion relief 
initiative to not only address congestion relief, but also address quality of life, economic 
development, and keeping Texas a vibrant state. The following day, Chairman Lewis and 
the TTC appointed him to lead the effort statewide. He noted that this is the first time a 
statewide strategic plan has been put together that has focused on one major initiative, 
congestion relief. In addition, he noted that this is not a one-and-done deal. This is a long-
term initiative that the Governor has asked the Commission to address. He noted this is not 
only from the Governor's office, but also the top 20 executives within TxDOT that have been 
in congestion relief task force meetings. He discussed the listening tour in the region and 
interest in hearing feedback from each of the five metropolitan areas of Austin, San Antonio, 
Dallas, Fort Worth, and Houston. He discussed the structure of the listening sessions in 
each area and the request that communities tell the Commission the location of its most 
congested areas. Commissioner Bugg noted that the origins of the Congestion Relief 
Initiative go back to something familiar to the region. A map was displayed of the Dallas- 
Fort Worth area in 1974, the year the interstate highway system was completed. In 1974, 
the State of Texas had a population of approximately 12 million. In comparison, a map of 
2015 was displayed with Texas currently having a population of 27.7 million. The density for 
each time period was highlighted. In February 2015, State demographers projected that in 
the 35 year period between 2015 and 2050, the population in the State of Texas will double 
from 27.7 million to 54 million. TxDOT put together a map, working with the State 
demographer's office that shows where the anticipated population will be in Texas. The 
location will drive planning considerations. Present day Dallas-Fort Worth and the projected 
Dallas-Fort Worth region in 2050 were highlighted. He noted that while others areas begin to 
grow, the primary population growth is anticipated to be concentrated in the five 
metropolitan areas targeted by the Congestion Relief Initiative. Two-thirds of Texans live in 
these five metropolitan areas. On average, congestion costs Texans $1,200 per year in 
addition to frustration, time wasted, and lost productivity. Current congestion, as well as 
future congestion is the reason for focusing on the five metropolitan areas. One of the things 
that makes this initiative possible is Proposition 7 being passed with an 83 percent approval 
rate, Proposition 1, and the ending of diversions bringing some firepower to bear on 
congestion relief. Along with these funding options, Representative Simmons also 
championed HB 20 which requires TxDOT to have performance measures on project 
selection. TxDOT staff believes the proposed efforts comply with the requirements of HB 20. 
Prior to the 84th Legislative Session, TxDOT had a budget of approximately $12 billion with 
two-thirds of the budget dedicated to maintaining and improving the existing infrastructure in 
the state highway system. TxDOT will continue to address safety, maintenance, 
connectivity, and freight/border infrastructure in addition to the focused congestion relief 
initiative. He noted that one of the efforts to focus on congestion that has a low investment 
and high reward is bringing technology into this phase to see how congestion and traffic flow 
can be improved with traffic management system improvements. Austin is being used as a 
beta test site and positive results have been observed. Next steps are for TxDOT to work 
with the districts and local communities to identify future project opportunities for congestion 
relief. He requested that areas submit their congested areas, and also projects that are 
ready for implementation but simply need funding to move them forward. He again 
emphasized that this initiative is not a one-and-done deal, but a long-term and well thought-

2



through effort. As mentioned, TxDOT is focused on the five metropolitan areas and will be 
meeting in Houston January 25-26. TxDOT executives will be working on the information to 
be presented in a workshop fashion to the Texas Transportation Commission on January 27 
where there will be discussion regarding what was learned on the listening tour. On  
January 28, the mayors and county judges from each of the five metropolitan areas have 
been invited to Austin to address the Commission at its meeting on January 28. He noted 
the importance of the Texas Transportation Commission hearing from representatives from 
the metropolitan regions. In February, the Commission will meet for its regular quarterly 
update of the Unified Transportation Program and will take a formal vote on the proposed 
Congestion Relief Initiative. He thanked members for the opportunity meet in the region.  
 

3. Response from the North Central Texas Council of Governments:  Michael Morris 
discussed proposed project approved by the RTC on January 14, 2016. He noted that 
Councilmember Lee Kleinman, would be representing the City of Dallas in Austin, along with 
Judge Clay Jenkins, Dallas County; Judge Glen Whitley, Tarrant County; and Mayor Betsy 
Price, City of Fort Worth at the January 28, 2016, Texas Transportation Commission (TTC) 
meeting. The region has been working closely with its Texas Department of Transportation 
(TxDOT) district engineers over the last 60 days to determine appropriate projects. The 
proposal includes no tolled projects. Mr. Morris thanked the Governor and Texas 
Department of Transportation for the opportunity to expedite congestion relief projects. The 
allocation will be between $1.0 billion and $1.3 billion. Early construction timeframes are 
needed and the program will only be available in Houston, Austin, San Antonio, Dallas, and 
Fort Worth. Commission discussion is anticipated on January 28, 2016, with action on 
February 25, 2016. Efforts will create a funding partnership to implement priority projects in 
the eastern and western subregions. Project performance measures will be provided as an 
example supporting HB 20 requirements. Mr. Morris discussed the proposed congestion 
relief projects in the western and eastern subregions. He noted the regions efforts to build a 
system, and the importance of expressing this concept to the Commission at the January 
meeting. In the western subregion, projects include the SH 121/SH 360 Interchange,  
SH 199, and IH 820 from SH 121 to Randol Mill. The three projects are staged, but due to 
lack of funds have not been completed. Securing congestion relief funding will allow for the 
creation of a system of improvements. The projects have individual benefits, as well as the 
benefit to complete the originally planned system. In the western subregion, projects include 
the Southern Gateway (IH 35E and US 67) and Lowest Stemmons (IH 35E). Mr. Morris 
reviewed western subregion projects in more detail. The first proposed project is the missing 
section of SH 121 at SH 360. It is a $60 million project and construction can begin in the 
summer of 2016 since the design build concessionaire is ready to proceed. The second 
project, SH 199, is a $56.5 million project that also improves the system and construction 
can begin in the summer of 2016. The last project is IH 820 from north of SH 121 to Randol 
Mill Road. The proposed project will be scoped to $111 million or $137 million if the upper 
range of funding is allocated. Construction on the project can begin in 2017. This is also a 
standalone improvement for which the completion of the system has other benefits. Mr. 
Morris also reviewed eastern subregion projects in more detail. On the first project,  
IH 35E/Southern Gateway, the RTC is contributing approximately $240 million to the project, 
which is anticipated to let in summer 2017. This amount does not include the $50 million for 
US 67 from IH 20 to the south. Kelly Selman is working on a specific approach for this 
section, so it will proceed using a different construction method. The base cost of the project 
is $655.54 million. The second project, Lowest Stemmons, is approximately $100 million. 
Potential revenue will be $20 million in congestion relief funding or up to $100 million if the 
higher amount is allocated by TxDOT. The project is expected to let in summer 2017. Many 
positive comments have been received from the public on completed projects such as  

3



SM Wright, the Horseshoe (IH 30/IH 35E), TxDOT CityMAP, the IH 30/SH 360 Interchange, 
and the US 377 Cresson Bypass. Comments were also received for projects that need 
additional funding such as comments made by Judge Clay Jenkins regarding the 
importance of Loop 9. He noted that no comments have been heard suggesting that the 
proposed projects approved by the RTC are not the appropriate projects for the initiative. He 
noted that the region is prepared to work with the district engineers to prepare the next 
group of potential projects for future funding opportunities. Mr. Morris noted that the 
proposed projects were presented at January public meetings as part of Mobility 2040 and 
initial RTC action was received on January 14, 2016. With support from the RTC, elected 
officials can present not only their opinion of the initiative but that of the RTC. He again 
expressed appreciation to Commissioner Bugg, TxDOT, and the Governor's Office for taking 
time to hold listening sessions in the region. Mr. Morris noted that he will be in Austin for 
both the workshop and the Commission meeting if there are questions with regard to the 
region's proposed projects. Questions and comments were requested. 
 
Rob Franke expressed appreciation for the Congestion Relief Initiative, specifically the 
formula allocation of funds which he believes allows the region to maintain priorities and 
good practices, without straining relationships. He encouraged the four RTC representatives 
to express the RTC's appreciation to the entire Commission for its formula allocation 
approach to the congestion relief funding. Oscar Ward also thanked Commissioner Bugg for 
attending and willingness to hear input from the region. He noted he supported the projects 
presented for congestion relief funding. In addition, he discussed frustration from the City of 
Irving regarding the Midtown Express/SH 183 project which is not eligible for funding 
because of its tolled components. He discussed various phases of the project, funding 
needed for completion, and asked how the State planned to provide funds to other 
congested projects in the region that are not eligible due to tolled components. 
Commissioner Bugg discussed funds from the 84th Legislative Session, including ending 
diversion, Proposition 1, and Proposition 7. He noted that these funding streams are not 
compatible for uses on projects with tolling elements. Mr. Morris noted that the point 
discussed by Mr. Ward was an important, but separate conversation. In the future, it will be 
important to bring questions to the Commission about other funding strategies. Clay Jenkins 
recapped comments from the January 19 listening session in the east. Comments received 
during the listening session included appreciation for CityMAP, support and alignment for 
the proposed projects, and the importance of looking at redevelopment as well as 
development when addressing congestion mitigation. Comments also included Loop 9 and 
its connection to the outer loop, IH 635, US 75, having comprehensive development 
agreements (CDAs) as a part of the toolbox, as well as discussion in opposition of CDAs. 
Additional comments also included ramp metering for IH 635, and the Southern Gateway, 
Lowest Stemmons, IH 30, and US 380 projects. He expressed appreciation for 
Commissioner Bugg coming to the region and noted that those who spoke about the 
projects advocated them moving forward. Glen Whitley also thanked Commissioner Bugg for 
visiting the region. He spoke about the listening session in the west and the projects 
presented by Brian Barth, as well as projects that are moving forward such as the SH 360/ 
IH 30 interchange, IH 820, and SH 360. He also discussed the area of congestion at the  
US 287/IH 820/IH 20 Interchange. In addition, he noted concern from the outlying counties 
of Wise, Parker, Johnson, Summerville, and Hood. These communities are looking for 
options to commute to Fort Worth. It will be important to address the existing and non-
existing state highways as those communities are developing and coordinate with the cities 
to build arterials as the areas continue to mature and grown. RTC Chair Riley thanked the 
Commissioner for his time. He noted that in Parker County it is said that partnerships build 
better roads, which is true throughout the region and is exemplified in how the RTC moves 

4



projects forward. Commissioner Bugg thanked Lee Kleinman, Glen Whitley, Clay Jenkins, 
and Michael Morris for agreeing to attend the January Commission meeting and workshop 
in Austin.  
 

4. Next Meeting:  The next meeting of the Regional Transportation Council is scheduled for 
Thursday, February 11, 2016, 1:00 pm, at the North Central Texas Council of Governments.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 3 pm.  

5



 
 

The Transportation Policy Body for the North Central Texas Council of Governments 
(Metropolitan Planning Organization for the Dallas-Fort Worth Region) 

P.O. Box 5888 • Arlington, Texas 76005-5888 • (817) 695-9240 • FAX (817) 640-3028 
http://www.nctcog.org/trans 

 

 TO: Regional Transportation Council       DATE:  February 4, 2016 
 
 FROM: Dan Kessler 
   Assistant Director of Transportation 
 
SUBJECT: Modifications to the FY2016 and FY2017 Unified Planning Work Program 
   for Regional Transportation Planning 
 
 
 
The Unified Planning Work Program for Regional Transportation Planning (UPWP) is required 
by federal and State transportation planning regulations and provides a summary of the 
transportation and transportation-related air quality planning tasks to be conducted by 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) staff.  The FY2016 and FY2017 UPWP identifies the 
activities to be carried out between October 1, 2015, and September 30, 2017. 
 
Listed below, and in the following attachment, are proposed modifications to the FY2016 and 
FY2017 UPWP.  Included in these amendments are project modifications and funding 
adjustments.  There are no changes to projects funded with Transportation Planning Funds in 
this set of modifications.  The proposed modifications were presented to the public during the 
January 7, 12 and 13, 2016, public meetings.  The Surface Transportation Technical Committee 
took action at its January 22, 2016, meeting to recommend Regional Transportation Council 
approval. 
 
Modifications 
 
1.03 Advanced Fiscal Management and Information Systems – Grant Management 

Streamlining (Amend text to reflect staff work activities related to the assessment of 
risks associated with NCTCOG grant applications and potential subrecipients and the 
application of appropriate mitigating factors to minimize these risks.  Training for staff, 
subrecipients, and contractors to disseminate the new Uniform Guidance on risk 
assessment is also included.) 

 
3.04 Transportation and Air Quality Communications – Clean Cities Program (Program 

additional $67,300 Department of Energy [DOE] funds to reflect an increase in funding 
of $44,000 and to carry over $23,300 in unspent dollars from FY2015 into FY2016.) 

 
4.03 Coordination of Transportation and Environmental Planning Processes - Strategic 

Highway Research Program 2 Implementation Assistance (Eco-Logical) (Amend text to 
reflect a revision to the project work scope that will establish a framework for common 
goals with resource agencies.) 

REFERENCE ITEM 2.1.1



 

Regional Transportation Council February 4, 2016 
Page Two 
 
 
5.05 Congestion Management Planning and Operations - Regional and Corridor-Level TDM 

Strategies (Program $400,000 STP–MM funds and $100,000 Local funds, and amend  
 text to reflect parking management initiatives to be conducted in partnership with the 

City of Dallas.  These initiatives will serve as pilot programs for the region.) 
 
5.09 Regional Aviation Planning and Education – Aviation Education Integration and 

Outreach (Program $30,000 Local funds and amend the text to reflect the development 
of an aviation gaming application to be used as an outreach strategy to local middle- 
and high-school students with the goal of promoting interest in aviation careers.) 

 
5.10 Regional Military and Community Coordination – Regional Joint Land-use Study (Adjust 

estimated, programmed dollars to actual funds received by reducing the Department of 
Defense [DOD] funds by $15,000 and increasing the associated funding match by 
$4,000 in RTC Local funds.)   

 
 
Please contact Vickie Alexander or me at (817) 695-9240 if you have any questions or 
comments regarding these proposed modifications to the FY2016 and FY2017 UPWP prior to 
the Regional Transportation Council meeting.  Regional Transportation Council approval of the 
proposed modifications will be requested at the meeting. 
 
jh 
Attachment 
 



1.03 Advanced Fiscal Management and Information Systems 

The North Central Texas Council of Governments staff continues to support diverse programs, 
providing opportunity to facilitate projects with unique and innovative funding methodologies that 
include participation from multiple funding partners.  This work program element includes efforts 
to organize, adjust, and enhance procedures and tools to incorporate these unique and dynamic 
programs into standard business practices of NCTCOG.  Work also involves the review of 
potential risk elements to determine mitigating factors to minimize risk and ensure 
compliance with both federal and state regulations. 

Grant Management Streamlining 

Other Funding Sources 

This subtask is a multi-year effort ongoing throughout both FY2016 and FY2017 for the 
development of enhanced policies and procedures supporting the fiscal management, risk 
management, and administration of transportation projects.  It includes development of 
procedures, tools, and other resources to streamline and integrate management activities for 
effective planning and implementation, including departmental policies and procedures for grant 
management, pre-award activities and development of new projects including assessing risk 
and determining appropriate mitigating factors to control risk, and program oversight 
coordination.  Surface Transportation Program-Metropolitan Mobility funds, Regional 
Transportation Council Local funds, and other local funds, as well as Transportation Development 
Credits support the activities conducted under this subtask.  Anticipated products include: 

• Enhanced fiscal information systems for compilation and maintenance of project data;
• Procedures and tools to assess risk for NCTCOG grant applications and potential

subrecipients to apply appropriate mitigating factors to minimize the risk;
• Trainings to disseminate new Uniform Guidance for staff, subrecipients and

contractors;
• Reports and other tools to monitor and track project status and schedule administrative

actions, and;
• Standardized format for documentation of processes and workflow.

4.03 Coordination of Transportation and Environmental Planning Processes 

Strategic Highway Research Program 2 Implementation Assistance (Eco-Logical) 

Other Funding Sources 

This element will be completed in FY2016. NCTCOG will continue to implement the FHWA Eco-
Logical principles by integrating the Regional Ecosystem Framework (REF) dataset into the 
planning process, assessing mitigation opportunities, and engaging with resource and regulatory 
agency stakeholders. NCTCOG also seeks to establish a framework for common goals with 
resource agencies implement a pilot phase of the Shared Value Mitigation Program (SVM) and 
create an interactive REF and SVM Web site. Federal funds provided by the Federal Highway 
Administration will be utilized for this project. Anticipated products include: 



• Documentation and presentation materials for workshops and other stakeholder 
meetings including appropriate public involvement;  

• Maps and other databases;  
• Presentations, interviews, technical reports, and process documentation;  
• Development of Web site and mapping content; and  
• Grant management requirements. 

 

5.05 Congestion Management Planning and Operations 

Development of Regional and Corridor-Level TDM Strategies 

Transportation Planning Funds 
 
This element is ongoing throughout FY2016 and FY2017, providing for the planning and 
development of regional travel demand management (TDM) strategies including, but not limited 
to, employee trip reduction, carpools/vanpools, park-and-ride, and transportation management 
associations. Revisions in demographic forecasts and innovations in communication technologies 
will influence new strategies. This element also supports the development of regional TDM 
strategies in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan. Regional travel demand management 
strategies identified in the Congestion Management Process (CMP) will be applied on a regional 
level, and additional travel demand reduction strategies will then be evaluated for their application 
on the corridor and subarea levels. Additional TDM strategies will also be evaluated for their 
application. At the project implementation level, TDM projects are monitored so they can be added 
to the regional Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) at the appropriate time with respect to 
the single-occupancy vehicle facility implementation.  Anticipated products include: 
 

• Monitoring of regional TDM goals and strategies outlined in the Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan and the Congestion Management Process document; 

• Support and assistance to regional partners implementing parking technologies and 
services to better manage parking availability; and 

• Maintenance of and updates to the Regional Park-and-Ride Inventory database and 
map. 

 
Other Funding Sources 
 
This program also uses Surface Transportation Program—Metropolitan Mobility (STP-MM) 
funds and local funds to support activities in this area.  Consultant assistance will also be 
utilized.  Anticipated products through the use of these dollars include: 
 

• A Curb Lane Management Study in the city of Dallas that is expected to be used as 
a pilot for the region to evaluate and recommend curb space facilities to coincide 
with existing and future development needs, and  

• Creation of a mobile application mapping system that provides real-time 
information regarding City of Dallas owned parking facilities to include availability, 
rates, and access to payment, as well as access to multi-modal trip planning.  This 
application is expected to be used as a pilot for the region.  

 
 



5.09 Regional Aviation Planning and Education 

Aviation Education Integration and Outreach 

Other Funding Sources 

This element is ongoing throughout FY2016 and FY2017 and describes implementation and 
outreach efforts associated with recommendations from the North Texas Aviation Education 
Initiative study completed in 2010.  Facilitation for development of regional aviation programs, as 
well as a variety of outreach strategies to local students, will be conducted.  These efforts are 
funded through a combination of grants, RTC Local funds, and industry partnerships.  Anticipated 
products include: 

• Participation in aviation advisory committees and presentations to school boards; 

• Enhancements to NCTaviationcareers.com; 

• Aviation workforce data analysis; 

• Aviation education outreach events; 

• Program curriculum development and facilitation; and 

• Regional workshops with educators, industry stakeholders, and policy officials., and 

• An aviation education gaming application. 
 



E. Funding Summary 

Subtask TPF1 Additional Funding Total 

    Amount Source   

3.01 $1,448,000       
   $1,165,000 RTR   
   $885,000 STP-MM   
Subtotal       $3,498,000 
3.02 $825,000       
   $157,000 TCEQ   
   $202,000 STP-MM   
Subtotal       $1,184,000 
3.03      
   $7,834,000 CMAQ   
   $1,185,000 EPA   
   $28,000 DOE   
   $3,620,000 Local   
   $2,000,000  STP-MM    
   $44,228,000  TCEQ    
Subtotal       $58,895,000 
3.04        
   $1,804,000 CMAQ   
   $618,800 DOE   
   $140,000 Local   
   $574,000  STP-MM    
Subtotal       $3,136,800 
3.05 $1,860,000       
   $282,000 FTA   
   $108,000 Local   
Subtotal       $2,250,000 
3.06        
   $8,000,000 CMAQ   
   $24,276,000 FTA   
   $664,000 RTR   
   $7,745,000 Local   
   $265,000 TxDOT   
Subtotal       $40,950,000 
Total $4,133,000 $105,780,800   $109,913,800 
1 Transportation Planning Funds (TPF) includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA 5303 funds.  TxDOT will apply transportation 
  development credits sufficient to provide the match for FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 programs.  As the credits 
  reflect neither cash nor person-hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables.    

 



 
  

4%

16%

11%

1%
1%

3%

22%
2%

40%

0%

Task 3.0 Funding Summary

TPF

CMAQ

Local

EPA

DOE

STP-MM

FTA

RTR

TCEQ

Other



E.  Funding Summary 
 

Subtask TPF1 Additional Funding Total 

    Amount Source   

5.01 $742,000       
   $45,000 Local   
   $41,000 NTTA   
   $315,000 RTR   
   $1,398,000 STP-MM   
   $509,000 TxDOT   
Subtotal       $3,050,000 
5.02 $988,000     
   $71,000 RTR   
Subtotal       $1,059,000 
5.03 $447,000       
   $154,000 CMAQ   
   $337,000 FHWA   
   $1,497,000 Local   
   $1,923,000 STP-MM   
Subtotal       $4,358,000 
5.04 $171,000     

   $78,000 Local   
   $435,000 STP-MM   
   $32,000 TXDOT   
Subtotal       $716,000 
5.05 $562,000       
   $8,195,000 CMAQ   
   $375,000 FHWA   
   $1,072,000 Local   
   $365,000 RTR   
   $5,709,000 STP-MM   
   $236,000 TXDOT   
Subtotal       $16,514,000 
5.06        
   $69,000 Local   
   $725,000 STP-MM   
   $113,000 TxDOT   
Subtotal       $907,000 
5.07 $66,000       
Subtotal       $66,000 

 
  



Subtask TPF1 Additional Funding Total 

    Amount Source   

5.08 $374,000       
   $14,000 Local   
   $106,000 STP-MM   
Subtotal       $494,000 
5.09 $153,000       
   $195,000 FAA   
   $229,000 Local   
   $40,000 STP-MM   
Subtotal       $617,000 
5.10        
   $440,000 DOD   
   $127,000 Local   
Subtotal       $567,000 
5.11        
   $1,300,000 STP-MM   
   $588,835 TXDOT   
Subtotal       $1,888,835 
Total $3,503,000 $26,733,835   $30,236,835 
1 Transportation Planning Funds (TPF) includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA 5303 funds.  TxDOT will apply transportation 
  development credits sufficient to provide the match for FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 programs.  As the credits 
  reflect neither cash nor person-hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables.    

 

 
  

12%

28%

10%

38%

3%
9%

Task 5.0 Funding Summary

TPF

CMAQ

Local

EPA

DOE

STP-MM

FTA

RTR

TCEQ

Other



EXHIBIT VIII-3 
FY2016 AND FY2017 UPWP FUNDING SUMMARY 

Funding 
Source 

Task 1.0 
Administration 

Task 2.0 
Data 

Development 

Task 3.0 
Short Range 

Planning 

Task 4.0 
Metropolitan 

Transportation 
Planning 

Task 5.0 
Special 
Studies 

Total 

FTA Activities 1897000 44.22.00 44.24.00 44.23.01 44.23.02   
  44.25.00 44.24.00 
   44.22.00 

4151000     44.27.00 
              

TPF  $7,572,000 $3,333,000 $4,133,000 $2,194,000 $3,503,000 $20,735,000 

CMAQ $543,000 $0 $17,638,000 $0 $8,349,000 $26,530,000 

DOD $0 $0 $0 $0 $440,000 $440,000 

DOE $0 $0 $646,800 $0 $0 $646,800 

EPA $0 $0 $1,185,000 $0 $0 $1,185,000 

FAA $0 $0 $0 $0 $195,000 $195,000 

FHWA $0 $96,000 $0 $294,000 $712,000 $1,102,000 

FTA $0 $239,000 $24,558,000 $0 $0 $24,797,000 

HUD $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Local $712,000 $239,000 $11,613,000 $94,000 $3,131,000 $15,789,000 
NCTCOG 
Local $130,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $130,000 

NTTA $0 $0 $0 $0 $41,000 $41,000 

RTR $0 $0 $1,829,000 $726,500 $751,000 $3,306,500 

SECO $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

STP-MM $1,337,500 $2,559,000 $3,661,000 $0 $11,636,000 $19,193,500 

TBD $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

TCEQ $0 $0 $44,385,000 $0 $0 $44,385,000 

TxDOT $0 $0 $265,000 $0 $1,478,835 $1,743,835 
 Subtotal $10,294,500 $6,466,000 $109,913,800 $3,308,500 $30,236,835 $160,219,635 

 



 

13%

17%

10%
1%0%12%

15%

2%

28%

2%

Summary of Total Funding 

TPF

CMAQ

Local

EPA

DOE

STP-MM

FTA

RTR

TCEQ

Other

6%4%

69%

2%

19%

Summary of Funding by Task

Task 1

Task 2

Task 3

Task 4

Task 5



Transportation Department
North Central Texas Council of Governments

Modifications to the 
FY2016 and FY2017 
Unified Planning Work 
Program

Regional Transportation Council
February 11, 2016

E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 IT

E
M

 2
.1

.2



Adjustments to Existing Projects
Project Financial Action Description

Advanced Fiscal 
Management and 
Information Systems –
Grant Management 
Streamlining (1.03)

None Amend text to reflect risk 
assessment activities and Uniform 
Guidance training for staff, 
subrecipients, and contractors.

Transportation and Air 
Quality Communications –
Clean Cities Program (3.04)

$44,000 DOE
$23,300 DOE

Program additional funds to reflect:  
1) an increase in funding from the 
Department of Energy and 2) carry 
over of unspent dollars from 
FY2015 into FY2016 

Coordination of 
Transportation and 
Environmental Planning 
Processes – Strategic
Highway Research 
Program 2 Implementation 
Assistance (Eco-Logical) 
(4.03)

None Amend text to reflect a revision to 
the project work scope which will  
establish a framework for common 
goals with resource agencies.  

2



Adjustments to Existing Projects 
(cont’d)

3

Project Financial Action Description

Congestion Management 
Planning and Operations 
– Development of 
Regional and Corridor-
Level TDM Strategies 
(5.05)

$400,000  STP-MM
$100,000  Local

Program new funding and 
amend text to reflect parking 
initiatives to be conducted in 
partnership with the City of 
Dallas that will serve as pilots 
for the region

Regional Aviation 
Planning and Education –
Aviation Education 
Integration and Outreach 
(5.09)

$  30,000  Local Program new funding and 
amend text to reflect the 
development of an aviation 
gaming application to be used 
as an outreach strategy to local 
students

Regional Military and 
Community Coordination 
– Regional Joint Land-
use Study (5.10)

($ 15,000) DOD
$   4,000 RTC Local

Adjust programmed dollars to 
reflect actual grant award and 
associated funding match



Funding Adjustments (non TPF)

Funding Source Amount UPWP Task(s)
Local $134,000 5.05, 5.09, 5.10

DOD ($15,000) 5.10

DOE $ 67,300 3.04

STP-MM $400,000 5.05

4



Modification Schedule

January 7, 12-13 Public Meetings

January 22 Action by Surface Transportation 
Technical Committee

February 11 Action by Regional Transportation 
Council

February 25 Action by NCTCOG Executive 
Board

February 26 Submittal to Texas Department of 
Transportation

5



Unified Planning Work Program 
Modifications

6

Comments or Questions:

Dan Kessler
Assistant Director of Transportation

Phone:  817/695-9248
E-mail: dkessler@nctcog.org

Vickie Alexander
Administrative Program Supervisor

Phone:  817/695-9242
E-mail:  valexander@nctcog.org

http://www.nctcog.org/trans/admin/upwp

mailto:dkessler@nctcog.org
mailto:valexander@nctcog.org
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/admin/upwp


ELECTRONIC ITEM 3.1













1  

MINUTES 
 

Regional Transportation Council 
PUBLIC MEETINGS 

 
Fiscal Year 2016 and Fiscal Year 2017 Unified Planning Work Program 

(UPWP) Modifications 
 

Look Out Texans Safety Campaign 

Draft Mobility 2040 Recommendations 

Meeting Dates and Locations 
 

The North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) held public meetings as follows: 
 

1. Thursday, Jan. 7, 2016 – 6:30 pm – Center for Community Cooperation (Dallas); 
attendance: 49; moderated by Michael Morris, Director of Transportation 

2. Tuesday, Jan. 12, 2016 – 6:30 pm – Lewisville City Hall (Lewisville); attendance: 16; 
moderated by Dan Kessler, Assistant Director of Transportation 

3. Wednesday, Jan. 13, 2016 – 2:30 pm – North Central Texas Council of Governments 
(Arlington); attendance: 24; moderated by Natalie Bettger, Senior Program Manager 

 
Public Meeting Purpose and Topics 

 

The public meetings were held in accordance with the NCTCOG Transportation Department 
Public Participation Process, which became effective June 1, 1994, as approved by the 
Regional Transportation Council (RTC), the transportation policy board for the Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (MPO) and amended on February 12, 2015. Staff presented information 
about: 

1. Fiscal Year 2016 and Fiscal Year 2017 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 
Modifications – presented by Vickie Alexander (Dallas and Arlington); Dan Kessler 
(Lewisville) 

2. Draft Mobility 2040 Recommendations – presented by Chad McKeown (Dallas and 
Arlington); Kendall Wendling (Lewisville) 

3. Look Out Texans Safety Campaign – presented by Kevin Kokes (Dallas and Lewisville); 
Jeremy Williams (Arlington) 

 
The NCTCOG public meetings were held to educate, inform and seek comments from the 
public. Comments were solicited from those present who wished to speak for the record. The 
presentations made at the meetings are available at www.nctcog.org/input, and a video 
recording of the public meeting held in Arlington on Jan. 13. 2016, was posted at  
www.nctcog.org/video. 

 

Each person who attended the public meetings received a packet with a meeting agenda, a 
sheet on which to submit written comments and copies of the presentations. 

 
Summary of Presentations 

 

A. Fiscal Year 2016 and Fiscal Year 2017 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 
Modifications 

ELECTRONIC ITEM 3.2

http://www.nctcog.org/input
http://www.nctcog.org/video


2  

• Dallas-Fort Worth Metropolitan Planning Area 

 
 

• Unified Planning Work Program for Regional Transportation Planning 
o Task 1 – Administration and management 
o Task 2 – Transportation data development and maintenance 
o Task 3 – Short-range planning and programming and air quality and transit 

operations 
o Task 4 – Metropolitan transportation plan 
o Task 5 – Special studies and system operations 

 
• Adjustments to Existing Projects 

 

 
 

 
 



3  

• Adjustments to Existing Projects (Continued) 

 
 

• Modification Schedule 

 

 
 

 
 



4  

 

B. Look Out Texans Safety Campaign 
• Federal Highway Administration Safety Focus Cities 

 
o The Federal Highway Administration has designated both Dallas and Fort Worth as 

two of its 35 Pedestrian-Bicycle Focus Cities, which are selected based on high 
rates of bicycle and pedestrian crash fatalities 

• Dallas County Bicycle and Pedestrian Crash Locations and Density 

 

 
 

 
 



5  

 
 
 

• Denton County Bicycle and Pedestrian Crash Locations and Density 

 
 

• Tarrant County Bicycle and Pedestrian Crash Locations and Density 

 

 
 

 
 



6  

• Regional Safety Campaign Background 

 
 

• Audiences 

 

 
 

 
 



7  

• Campaign Title, Logo and Website 

 
 

• Twenty-one Safety Tips 

 

 
 

 
 



8  

 

• Volunteer Photos 

 
 

• Advertising Development 

 

 
 

 
 



9  

 
 

• Print Advertisements 

 
 

• Digital Advertisements 

 

 
 

 
 



10  

 
 
 

• Transit Advertisements 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 



11  

 

 
 

• Billboard Advertisements 

 

 
 

 
 



12  

 

 
 

• Advertising on Digital Boards 

 

 
 

 
 



13  

• Look Out Texans Safety Campaign Website 

 
 

• Community Outreach 

 

 
 

 
 



14  

C. Draft Mobility 2040 Recommendations 
• Presentation Agenda 

o Mobility 2040 draft recommendations 
o 2016 transportation conformity 
o RTC policy bundle concept 
o Mobility 2040 projects: TxDOT congestion relief funding 

 
• What is the Metropolitan Transportation Plan? 

o Represents a blueprint for the region’s multimodal transportation system 
o Covers at least a 20-year timeframe 
o Responds to Regional Transportation Council goals 
o Identifies policies, programs and projects for continued development 
o Guides the expenditure of federal and state transportation funds 

 
• What’s New for Mobility 2040? 

 
 

• Mobility 2040 Public Involvement to Date 
o Spring/summer survey (approximately 2,500 responses) 
o Fall survey (approximately 1,200 responses) 
o 13 formal public meetings 
o 12 community outreach events 
o 15 community, industry, or special presentations 
o 8 Surface Transportation Technical Committee presentations 
o 9 Regional Transportation Council meeting presentations 
o 2 Regional Transportation Council workshops 

 
• Mobility 2040 Guiding Principles 

o Conduct comprehensive corridor evaluations 

 
 



15  

o Re-evaluate toll facility recommendations 
o Review needed arterial improvements 
o Reassess regional rail recommendations 
o Update the Regional Veloweb 
o Maintain and enhance existing infrastructure 
o Consider the role of new technology 

 
• Mobility 2040 Prioritization and Expenditures 

 
 

• Mobility 2040 Summary 
o Financial Considerations 
 Reduces use of toll in proportion to new revenue made available from recent 

state legislative sessions 
o Social Considerations 
 Emphasizes transportation choice for a diverse and growing region 

o Environmental Considerations 
 Strengthens connection between environmental and transportation planning 

o Operational Efficiency 
 Continues programs aimed at reducing travel and creating an efficient 

transportation system 
o Mobility Options 
 Supports on- and off-street bicycle and pedestrian facilities 
 Recommends over 6,350 new lane miles on the region’s roadway network 

 
 



16  

 Calls for more than 380 miles of passenger rail by 2040 
 Introduces “high intensity bus” service to the region 
 Accommodates high speed rail service to and within the region 
 Recognizes the important roles freight and aviation play in our region’s 

economy 
o Regional Performance 
 Documents significant performance measures to track system performance 

over time 
 

• Regional Veloweb 

 
 

• Major Roadway Recommendations 

 

 
 

 
 



17  

• Southern Gateway General Consensus (Near Term) 
o Make improvements on U.S. 67 to aid Southwest Center redevelopment 
o Need for a 5-2Reversible-5 lane configuration north of U.S. 67 
o Reconfigure and widen U.S. 67 north of IH 20 to 

3-1Reversible-3 
o Widen U.S. 67 south of IH 20 to 3-3 
o No toll components 
o Stage construct at $650 million 
o Build pedestrian cap north of Dallas Zoo 
o Importance of connectivity to Lowest Stemmons 

 
• LBJ East General Consensus 

o Build tolled managed lanes west of Royal/Miller 
o Expedite committed noise wall construction (January 2016 RTC) 
o Advance Skillman/Audelia construction (2016 ROW, 2017 construction) 
o Need for a 5-2-2-5 lane configuration 
o The elevated managed lanes section should not be evaluated further 
o The depressed section east of Royal/Miller Road should only be evaluated to 

save right of way (ROW) in small section 
o Continue to investigate opportunities to reduce ROW impacts, particularly east of 

Royal/Miller 
o The design will include continuous frontage roads and improved interchanges 

throughout the corridor 
o Phase IH 30 interchange if Prop. 7 allocations are less than expected 

 
• U.S. 75 General Consensus 

o Complete construction in Allen area 
o Complete bottleneck improvement at PGBT/15th Street and remove pylons to 

allow for general traffic to use the HOV lane as part of immediate construction 
project 

o Phase 1 
 Close current HOV lane and remove pylons to convert back to shoulder 
 Implement peak period shoulder use similar to SH 161 
 Utilize shoulder for off-peak non-recurring congestion events managed 

through multi-agency task force including first responders 
o Phase 2 
 Continue to review options for ultimate US 75 improvements 



18  

• Funded Major Arterial Improvements 

 
 

• Illustrative Major Roadway Corridors for Future Evaluation 

 

 
 

 
 



19  

• Dallas Corridors for Further Study 

 
 

• Major Transit Corridor Recommendations 

 

 
 

 
 



20  

• High-Intensity Bus Service 

 
 

• Cotton Belt Corridor Proposed Recommendations 
o Regional rail line from DFW Airport to Plano with one-seat ride connectivity with 

TEX Rail 
o Expedite project delivery to include in “Ten-Year Plan” 
o If rail service cannot be expedited, review potential for High Intensity Bus service 

as an early implementation phase 
 

• Mobility 2040 Schedule 

 

 
 

 
 



21  

• 2016 Transportation Conformity 
o Purpose: Federal requirement in nonattainment areas to conduct air quality 

analysis on projects, programs, and policies identified in transportation plans, 
transportation improvement programs, federally funded projects, or projects 
required for federal approval 

o Analysis area: ten-county ozone nonattainment area 
o Latest planning assumptions 
o Motor vehicle emission budgets*: 
 Nitrogen oxides (NOₓ) = 148.36 tons/day 
 Volatile organic compounds (VOC) = 77.18 tons/day 

o Analysis Years: 2017, 2027, 2037, and 2040 
o Preliminary Results for 2017: 
 NOₓ:  122.02 tons/day 
 VOC:  62.38 tons/day 
 Results not including RTC initiatives 

 
• RTC Policy Bundle Concept Summary 

o Solutions beyond infrastructure improvements are needed to achieve regional 
transportation goals. Policies included in Mobility 2040 aim to encourage 
alternative solutions to reach these goals. 

o The RTC Policy Bundle Concept: 
 Works as a credit bank to help offset local funds on federal projects 
 Participation is a governmental entity’s decision 
 Voluntary 
 Decide preference 
 50 percent target 

o Policy Types 

  
 



22  

• Mobility 2040 Projects: TxDOT Congestion Relief Funding 
o Background 
 Expedite congestion relief projects 
 Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) to allocate $1.0 billion - $1.3 

billion statewide 
 Need early construction timeframes 
 Only available in Houston, Austin, San Antonio, and Dallas-Fort Worth 
 TxDOT Commission support anticipated on January 28, 2016 

o Funding Partnership 
 Create a funding partnership with TxDOT and the Texas Transportation 

Commission (TTC) to implement priority projects in the West and East 
 All projects move forward as a congestion relief package 
 Provide performance measures along with proposed project list 
 TxDOT commits funding (new Metro District Congestion Relief funding) 
 RTC commits funding and creates supplemental project commitments 
 Surface Transportation Program – Metropolitan Mobility (STP-MM) 
 Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) 
 Regional Toll Revenue (RTR) 

 
• Proposed Funding Allocations 

 

  
 



23  

• Proposed Projects for Eastern Subregion 

 
 
 

• Proposed Projects for Western Subregion 

 

 
 

 
 



24  

 

ORAL COMMENTS RECEIVED AT MEETINGS 
(Meeting Location in Parenthesis) 

 
Draft Mobility 2040 Recommendations 

 

Bill Betzen, Citizen (Dallas) 
 

A. The Dallas Canyon 
 
Question: Are there plans to work on the Dallas canyon? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: Very good question. With regard to the Dallas canyon, 
we’ve added IH 30 east of Dallas back into the plan. We hope to lower it through the East 
Dallas/Fair Park area. We would like to see if we can build some pedestrian elements to connect 
nearby neighborhoods. There’s potentially a high speed rail station coming in above IH 30. We’re 
really waiting on Victor Vandergriff’s CityMAP initiative. They’ve hired engineers, economists, 
land-use planners and urban designers to get consensus on what the city of Dallas wants to do 
in regards to TxDOT’s freeway system. With our interest in advancing Southern Gateway, LBJ 
and Central Expressway, we wouldn’t put too much money right now on it anyway. We’ll pick up 
the consensus position from Commissioner Vandergriff’s CityMAP initiative to see what the 
future holds for IH 30. 

 
Cheryl Price, Forest Meadows Neighborhood Association (Dallas) 

 
A.  Noise wall construction along IH 635 

 
Question: Can you clarify what you mean by immediate attention when referring to the noise 
walls along IH 635 in the Skillman/Audelia area? Has noise wall construction started along that 
corridor? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: Yes, the major noise wall construction in the Garland 
area has started. I’ve always been a firm believer that noise walls should be built first because it 
assures the public the noise wall is committed to what is being built and protects neighborhoods 
from construction noise. I put our staff through a very difficult fall trying to find money to 
immediately build them. We’re going to the RTC in January, and we’ll probably have to follow up 
with additional action from them in February. That will trigger TxDOT to go hire a contractor to 
finish all the other noise walls that have been required as part of the IH 635 improvement plan. 

 
Question: Will certain areas take priority over others? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: We need to get your email address to make sure you 
know where all the noise walls are located. Kelly Selman at TxDOT has that information. As a 
result of a detailed evaluation of federal rules for noise walls, one has been built and all the 
others are coming, but they’re not being expedited. I have to get 23 votes at the RTC to 
dedicate $31 million to all other noise walls in the IH 635 corridor. I think staff feels confident we 
can convince the RTC to make that commitment now, but staff will also tell the RTC noise walls 
come as a package. If we’re going to build the noise walls, we can’t pick the walls and not 
advance the Skillman/Audelia project. We can’t pick the Skillman/Audelia project without doing 
the noise walls. It’s a whole package. When it comes to Skillman/Audelia, we’re going to 
advance it as quickly as possible. There is lots of right of way that has to be built. TxDOT is 



 

working with the city in a very imaginative fashion. Right now it looks like right of way will be 
completed in 2016. Construction is slated to start in 2017, but we’re trying to move it to this 
year. If the RTC goes ahead and funds Skillman/Audelia noise walls this month, and we tidy up 
as a result of the governor’s initiative, we won’t have any financial constraints in moving ahead 
with all the noise walls. The Skillman/Audelia project will also be fully funded. The blessing from 
the governor’s office has permitted us to move revenues up now, and IH 635 East will be the 
first corridor in the region to get Proposition 7 money. 

 
Bill Blaydes, Citizen (Dallas) 

 
A.  Skillman/Audelia and IH 635 East 

 
Question: With the timeframe you’ve set forth for Skillman/Audelia and IH 635 East, some of the 
buildings have to come down in order to put a service road through there. Are they going to be 
building the service roads at the same time as the sound walls? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: We’re going to obviously have to build continuous 
frontage roads on IH 635. That contractor is not the contractor that is going to build the 
Skillman/Audelia project. There is right of way needed for both the IH 635 freeway 
improvements and Skillman/Audelia. We think we have agreement for TxDOT to buy both. 

 
Comment: Can you guarantee the RTC will approve this entire process in January? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: We’ve been talking to the RTC about this every other 
month since the spring. This item will not be a surprise to them. I believe the RTC will support 
moving ahead on IH 635, the noise walls and Skillman/Audelia, letting the noise walls along 
Skillman/Audelia go first. Kelly Selman will then have approval to proceed, and the design is 
almost complete. Over the holidays we discussed the timeframe and how to get to the 
construction phase as quickly as possible. 

 
Comment: One of the major concerns is whether or not the sound wall at the Plano Road exit off 
IH 635 will wrap down the exit ramp that will be built there. When can we see exactly where the 
sound walls are? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: You can see them any time you wish. If you send me 
any issues that you have with either right of way parcels or noise wall locations, we will get 
them to the city and to TxDOT. My understanding is TxDOT has a consensus on noise walls. 

 
Kebran Alexander, Empowering Oak Cliff (Dallas) 

 
A. Southwest Center Mall access from U.S. 67 

 
Question: Has access to Southwest Center Mall from U.S. 67 been prioritized over access from 
IH 20? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: We can’t proceed on IH 20. The project in front of us 
is IH 35E/U.S. 67. Anything we can do to provide access to the Southwest Center Mall off U.S. 
67 is being built into that project. We have to come back in another project to bring everyone 
together on IH 20 and potentially move the IH 20 ramps a mile east of U.S. 67 all the way 
through U.S. 67 to about two miles west of U.S. 67. We don’t have that project, and the 
engineer has just been hired by TxDOT. We’re going to go back and go through a very detailed 

 

25 



 

process. To provide true beneficial access to that mall, you have to make improvements on IH 20. 
You have to have a lot of public outreach. A lot of land owners have good access off the current 
ramps, and those ramps would change. We need time to sort it through. 

 
Question: Are they saying the Camp Wisdom exit isn’t sufficient enough to handle the 
anticipated volume of traffic? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: We have consensus to do whatever we can to 
expedite U.S. 67 improvements. Everything on IH 20 and whether or not we can build a 
continuous frontage road through the middle of the U.S. 67/IH 20 interchange are open for 
discussion. 

 
B. Zoo deck 

 
Question: What is the potential structure for the deck around the zoo? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: The topography right across from the zoo is not good. 
We have to do two things: move farther to the north and make sure IH 35E is depressed. We’re 
looking at the IH 35E profile to lower it to get to the point where the land profile on both sides is 
roughly the same. It’s north of the zoo. 

 
Comment: It’s going to be south of 8th Street? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: It has to be south of 8th Street. We’re not going to do 
anything that hurts access to the 10th Street neighborhood or that affects work on the 
Horseshoe project. 

 
C. Directional signage along U.S. 75 

 
Question: Will there be any work done to clean up the roadway signage from southbound U.S. 
75 to IH 635? There seems to be a little bit of confusion south of Spring Valley as to what goes 
to the frontage road. 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: As we advance the U.S. 75 project, we’re going to 
clean up the whole lane balance underneath the U.S. 75/IH 635 interchange. 

 
D. Trinity Parkway 

 
Question: Are there east/west transportation patterns that justify further discussion of the 
widening of the Trinity Toll Road? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: We’re proceeding with a four-lane Trinity Toll Road 
and 18 recommendations that came from an outside, urban design group. The Trinity Parkway 
alignment is the same alignment we’ve been looking at for 22 years. It would connect SH 183 
down to U.S. 175, have fewer ramps and include the 18 design principles recommended by 
the Dallas City Council. The distance between IH 35E and the Trinity Parkway has remained 
constant throughout this process. 

 
Comment: That toll road would be less than a mile and a half away from IH 35E. Wouldn’t that call 
for the acquisition of some of the properties in that area? 

 

26



27  

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: No, but we wouldn’t build all the ramps. The city of 
Dallas has requested we eliminate a lot of them, and our analysis says we can do that without 
impacting traffic volume.  

 
Comment: There was never a transportation pattern justification for the east/west pathway? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: I think there were too many interchanges on the 
Trinity. We’re going into the computer and peeling back ramps, and we aren’t seeing a huge 
change in traffic volume. 

 
E. The effects of construction on air quality and the environment 

 
Comment: I feel like we’re going overboard with roadways and continuing to build roadways that 
promote individual car-use. How does that help air quality and environmental concerns? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: Our message is we have to advance all modes of 
transportation and more of the modes that haven’t historically been built, which includes bicycle, 
pedestrian, transit, street cars, people movers and rail systems. If you build a region of 10.7 
million people on just those modes, you’re not going to solve the transportation problem. 

 
Question: Why wouldn’t we look to create a lane for trains along certain arteries? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: There’s no reason why we couldn’t. We’re in the 
middle of a high speed rail study that looks at putting high speed rail down the IH 30 corridor 
from downtown Dallas to Arlington to downtown Fort Worth. Also, remember citizens of the state 
voted for Propositions 1 and 7 funding, and we can’t use the money for transit. In urban areas 
like Dallas-Fort Worth we understand the importance of integrating transportation modes in the 
urban fabric, but it’s not necessarily something everyone in Texas believes. If we can take 
Propositions 1 and 7 funds and use it for building roads, it frees up RTC federal funds for 
building rail in the Cotton Belt or extending the street car. We wrote the application to get the 
street car, and we’re using CMAQ funds to extend it to Bishop Arts. 

 
Annie Melton, Bowman-Melton Associates (Dallas) 

 
A. Implement complete streets policy 

 
Question: Has the policy bundle, specifically the complete streets policy on slide 27, been 
passed? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: Those polices will be folded into the mobility plan. The 
RTC will be asked to approve them in March. 

 
B. Funding bicycle and pedestrian programs and projects 

 
Question: How do you create bicycle and pedestrian facilities on state highways like SH 199 if 
you can’t use congestion relief funds? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: If the congestion relief funding hadn’t come along, I 
would’ve had to stretch all of our federal funds to try to get Southern Gateway done. But if the 



28  

funding works, RTC money will be freed up. And since our money is federal and 
nonconstrained, it can be used for other initiatives like transit, advancement of the light rail or 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities. 

 
Matt Tranchin, Citizen (Dallas) 

 
A. Effects of public participation on the Mobility 2040 plan 

 
Question: Public participation has increased, and I think that’s a huge testament to how 
willing you all are to be transparent in your community outreach. I really appreciate it. 
Looking at the $126 billion budget for the next 20 years or so, can you point to anything in 
the Mobility 2040 recommendations that is a direct result of public participation? What have 
people suggested or proposed? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: I think the clearest one is the desire to decrease toll 
roads. The RTC members who understand leveraging kind of like toll roads. Instead of putting in 
$100 million, they can put in $40 million and take $60 million and help fix the problem.  Now 
we’re not going to be able to leverage funding and toll roads. We’re probably leaving $200 
million behind by advancing Southern Gateway without a tolling component. There are also 
members of the RTC who say the only reason we’re using tolls was because there was no 
other option. The legislature wasn’t funding transportation. Congress wasn’t funding 
transportation. We’ll see where they end up voting. I think they’re getting more and more 
comfortable with the public’s interest to roll back tolls. Our staff said let’s roll it back dollar per 
dollar. When Propositions 1 and 7 passed, that was about 30 to 40 percent of the funding, and 
we’re cutting tolls by that same proportion. 

 
B. Allocation of funding between roadways and transit 

 
Question: Given the passing of Propositions 1 and 7, do you have an idea of how the remaining 
RTC funds would be divided between roadways and transit? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: If you look at slide eight of the presentation, you can 
see how we put together the mobility plan. It shows you, largely based on comments we’ve 
seen, that this is the best way to build a plan. Again, we’re a region of choice. Everyone has the 
opportunity to have their mode and neighborhood evaluated in regards to transportation. 

 
C. Dallas corridors proposed for further study 

 
Comment: In regards to the two Dallas corridors proposed for further study, is the idea to 
expand the lanes? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: We haven’t even started. I’m working with the Preston 
Hollow neighborhood, which is just east of the Dallas North Tollway. There’s way too much 
regional traffic on Northwest Highway. You can’t even plant a tree let alone build a sidewalk. 
We’re bringing together a whole host of possible strategies. The first one is to move as much 
regional traffic off Northwest Highway as we possibly can. If you look at a map, Loop 12 is a 
thoroughfare street. Fifty years ago it should’ve been built as a freeway loop, but it wasn’t. Now 
there’s too much traffic. It’s the most dangerous thoroughfare traffic area I’ve ever seen in my 
life. Half of that traffic is regional traffic that’s cutting through the neighborhoods because there 
is a failure in the regional transportation system. This is a statement I’m making, and I have no 
idea what the solution is yet. We have to really think outside the box. I think these 
neighborhoods deserve to get the regional traffic off their thoroughfare streets. 



29  

 

D. Induced demand theory 
 
Question: Do you agree with the idea of induced demand, the idea that building more lanes will 
exacerbate the situation? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: Over time, yes. You have to be very careful how you 
measure induced demand. When we did Central Expressway, people were coming to me to 
widen Greenville Avenue. Our computer simulation said the reason why we had too many cars 
on Greenville south of Northwest Highway was because Central Expressway was a disaster. 
When Central Expressway improved, the traffic from Greenville Avenue moved over to Central 
Expressway. We have to be very careful of the language we use when talking about induced 
demand. Regional people should be on regional facilities. Too often regional people are on 
neighborhood facilities. I don’t think it’s induced demand if we get the right people on the right 
facilities. We try to do a good job of picking the right mode in the right area. I think it’s a healthy 
conversation we need to have as long as we use the appropriate definition. 

 
Robert Porter, Citizen (Dallas) 

 
A.  Effects of technological advancement on transportation 

 
Comment: I’m concerned Mobility 2040 doesn’t take into account technological changes and 
how we’re going to accommodate them. Sources are saying by 2035, 75 percent of vehicles on 
the road will be autonomous. What does that mean? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: It means people aren’t going to build parking. Some 
say our vehicle miles traveled will increase because our vehicles will just travel around until we 
tell them to come get us. The direction that particular technology is headed is still up for 
discussion. There are lots of schools of thought, and we’ve studied the range of technology 
very closely. I think we’re able to build a four-lane Trinity instead of a six-lane Trinity because of 
technology, but I don’t think there’s so much technology we can’t build Southern Gateway or IH 
635 East. 

 
Summary of response by Chad McKeown: We’re just going through the specific 
recommendations in the plan tonight. The issue you’re talking about is addressed in the plan in 
our operational efficiency section. There’s a lot of application of this we can’t really do until there 
is a lot of fleet turnover. There are also still a lot of cars out there without technology. We’re at a 
point of recognizing it’s out there and make that point in the plan. There are so many developers 
and types of technology we can’t really make recommendations at this point in time. However, 
we update this plan every 18 to 24 months. We’re keeping up with it. 

 
Comment: I’m delighted to hear it. Last time I read the plan, I was looking for it. 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: It wasn’t in the previous plan. We have a permanent 
test corridor on IH 30. It’s a partnership we have with Federal Highway Administration, and we’re 
going to test driverless trucks and vehicles. 

 
Ken Dublé, Cedars Neighborhood Association (Dallas) 

 
A. Tunneling the southern corridor 



30  

Comment: Unless the proposed southern corridor is tunneled, there will be real negative 
impacts on the whole Oak Lawn area. 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: The southern corridor would have to be tunneled. 
That’s the only way we’re looking at it. The concept would be to relieve Woodall Rogers by 
building a tunnel from IH 35E to a parking garage in the Medical District where there would be a 
people mover station to access light rail, TRE, all the major hospitals and Love Field. You’d also 
be able to get over to the Dallas North Tollway. 

 
B. Future of Loop 12 

 
Comment: What are you proposing for Loop 12? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: It’s a similar concept to the one I just mentioned 
where there is an ability to go underground and access parking. We’re not making a freeway 
out of Loop 12. These are merely ideas and may go nowhere, but I think the residents of Dallas 
deserve to have a conversation about too much traffic on their thoroughfare streets. I may be 
totally unsuccessful, but I’d at least like to have the conversation. 

 
Michael Miles, DART (Dallas) 

 
A. Membership with transit authorities policy 

 
Question: Can you tell me more about the participating membership with the transit authorities 
policy you’re proposing? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: I think the members of DART, DCTA and The T aren’t 
getting enough credit for putting those monies into the transit system. In this particular case 
they’d be given credits so when they try to match projects with us, they wouldn’t have to use 
their local funds. We may be able to use our TDCs. I’m trying to develop incentives. 

 
B. Disincentives for urban sprawl 

 
Question: Have you considered any disincentives for urban sprawl? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: We don’t think we would have the votes to penalize. 
We live in a state where land owners have rights, but I wouldn’t trade it for anything. I’d rather 
use incentives than disincentives. 

 
Question: Can you give any insight into what the game plan will be for the 85th legislative 
session? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: Chairman Riley has triggered an early implementation 
of discussion by the RTC. He’s holding a major meeting next Thursday in regards to the public’s 
understanding of toll managed lanes. I think a lot of the legislative push is to have options. It’s 
why I’ve pushed Chad to title the plan as a region of choice. I think it will set us apart. If you 
adopt a philosophy to be an advocate for all, it’s limitless. Can you imagine 10.7 million people 
without advancing a rail system? I can’t. 



31  

Bud Melton, Citizen (Dallas) 
 

A. Incorporation of bicycle and pedestrian projects in the Mobility 2040 plan 
 
Comment: I’d like to know if there will be more trails incorporated into transit corridors? For 
example, Deep Ellum is now connected to Fair Park along the Green Line. 

 
Summary of response by Kevin Kokes: We didn’t show all the maps tonight, but there is a 
significant emphasis on first-mile and last-mile connections to rail stations and other transit 
facilities. There’s definitely language in there, and the maps are much more detailed than the 
previous plan. We show more connectivity not only to transit facilities but other major 
community destinations. 

 
Question: Referring to slide 16, are bicycle and pedestrian accommodations included in the 
funded major arterial improvements? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: I think we need to be careful in places where there is 
a lot of truck movement. But if a thoroughfare street gets approved, one of the first questions 
asked is what elements of the design need to be done to integrate bicycle and pedestrian 
activity into the street. 

 
Comment: There was a time when there was no guidance for bike lanes. Cities would put down 
a white stripe a few feet away from the curb and say they had completed the accommodation. I 
like seeing the bicycle and pedestrian accommodations you’re doing. They’re a real plus. 

 
B. Copper theft policy 

 
Comment: In regards to the copper theft policy on slide 27, does that include the use of solar 
and LED? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: We are taking this up because copper is being stolen 
so often on major freeways there’s no illumination, which is a public safety problem. It’s hard to 
get enough solar to illuminate a freeway, but there’s no reason why you can’t advance it as best 
you can. If in fact the policy system passes, a city could adopt that particular policy and work 
with us to minimize the issue. 

 
Evelyn Clemons, Pilgrim Rest Baptist Church-Crisis Ministry (Dallas) 

 
A.  High speed rail 

 
Comment: I didn’t hear any mention about the bullet train that’s going to connect Dallas, Fort 
Worth, Austin and San Antonio. Is a private developer working on that? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: It is in the plan, but we didn’t cover it tonight. A private 
developer is wishing to build a high speed train from Houston to downtown Dallas. Our office, 
working with TxDOT, wishes to extend that train from downtown Dallas to Arlington to downtown 
Fort Worth. We went to the Secretary of Transportation’s office in late fall to ask him to fund 
TxDOT to connect Fort Worth and San Antonio through high speed rail. The state plan looks like 
an inverted “U”, where Dallas-Fort Worth is the center of a statewide high speed rail system. 
That’s what you’ll see in the plan. 



32  

Question: Is it in the infancy stage? 
 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: We’re in environmental so it’s not too infant. 
Construction could start in the next year and a half if money is available. Dallas to Houston will 
be 100 percent private. We’re seeking federal funds for connectivity from Dallas to Fort Worth. 

 
Paul Carden, Citizen (Dallas) 

 
A. Potential express lanes throughout Mesquite and on IH 20 

 
Comment: I see we’re looking at expanding capacity on IH 20 and IH 635. In the Mesquite area, 
we have to move trucks around. As much as I like my car, trucks need a highway more than I 
do. How come we aren’t looking at doing an express option through Mesquite to complete the 
semicircle? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: Very good question. Fifteen or 20 years ago we said 
we needed to work on IH 635. We said we had to go from IH 20 up through Mesquite, Garland 
and all the way over to Luna Road on the west side of IH 35E . We divided it into three phases. 
Mesquite was phase one, U.S. 75 to IH 35E was phase two and the Garland section was phase 
three. This is a staged roadway, and the Garland project is slotted from a decision we made 20 
years ago. No, we aren’t going to go back and do IH 635, but we are going to do the IH 30/IH 
635 interchange. We’re also going to make improvements on the southside of IH 20, but we 
think we’ve completed the IH 635 section. 

 
Question: Will you be doing express lanes on IH 20? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: We’re going to let the data tell us what to do on IH 20 
since it’s a relatively new project. We don’t want to throw away major pieces and cost tax payers 
a lot of money. 

 
Summary of response by Chad McKeown: The purple lines you see on the map are strategic 
improvements within the existing right-of-way. There is one section in blue that’s located in 
Tarrant County. It’s a very complicated area and could have a proposed expansion. 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: It would be an express lane without a tolling 
component. If southern Dallas County needs improvement, it’s probably best to just widen it. 
Our big push will be to look at the frontage roads along U.S. 67 to provide better access to the 
Southwest Center Mall. 

 
B. Building new bridges 

 
Question: Are we adding new bridges across the lakes in Collin County? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: No. I think the big push will be IH 30 headed toward 
Greenville as well as U.S. 380, which is really a national truck route. We also want to make 
improvements to IH 20 on the south side of the city. We’re having lots of conversations with 
TxDOT about adding two additional bridges across Lake Ray Hubbard in the IH 30 corridor. 
You don’t necesarrily want to widen existing ones because every time there’s an accident you 
lose all capacity. We’re better off building another facility to create a more reliable system. 



33  

C. Funding the Southern Gateway project 
 
Question: I noticed you put $625 million toward reconstruction of the Southern Gateway. It also 
looks like there’s an additional $30 million available for the deck park. Can you explain that? 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: It’s $625 million plus $30 million. The deck park is 
roughly $50 million. We think we can get TxDOT to build $20 million. I’m hopefully going to get 
an additional $20 million from the RTC and then the city of Dallas would need to provide $10 
million as well as commit to maintaining the pedestrian capacity. 

 
Oscar Ward, Irving City Council (Lewisville) 

 
A.  Status of Midtown Express, diamond interchange and BNSF project 

 
Comment: I’m very much interested in Mobility 2040. Midtown Express is off to a great start. As 
funding becomes available, we would also like to see what the city of Irving calls the diamond 
interchange, where Loop 12, SH 183 and SH 114 converge, expedited and made a priority. I 
understand from staff that BNSF is in the plan as well. Are there transit or rail recommendations 
on the website? I’d like to see that. Thank you for everything. We appreciate it. 

 
Summary of response by Dan Kessler: Thank you, Councilman. I think that rail recommendation 
is in the plan, and we do recognize the importance of the Midtown Express. That corridor has a 
lot of investment. We appreciate your comments. 

 
Cezar Molina, City of Carrollton (Lewisville) 

 
A.  Rail vs. high-intensity bus service in the Cotton Belt corridor 

 
Question: You talked about rail in the Cotton Belt and mentioned that if you cannot expedite 
funding, you’ll be looking at high-intensity bus. Can you elaborate? 

 
Summary of response by Kendall Wendling: The RTC’s first priority is for there to be rail in the 
Cotton Belt corridor. However, if rail service can’t be expedited in the next 10 years or so, they 
do want to look at the potential for high-intensity bus. High-intensity bus is a type of premium 
bus service. It features travel time savings, commuter amenities and potential for fare discounts 
if buses do not arrive on time. In the chart on slide 20, it lists locations where bus service would 
potentially occur and serve as a precursor for rail service. However, the RTC’s preference and 
recommendation for Mobility 2040 is to proceed with rail in that corridor. 

 
Comment: Our city is very interested in rail as well. We would love rail to come to the Cotton Belt 
corridor as soon as possible, but we also want to be pragmatic. If funding isn’t there, we would 
like to see some kind of bus service fill the gap until we can find funding. Thank you, and I 
appreciate all the hard work you and your staff are doing. 

 
Summary of response by Dan Kessler: We certainly recognize the importance of what was 
known as the entire Cotton Belt corridor. I think Tarrant County is moving closer to implementing 
the TEX Rail. For some time we’ve recognized the importance of demographic forecasts. 
There’s growth that moves from southwest Tarrant County through northeast Tarrant County, to 
the southern portions of Collin and Denton Counties and pretty much follows the alignment of 
the Cotton Belt. We’re all focused on getting funding in place to ensure rail service in that 
corridor. 



34  

 

Helen Thorton, Chariot Bus Lines, East Texas Regional Planning Committee (Lewisville) 
 

A.  Transit services in East Texas 
 
Comment: I’m a mobility manager for Chariot Bus Lines out in Athens and would like to be an 
ear for them even though I live here in Lewisville. Also, I would like to know about transit 
services in East Texas.  

 
Summary of response by Dan Kessler: We have reached out to East Texas and will continue to 
do so. The Cotton Belt line runs all the way to Commerce, and we’ve had a lot of conversations 
with people at Texas A&M Commerce. I really do envision a day when we’ll have a true regional 
commuter rail line there. We’ve also had meetings in Mineola to discuss regional commuter rail. I 
do think a lifestyle is coming to Texas where people can live anywhere from 50 to 100 miles 
from the metroplex and jump on some type of commuter rail and have access to local cities. We 
have reached out in all directions, particularly to the south and east to make sure we’re planning 
for future rail options. If we can help in any way, let us know. 

 
Chad Edwards, DART (Arlington) 

 
A.  New funding sources for transit projects 

 
Question: On slide 32, you have $625 million for the eastern subregion plus $30 million for the 
deck park. Does that new funding source free up funding for other projects? 

 
Summary of response by Adam Beckom: Yes. It all goes back to the regional pool and at that 
point we’ll decide which projects to fund. 

 
Comment: The reason I ask is because transit is already limited in funding availability. It would 
be nice to be able to use supplemental funds for transit projects across the region. 

 
Deborah Spell, NAACP (Arlington) 

 
A.  High-intensity bus service in Arlington 

 
Question: I was looking at the high-intensity bus corridor for IH 30 on slide 19. It seems to stop. 
Is Arlington considered in any part of this? 

 
Summary of response by Chad McKeown: The reason it stops there is that is the limit of the 
managed lane on IH 30 that is under construction. Just east of Collins is where you have the 
opportunity to run a bus line. 

 
Question: Are you in talks with the city? 

 
Summary of response by Chad McKeown: This one is still being planned. It’s not far along, but 
we would engage the city of Arlington on that. 

 
Summary of response by Natalie Bettger: We do have a project on this corridor called our Value 
Pricing Pilot Program, which is what initiated the discussion of a high-intensity bus. The details 
haven’t been worked out as Chad allued to, but we are trying to see if we can tie some of these 
transit systems together a bit better. 



35  

Erin Moore, Office of Commissioner Theresa Daniel (Arlington) 
 

A.  Managing high-intensity bus service 
 
Question: Who would be operating these high-intensity bus services? 

 
Summary of respone by Natalie Bettger: It is still to be determined. We are working closely with 
our partner agencies because we have to work with them to make the connections successful. 
We haven’t declared who it would be yet. 

 
Look Out Texans Safety Campaign 

 

Bill Betzen, Citizen (Dallas) 
 

A.  Probability of getting injured while riding a bicycle 
 
Question: What’s the probability of getting injured while riding a bicycle? 

 
Summary of response by Kevin Kokes: We have not figured that calculation. When you view the 
maps, most of the dots represented on there are pedestrian accidents and fatalities versus 
bicycle. They’re color-coded. 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: Let us do some homework. I think that’s a very good 
question. 

 
Comment: It would be good to see a comparison between trails near streets and the growing 
Dallas trail system. I think it would help people to know that information. 

 
Susan Ernst, Citizen (Dallas) 

 
A. Bicycle and pedestrian fatality rates 

 
Comment: I rode my bike over here. I ride it a lot, and I was shocked at the fatality rates. 

 
Summary of response by Kevin Kokes: In the past five years there have been approximately 
500 fatalities in the region. It’s a greater percentage of pedestrians than bicyclists. 
 
Helen Thorton, Chariot Bus Lines, East Texas Regional Planning Committee (Lewisville) 

 
B. Bicycle coordination with NCTCOG 

 
Comment: I’m a member of an organization that is getting ready to give bicycles to a refugee 
population in Denton County. How can this plug into the Look Out Texans campaign? What’s 
the best way to approach this? 

 
Summary of response by Kevin Kokes: If you can provide us your contact information, we are 
trying to coordinate with local agencies and nonprofits to not only spread the safety message 
but to reach environmental justice communities and needy families in the region. 

 
Matt Gauntt, Citizen (Lewisville) 

 
A.  Traffic safety in North Texas 



36  

 

Comment: I wanted to bring up the issue of traffic safety. Texas has one of the highest fatality 
rates in the country. In 2013, there were over 3,000 fatalities here in Texas. You mentioned 
metropolitan Chicago, and I moved here recently from Illinois. I didn’t see anything in the 
presentations that specifically addressed traffic safety. Is there any way to prioritize corridors 
that have higher accident rates than others? 

 
Summary of response by Dan Kessler: Traffic safety is largely addressed through operational 
improvements that happen within our cities, particularly via TxDOT and those folks responsible 
for building and operating our facilities. It is something Michael Morris and myself deem very 
important, and I think that also rings true for our elected officials and staff. You don’t see it much 
in this plan, but we do have a team in our office that is dedicated to traffic safety. We’ve really 
spent the last decade developing a better relationship with TxDOT and the Texas Department of 
Public Safety to get access to traffic records and capture that data to make sure we’re taking 
into account traffic safety as one of the performance measures when we’re selecting projects. 
However, it’s a huge challenge, and we have a long way to go. 

 
Gustavo Baez, Baez Consulting (Arlington) 

 
A.  Comparison of Dallas-Fort Worth bicycle and pedestrian fatalities to New York and San 

Francisco 
 
Comment: Jeremy, the amount of fatalities that occurred between 2010 and 2014 caught my 
attention. Do you have any idea how we compare to New York or San Francisco? 

 
Summary of response by Jeremy Williams: It is high. We are consistently within the top 10 when 
you look at the rates. The rates the Federal Highway Administration used to designate focus 
cities account for the number of people walking and biking to work and the number of deaths. So 
when you look at the rates of people walking compared to the risk of them being killed as a 
bicyclist or pedestrian, Dallas and Fort Worth are consistently within the top 10. 

 
Other 

 

Brenda Arnold, Citizen (Dallas) 
 

A. Sink holes, electrical lines and city parks 
 
Comment: I think a lot of people are concerned about sink holes, electrical lines and the 
preservation of city parks. 

 
Summary of response by Michael Morris: We’re not the right point of contact for those concerns, 
but I can pass this information along to my colleagues. I think your point is important though. As 
our region continues to grow, we have to focus on quality of life elements. Transportation cannot 
function in isolation. We have to reach out and work with our local governments to create a 
broader vision. 



37  

 
 

WRITTEN COMMENTS 
 

Name and 
Title 

Agency, City 
Represented Topics Addressed Comments 

 
Cheryl Price 

 
Citizen 

Status of noise walls and 
construction along 
Skillman/Audelia 

 
Attachment 1 

 
Ken Dublé 

Cedars 
Neighborhood 
Association 

Studies involving Loop 12 
and Oak Lawn area 

 
Attachment 2 

Robert 
Porter 

 
Citizen 

Advancement of technology 
and its role in the future of 
transportation 

 
Attachment 3 

Michael 
Miles 

 
DART Draft Mobility 2040 

recommendations 
 
Attachment 4 

 
Bud Melton 

 
Citizen 

Bicycle and pedestrian 
projects and practices to 
prevent copper theft 

 
Attachment 5 

Evelyn G. 
Clemons 

Pilgrim Rest 
Baptist Church- 
Crisis Ministry 

Bullet train connectivity 
timeframe and decreasing 
the use of toll roads 

 
Attachment 6 

Brenda 
Arnold 

 
Citizen 

 
Pot holes, electrical lines and 
park presentation  

 
Attachment 7 

Annie 
Melton 

BMA and Bike 
Texas Board of 
Directors 

Funding bicycle and 
pedestrian projects 

 
Attachment 8 

Brad 
Knowlton 

 
Citizen IH 635 East, U.S. 75 and IH 

345 
 
Attachment 9 

 
Jesse Smith 

 
Citizen  Walkable, urban 

environments 
 
Attachment 10 

 
Michael Voit 

BikeDFW and 
Plano Bicycle 
Association 

Bicycle and pedestrian 
projects and road conditions 

 
Attachment 11 

 
Thomas 
Kriehn 

 
Lake Highlands 
“L” Streets 

Bus rapid transit, rail in the 
Cotton Belt corridor, bicycle 
and pedestrian routes, 
sound walls and toll roads 

 
Attachment 12 

 
Oscar Ward City of Irving, 

Councilman 
Projects included in Mobility 
2040 

 
Attachment 13 

 
Helen 
Thornton 

Chariot Bus 
Lines and East 
Texas Regional 
Planning 
Committee 

 
East Texas pollution and 
Lewisville training schedule 

 
 
Attachment 14 



39  

 

 
Matt Gauntt 

 
Citizen 

 
Roadway safety 

 
Attachment 15 

 
Anna 
Mosqueda 

 
 
DCTA 

Major roadway 
recommendations (SH 380 
and Southeast Denton 
County), high speed rail and 
Mobility 2040 Plan 

 
 
Attachment 16 

Nathan 
Reddin 

Town of 
Northlake 

SH 114 from SH 170 to the 
Texas Motor Speedway west 
of IH 35W 

 
Attachment 17 

 
Bruce Nipp Raba Kistner 

Infrastructure 
Draft Mobility 2040 
recommendation 

 
Attachment 18 

 
Paul Carden 

 
Citizen 

 
Regional capacity 

 
Attachment 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













cbaylor
Text Box



cbaylor
Text Box

cbaylor
Text Box

cbaylor
Text Box

cbaylor
Text Box





cbaylor
Text Box

cbaylor
Text Box





cbaylor
Text Box





















40  

WRITTEN COMMENTS SUBMITTED BY WEBSITE AND EMAIL 
 
Donna Bening, Dec. 20, 2015 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment as a pedestrian. 

Subject: parking lot  barriers unsafe for pedestrians. 
In mid-October, after a meeting I fell in a hospital parking lot, tripping on the cement log that is 
in front of every parking space –and in this case a poorly-lit area in the handicap parking 
spaces.  Since then, I see that the hospital has placed supplementary lighting as a remedy on 
the 4 corners of that building. In late December I am still healing from my fractures after two 
hospitalizations plus 10 days of rehab strengthening. While in the rehab center, I met 4 people 
who had been injured tripping over those “cement logs”  in various public parking lots . 
Fractures can be expensive and life-changing; fortunately I did not fall on my skull. 

 
Request: 
If those cement logs are necessary,  ask/recommend that cities and businesses that provide 
parking to have fluorescent paint markings or motion-detecting lights to warn pedestrians of 
hazards in their surroundings. If the paint markings for the parking spaces  are up to date and 
clearly visible,  the cement logs are not needed. 

 
Randall Heye, Jan. 7, 2016 

 
Subject: RE: Draft 2040 Veloweb and On-Street Bikeway Maps - Dec 2015 

Kevin, 

Per our telephone conversation, please consider this the Town of Sunnyvale’s request and 
public comment to include the Lake Ray Hubbard SES Rail Spur into the 2040 Regional 
Veloweb. This is the rail line that runs north-south in Sunnyvale from the Lake Hubbard Power 
Plant to the Dallas Water Utilities Eastside Water Treatment Plant. If there is anything more 
formal I need to do, please let me know. Thanks for your help. 

 
Jeremy Herbertson, Jan. 7, 2016 

 
I live on Kenwhite dr. in Merriman Park estates of Lake Highlands. 1. I support expediting the 
Skillman Gateway project a. To increase safety and straighten out the Skillman /LBJ /Audelia 
crossing b. I support the signature bridge to provide a real gateway into our community and 
CONNECT north of 635 with south of 635 c. We need the economic development this project 
will bring and the additional opportunities for development 2. I support expediting the Sound 
Walls along all residential areas protecting our neighborhoods from the public nuisance of 635 
a. Quality of life, property values, and individual peace of mind must be improved with the sound 
walls that have been promised for years b. With increased congestion and traffic the issues have 
increased exponentially, and the proper height and length of the sound walls are essential 
3. I support the LBJ East Expansion project with additional free use (tax funded) lanes even if it 
included optional tolled express lanes from 75 to Miller Road. a. I understand that without the 
partial tolling of the optional express lanes, the project could be delayed indefinitely, and this 
project is essential to our quality of life and mobility b. I support the 5:2:2:5 lane allocation with 5 
free use lanes going each way and 2 tolled lanes going each way (the tolled lanes are only from 
75 to Miller road exit and become free east of Miller Road) c. We need continuous frontage 
roads to help with access and provide opportunity for economic development to meet restaurant 



41  

and retail needs Secondary Issues: 1. I support expediting Skillman Gateway project and the 
sound walls separate from LBJ East expansion and begin ASAP! 2. LBJ East Expansion project 
should be the highest transportation project in the region 3. I support additional options including 
a pedestrian cap (similar to Klyde Warren Park) over 635 to provide green space and park 
opportunity for an area of the city in desperate need of recreational amenities 

 
Bob Trecartin, Jan. 7, 2016 

 
I am president of Oak Tree Village Homeowners Association in Lake Highlands. We are located 
one mile south along Skillman south of 635. We are at the southern edge of where the Skillman 
Gateway Project starts. I cannot attend the January 7 meeting, but I want to go on record in 
support of expediting the Skillman Gateway Project and Signature Bridge, Sound Walls along 
635, and the LBJ East Expansion Project with continuous frontage roads from US-75 to I-30. 
We accept that there will be traffic issues during the construction period, but expedited start and 
completion of these projects is extremely important to our neighborhoods in northeast Dallas. 
Thank you for listening. 

 
James Stewart, Jan. 8, 2016 

 
I support expediting the Skillman Gateway project, including increasing safety by straightening 
out the Skillman/LBJ/Audelia crossing. I support the signature bridge to provide a real gateway 
into our community and connect north of I-635 with south of I-635. Removal or at least 
mitigation of this extreme physical barrier will help provide better income diversity and create 
greater opportunity to curb the elimination of middle class housing offerings in our area. We 
need the economic development and the additional opportunities for development this project 
will bring. The increased tax base will be beneficial to multiple governments. 

 
Jeremy Crabtree, Jan. 11, 2016 

 
Subject: Infrastructure suggestion 

 
I posted this map to my Facebook timeline saying it would be nice if these two points were 
connected by some kind of bikeable path.  At present there isn't a way to get to a TRE station 
from anywhere south of Trinity Blvd without actually riding ON Trinity Blvd - which is incredibly 
dangerous.  My friend Zach Ford told me there are infrastructure planning hearings underway 
for the 2040 plan and suggested I attend and make this specific suggestion / comment or, send 
it to one or both of you guys. (since I probably can't make it to an actual hearing) 

 
To elaborate, I find the TRE is a nice way to shave miles off of the ride to and from Dallas or 
Fort Worth (I've done both), and it's nice to have a chance to rest coming back. The problem, 
however, is that there simply isn't a safe cycling route between central Arlington, where I live, 
and either of the two closest TRE stations - Bell or Centreport. The attached map shows the 
Northeastern end of the River Legacy cycling trail and its proximity to Centreport station. If this 
final connection could be made the River Legacy bike / pedestrian paths could be transformed 
from mere recreational facilities to actual, useful transportation infrastructure. To use my 
personal route as an example again, if I want to go to the TRE station in Hurst I have to ride 
about 11 miles of city streets including Trinity Blvd. If there were a connection at the two points 
on my map the distance wouldn't change, but I could ride nearly half of it non-stop through the 
River Legacy park, where I would not have to worry about, or impede, automobile traffic. 



42  

Aside from the additional rights of way and the physical installation of such a connection the 
existing trails would likely require lighting improvements for safety after dark. 

 
Thanks for passing this on, if you can. 

 

 
 

Response by Kevin Kokes, NCTCOG 
 

Thanks for your interest Jeremy and your comments below. Good news related to the 
CentrePort connection. Last September the RTC approved funding to construct a 12-ft 
wide path from CentrePort Station to the River Legacy Trail as well as a northward 
extension along SH360 to Trinity Blvd where the new American Airlines Corporate 
Campus will be located. It is the blue line shown on the attached map.  Extension of the 
River Legacy Trail was approved funding by the RTC in 2014 (pink line on the map) and 
the City of Arlington is currently working on the designs. 

 
A more detailed map of existing, funded, and planned trails and on-street bikeways in 
Tarrant Co. can be viewed by clicking on the following link: 
Tarrant County Bikeway Network - Draft December 2015 [PDF] 6 MB 

 
As for providing other comments in general about the need for additional bike and trail 
infrastructure in the 2040 Mobility Plan, there is a meeting this evening in Lewisville and 
another tomorrow afternoon here at NCTCOG. 
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/outreach/meetings/ 

 
You and other interested individuals may provide comments at either of the meetings, or 
submit comments via the 2040 Plan web page. In either format, these comments will 
become part of the official record of public input: http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/ 

 
 

http://www.nctcog.org/trans/outreach/meetings/


43  

Susan Kuddes, Jan. 13, 2016 
 
To NCTCOG re: Cotton Belt Project 

 
We are in full support of the “quiet rail” as opposed to a bus only solution. My neighbors and I 
want to ride a train as opposed to a bus anytime.  It is a more attractive prospect in many ways - 
fast, quiet, less pollution, more of a big city feel. I would not likely use a bus solution. I would  
feel proud to have that quiet rail as part of my community and city.  I like the image it provides. 
Please make note that our vote and overall support is with the “quite rail”. Thanks. 

 
Steve Turner, Jan. 13, 2016 

 
I feel that it is a mistake and I do not support your idea of adding ROUNDABOUT (Traffic Circle) 
intersections. Your proposal is no different than the ones that we got rid of years ago. The major 
"traffic Circle" at Harry HInes and Northwest highway was considered a traffic hazard and was 
done away with much to the cheering of motorists. Another traffic circle that was abandoned  
was the one on Buckner Blvd and Hwy 67 & 80 (where I 30 is now) near Buckner Orphans 
Home. What you are proposing is not any different than those were and they were abandoned 
because they did not work. Entering traffic interfered with exiting traffic. It is old technology and 
doesn't work. Try the traffic circle on Camp Bowie at I 20 in Ft. Worth. If you come down west on 
Camp Bowie and want to go to the German Restaurant there, you take your life in your hands 
when traffic is heavy Traffic circles have been tried and abandoned here and there is no reason 
to bring it back, B I G M I S T A K E. I don't want my tax money spent on such a foolish  
proposal. If you implement them they will not work and after many needless accidents, they will 
be abandoned again. 

 
John and Jeanne Irvin, Jan. 14, 2016 

 
Re: Cotton Belt Project 

 
My husband and I have been Richardson residents for over 30 years. We as well as our 
neighbors are excited about a “quiet rail” to the airport. We feel this would be a great addition to 
the Dallas rail system and one that would be used instead of a bus. We believe that if a bus 
(even a dedicated bus) is the only solution, most people will opt to just drive their cars instead.  
A bus would be hampered with weather, traffic, accidents, etc. 

 
Please take into consideration our vote and full support of the “quiet rail”. 

 
Jeremy Thomason, Jan. 14, 2016 

 
Mr. McKeown and Mr. Wendling, 

 
I am writing to you regarding the recent public meeting at Richardson City hall where the 2040 
Mobility plan was discussed. 

 
As it pertains to the Cotton Belt project, I am not in favor of any type of bus solution. This 
should be a rail solution. Rail projects a strong image for our community that buses simply do 
not provide.  As a business traveler, I frequent the mass transit systems in many cities around 
the United States and abroad, all of which have both bus and train.  I would never consider 
riding a bus for business travel, but have often used train travel in places like Chicago, London, 
San Francisco, Boston, New York, Washington D.C. and Paris.  Most often this travels involves 



44  

connections to the airports.  I think you would agree that these cities all have a reputation for 
having progressive mass transit systems that are internationally friendly.  And though Dallas 
may be many decades behind these cities in its development of mass transit, I believe that 
DART’s progress since the early 80’s has really improved our city’s international reputation 
especially in the development of the rail system. We are catching up very fast! Please don’t let 
the first opportunity to provide an East-West rail connector line to be compromised into a bus 
corridor.  I’ve told my school age kids that we will one day be able to walk to a train station from 
our house in Richardson near UTD and go to the airport, which is quite exciting to them and to 
me. 

 
Joyce Dreiling, Jan. 15, 2016 

 
Would like to see about these updates be done nearer to Greenville, Texas in the future.  Most 
of them are in Dallas or Arlington. 

 
Steve Turner, Jan. 16, 2016 

 
I feel that you are going over old technology which was tried and proved ineffective. 

 
Velinda Savariego, Jan. 18, 2016 

 
I am very interested in learning more about the Park being built as we are real estate investors 
that could develop some housing communities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











45  

WRITTEN COMMENTS SUBMITTED BY SOCIAL MEDIA 
More than a dozen have signed up for media training @NCTCOGtrans still a few spots left! – 
Susy Solis (@teamsusysolis) 

 
 
Influence the future of #DFW public transit! @NCTCOGtrans is hosting three public meetings: 
http://hubs.ly/H01LGcb0 – Child’s Alliance (@Child_Wellbeing) 

 
 
Engineering department: #Frisco is close to get funding for roundabout on Warren and Ohio. 
Funding will come from @TxDOT and @NCTCOGtrans – Community Impact FRS 
(@impactnewsfrs) 

 
Michael Morris of @NCTCOGtrans said having big projects ready is crucial to staying ahead of 
transportation needs. #TTF2016 – TxDOT (@TxDOT) 

 
 

 
 

http://hubs.ly/H01LGcb0


46  

Thank you for promoting this safety message about driving at night! –VPB – N. TX Tollway 
Auth. (@tolltagtidbits) 

 
 
How many of you knew about “Look out Texans?” program from @NCTCOGtrans 
http://www.lookouttexans.org  #Dallas #Bikes – Michael Sitarzewski (@msitarzewski) 

 
Dan Lamers @NCTCOGtrans #TRBAM, problems with @ManagedLanes user info. Upcoming 
@TxDOT @TTI project will look at it. – Nick Wood (@nickwood) 

 

 
 

 
 

http://www.lookouttexans.org/


47  

LBJ East Corridor Mobility Options @NCTCOGtrans #RTC action for Jan/Feb 
#LBJEastExpansion #driveD10 #transportation – B. Adam McGough (@Serving_Dallas) 

 
 
.@NCTCOGtrans dir Michael Morris says deck park decision won't come until CityMap 
release... http://transportationblog.dallasnews.com/2016/01/will-interstate-35e-south-of- 
downtown-get-citys-next-deck-park.html/ … – Brandon Formby (@brandonformby) 

 

 
 

 
 

http://transportationblog.dallasnews.com/2016/01/will-interstate-35e-south-of-


48  

Be safe out there ... always! – Texas Highways (@TexasHighways) 

 
 
.@RideDCTA to host open house meetings to discuss Connect and Connect RSVP bus service. 
http://bit.ly/1ZkHj5Y – NCTCOG Transportation Department (@NCTCOGtrans) 

 
@NCTCOGtrans Thank you! – DCTA (@RideDCTA) 

 
Last fall, I walked from the Trinity trails to the zoo. No sidewalks, fast traffic. This would be a 
huge improvement. Even though the deck park itself is underwhelming. – Chris Storm 
(@cstorm15) 

 
 
Check out what is happening at NCTCOG! @NCTCOGEP @NCTCOG911 @NCTCOGtrans 
http://campaign.r20.constantcontact.com/render?ca=01046f54-d492-4235-80f0- 
4d7e7f1bea9f&c=37a6e5e0-0970-11e5-bd5a-d4ae52806b34&ch=3887a8f0-0970-11e5-bef0- 
d4ae52806b34 … #regionalism – TARC (@txregionalism) 

 
Traffic relief for Dallas / Fort Worth in sight. @NCTCOGtrans picks priority highway projects for 
state funding http://bit.ly/1SkHFKF – WTS Dallas Ft. Worth (@WTSDFW) 

 
Dallas / Fort Worth area to grow from 7M to 10M by 2040. Comment on @NCTCOGtrans draft 
transportation plan: http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/index.asp … – WTS Dallas Ft. Worth 
(@WTSDFW) 

 
 

 
 

http://bit.ly/1ZkHj5Y
http://campaign.r20.constantcontact.com/render?ca=01046f54-d492-4235-80f0-
http://campaign.r20.constantcontact.com/render?ca=01046f54-d492-4235-80f0-
http://bit.ly/1SkHFKF


49  

Voting on LBJ/Skillman project, noise walls & LBJ East today. @NCTCOGtrans #AllInD10 – B. 
Adam McGough (@Serving_Dallas) 

 
 
Map of priority highway projects for Dallas / Fort Worth region. More on @NCTCOGtrans site 
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/index.asp … – WTS Dallas Ft. Worth (@WTSDFW) 

 

 
 

 
 

http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/index.asp


50  

Map of priority transit corridors for Dallas / Fort Worth region. More via @NCTCOGtrans 
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/index.asp … – WTS Dallas Ft. Worth (@WTSDFW) 

 
 
RTC passes: Advance noise walls, Advance Skillman/Audelia, Move LBJ east and Southern 
Gateway project forward @NCTCOGtrans – B. Adam McGough (@Serving_Dallas) 

 
 

http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/index.asp


51  

Widen everything south of 30 – partick kennedy (@WalkableDFW) 

 
 

@1DalM   @WalkableDFW Please note the @NCTCOGtrans declared "traffic 
nightmare" that is the southern gateway. – Dallas May (@1DalM) 

 
@WalkableDFW also note the desperate need for the @NCTCOGtrans crosstown 
connector. – Dallas May (@1DalM) 

 
 

@1DalM @WalkableDFW @NCTCOGtrans remind me why this is needed 
besides "cause we said so"? – Philip Goss (@gosspl) 

 
 

 
 



52 
 

Attention: @NCTCOGtrans – Chris Storm (@cstorm15) 

 
 
We want your feedback! Public meetings on the region’s long-term transportation plan, 
UPWP modifications and more are scheduled for Thursday, Jan. 7 in Dallas, Tuesday, Jan. 
12 in Lewisville and Wednesday, Jan. 13 in Arlington. For more information: 
http://bit.ly/1PIsYxv. – 
NCTCOG Transportation Department 

 
http://mobilitylab.org/.../major-u-s-dot-study.../ – Wylie H Dallas 

 
The CR Smith Museum is working with women aviation professionals to encourage middle 
school girls to explore the world of aviation. Learn more about the Girls Soar Aviation Day 
Camp at, http://on.fb.me/1UP23By – NCTCOG Transportation Department 

 
It is going to be a great camp! – American Airlines C.R. Smith Museum 

 
Denton is home to the only Tesla Supercharger in North Texas, connecting Texas to a 
network of more than 250 Superchargers nationwide and enabling long distance travel for 
Tesla drivers. The ribbon cutting ceremony will be held on January 30 at 10 am in Denton’s 
Rayzor Ranch Marketplace. – NCTCOG Transportation Department 

 

 
 

Sounds cool, but when can we get modern pedestrian and bike infrastructure... and 
have our streets upgraded to 21st century standards? – Wylie H Dallas 

 

 
 

 
 

http://bit.ly/1PIsYxv
http://mobilitylab.org/.../major-u-s-dot-study.../


TRANSPORTATION  
PUBLIC 
MEETINGS 

 

Draft Mobility 2040 Recommendations 
As the metropolitan planning organization for the Dallas-Fort Worth area, 
NCTCOG is required to maintain a long-range transportation plan that  
defines a blueprint for the region’s multimodal transportation system and 
guides expenditures of local, state and federal transportation funds. This  
long-range plan must have a time horizon of at least 20 years. Over the last 
year staff has been developing Mobility 2040, the next long-range  
transportation plan, and will present draft recommendations and information 
for public review and comment. Draft recommendations for major roadways, 
transit projects and bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure will be highlighted 
along with a program to encourage local agency adoption of transportation-
related policies and a list of near-term Transportation Improvement Program 
projects affected by the Mobility 2040 plan. Mobility 2040 is expected to be 
adopted by the RTC in March 2016. 
 
2016 Transportation Conformity 
Transportation Conformity is a federal requirement in nonattainment areas to 
conduct air quality analysis on projects, programs and policies identified in 
transportation plans, transportation improvement programs, federally funded 
projects or projects requiring federal approval. Conformity determinations 
must demonstrate consistency between ozone-causing emissions expected 
from the implementation of transportation plans and programs and  
requirements set by the state. Ten Dallas-Fort Worth area counties are  
designated nonattainment for the pollutant ozone. Staff will present  
information regarding draft results for the 2016 Transportation Conformity.   
 
Other Information to be Highlighted at the Meetings: 
 Vehicle Repair and Replacement Assistance Available Through  
       AirCheckTexas Program 
 Dallas-Fort Worth Clean Cities Annual Report and Recognition 
 Annual List of Obligated Projects 
 

For special accommodations due to a 
disability or language translation,  
contact Jahnae Stout at 817-608-2335 
or jstout@nctcog.org at least 72 hours 
prior to the meeting. Reasonable  
accommodations will be made. Para 
ajustes especiales por discapacidad o 
para interpretación de idiomas, llame al 
817-608-2335 o por e-mail: 
jstout@nctcog.org con 72 horas 
(mínimo) previas a la junta. Se harán 
las adaptaciones razonables. 

A video recording of the Arlington meeting will be online  

at www.nctcog.org/input. 

For anyone wanting to ride transit to the 
Feb. 10 public meeting, NCTCOG will 
offer a free connection to the meeting 
upon request on a first-come, first-serve 
basis. To request a free roundtrip ride 
between NCTCOG and the Trinity  
Railway Express CentrePort/DFW  
Airport Station, contact Jahnae Stout at 
least 72 hours prior to the meeting at 
817-608-2335 or jstout@nctcog.org.  

CentrePort/DFW Airport Station  

Arrival Options Feb. 10 

Eastbound Train  2:10 pm 

Westbound Train  2:20 pm 

 

TUESDAY, FEB. 9, 2016 

6:30 PM 
Richardson Civic Center 
411 W. Arapaho Road 
Richardson, TX 75080 
 

WEDNESDAY, FEB. 10, 2016 

2:30 PM 
North Central Texas 
Council of Governments 
616 Six Flags Drive 
Arlington, TX 76011 
 

MONDAY, FEB. 15, 2016 

6:30 PM 
Mary Lib Saleh 
Euless Public Library 
201 N. Ector Drive 
Euless, TX 76039 

ELECTRONIC ITEM 3.3

mailto:jstout@nctcog.org


ELECTRONIC ITEM 3.4





Vehicle Funding Opportunities - Nctcog.org

http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/VehicleFundingOpportunities.asp[2/3/2016 8:38:21 AM]

 

 

Select Language ? ?

Home > Transportation > Air Quality > Clean Vehicles

Print this page

 

Air Quality Funding Opportunities for Vehicles

Funding programs that address air quality, such as clean vehicle projects, are available from a number of Federal, State, local, and non-profit entities.  This site

provides links to various current and recurring grant opportunities and incentives for clean technology and infrastructure. It also provides information that is helpful

once you have received grant funding through NCTCOG.

 

 

 

Click the links below for a

program description and

relevant dates and details.

AirCheckTexas Drive a Clean

Machine Program
        X   General Public

Drayage Loan Program

Deadline: First Come, First

Served

  X      X    Private Sector

Federal and State Incentives and

Laws (Including Tax Credits)
X X X X X     X X  Private Sector

Propane Vehicle Incentives for

Texas
X X X  X X X  

Public Sector,

Private Sector

Texas Emissions Reduction Plan

(TERP) Emissions Reduction

Incentive Grant (ERIG) Program

NEW!

Deadline: February 2, 2016,

5 pm

X X X X X X    

Public Sector,

Private Sector,

General Public

Texas Emissions Reduction Plan

(TERP) Texas Natural Gas

Vehicle Grant Program

(TNGVGP) NEW!

Deadline: First Come, First

Served until May 26, 2017

X X X X  X    

Public Sector,

Private Sector,

General Public

NCTCOG Funding Opportunity Archive 

Air Quality Home

Air Quality Programs

Air Quality Committees

Air Quality Policy and
Regulations

Air Quality Publications

Car Care Clinics

Clean Vehicle Information

Major Air Pollutants

Funding Opportunities

Ozone Information

State Implementation Plan
(SIP)

Transportation Conformity

Transportation Home

Programs Topics A-J Topics K-Z Departments Services About Us

ELECTRONIC ITEM 3.5

http://www.nctcog.org/index.asp
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
http://www.nctcog.org/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/
http://www.nctcog.org/aqfunding
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/AQNonVehicleFunding.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/AQNonVehicleFunding.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/stayinformed.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/aqfunding
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#AirCheck
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#AirCheck
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#H
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#Federal
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#Federal
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#Propane
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#Propane
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#ERIG
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#ERIG
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#ERIG
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#tngvgp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#tngvgp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#tngvgp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/aqfunding2.asp#tngvgp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/archive.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/programs/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/committees/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/policy/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/clean/publications/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/hevp/ccc/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/conformity/pol/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/sip/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/conformity/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/programs/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/committees/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/policy/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/policy/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/clean/publications/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/hevp/ccc/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/conformity/pol/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/sip/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/sip/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/conformity/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/
http://www.nctcog.org/dept.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/dept.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/about.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/about.asp


Vehicle Funding Opportunities - Nctcog.org

http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/vehicles/investments/funding/VehicleFundingOpportunities.asp[2/3/2016 8:38:21 AM]

If you have any questions on upcoming funding opportunities, please e-mail AQgrants@nctcog.org.

 

12/21/2015 11/11/2015 RL/MG

 CONTACT US | SITE MAP | LEGAL | SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS       

 North Central Texas Council of Governments | 616 Six Flags Drive P.O. Box 5888 Arlington, TX 76005-5888 

 Main Operator: (817) 640-3300 | Fax: (817) 640-7806

mailto:AQgrants@nctcog.org
http://www.nctcog.org/contactus.asp?id_mnu=1
http://www.nctcog.org/site-map/index.asp
http://www.facebook.com/NCTCOGtrans
http://www.twitter.com/NCTCOGtrans
http://www.youtube.com/user/NCTCOGtrans
http://instagram.com/nctcogtrans?ref=badge


1

CLEAN CITIES OUTSTANDING FLEET 
RECOGNITION AND ANNUAL REPORT

Regional Transportation Council
February 11, 2016

E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 IT

E
M

 3
.6



2

About the Awards
Provide recognition to regional fleets

Improve air quality
Reduce petroleum consumption
Adherence to the Clean Fleet Policy

Utilizes Clean Cities/Clean Fleet Policy Annual Report
Increase annual report submittals
Fulfills reporting requirements for US Department of Energy

Scoring based on elements in the Clean Fleet Policy
Reduce emissions
Reduce overall fuel consumption
Partner with NCTCOG/DFWCC
Familiarity with air quality and petroleum reduction goals



3

Award Winners

Silver Winners
City of Euless
Town of Addison

Bronze Winners
City of Coppell
City of Lancaster
City of Lewisville
City of Richardson
City of Southlake
Dallas Area Rapid Transit
Town of Flower Mound



4

Annual Report

Collected every year and sent to the Department of Energy (DOE)

DOE goal to save 2.5 billion gallons of petroleum per year by 2020

DFWCC goal to increase petroleum reduction by 15 percent every year



5

DFWCC Staff Contacts 

Pamela Burns
Communications Supervisor
817‐704‐2510
pburns@nctcog.org

Kenny Bergstrom
Communications Specialist
817‐704‐5643
kbergstrom@nctcog.org

www.dfwcleancities.org
www.nctcog.org/fleetpolicy



ELECTRONIC ITEM 3.7





























. i 
I 

I 
I 

. 
I 

~-
I 

1
-"

·-
--J

 r-
-,

 .. 

I 

~ :::: l: - -.::
 ~ 

----

w;
l 

. 
po

ilr
oo

d 

r 
tJu-

~\'i
est_

e1 n
 

ij_
 

-,
0

 
I)

 
~-

5; 
LO

tJi
S 

, 
.0-

0' 
[<

.0-
W

 
~~
--

,. 
(2

 
---

-
~
-
-
-

----
--

~
=
~
-

----

·""
'-"

"-'
"" 

·-;
;;~

=-"
"-=

-'"
·~-

-:;
 -·-·

-·l 
w

. 

I 
/ 

I 
"-~

~ 
i 

/~ 
,1 

,,
~)

f
.. 
·.· CL=123 ·

14
' 

I 
• 

/ 
• 

. 
-

i 
/ 

' 
/ 

'"
 

I 
-' 

.· 
. 

"](
 

' 
.... 

'~""
"-·~

·_/.
: .. 

/ 
i 

" 
-

-
-~·

~· 
, •

•.
. 

.
.
 /

· 
, •

 .
-
w

,m
m

· 
jj

 ·
 
« 

r\ 1
 

: 
-·«

J" 
"'"

'· 
~~ 

I 
J 

~2:d
!/r!I:

J4i (
gl~;

;.,~
c 

t 
I 

C
•'Y

 
?

}-
(;

(;
IH

6
.9

 
r 

!/-
flo

'>
< 

,.~R
C.c.

; 

----

----
----

--·
 

P
ro

p
er

ty
O

es
c:

ip
\i

on
 

Jo
n

u
ar

y
1

2
.2

0
1

S
 

S
!W

A
T£

0 
in

 
th

e 
S

lC
lle

 
at

 
Te

xa
s,

 
C

oo
nt

y 
of

 
C

t>
llin

 
an

d 
C

ity
 o

f 
P

la
no

, 
be

in
s 

po
rt

 
of

 
t~
.e

 
Sa

nf
or

d 
B

ec
k 

S
ur

ve
y .

 .
Ab

st
ra

ct
 

N
o.

 
i3

, 
l>

tin
11

 
al

l 
of

 
u 

co
ile

d 
1.

75
-1

 
oc
1~
 

tr
ac

t 
of

 
lo

nd
 

co
nv

ey
ed

 
to

 
S

ch
u

lt
l 

P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s.

 
L•

.:l
. 

~y
 

de
ed

 
re

co
rd

ed
 

in
 V

ol
um

e 
52

51
, 

P
ag

e 
35

17
 

o
f 

lh
t~

 
D

ee
d 

R
e<

:o
r<

ls
 

of
 

C
ol

lin
 

C
ou

nt
y,

 
Te

<e
JS

 a
nd

 
oi

l 
of

 
o 

co
ile

d 
0

.3
"!

4 
o

cm
 

tr
a

ct
 

of
 

la
nd

 
::o

ov
ey

ed
 

to
 

S
ch

u
ltz

 
P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s.
 

lt
d

. 
by

 
de

ed
 

re
co

rd
ed

 
in

 
Vo

h.
1m

e 
52

24
, 

P
ag

e 
3

18
6

 
Gt

 
th

e 
D

ee
d 

R
ec

or
ds

 
of

 
C

ol
lin

 
C

ou
nt

y.
 

fe
xo

s 
ol

ld
 

lh
l'

:~
~ 

p~
~m
is
es
 

\>
eii

i<
J 

m
~
r
e
 

po
rt

ic
ul

or
ly

 
de

sc
ri

b
e<

! 
as

 
!;
>~
lo
w
s:

 

eE
::;

IN
N

iw
.; 

a
t 

a 
1

/2
 i

nc
h 

ir
oo

 
ro

d 
c
o
p
p
~
 

"R
oo

m
e"

 f
ou

nd
 

!O
f" 

co
m

er
 
mo
r~
in
g 

th
e 

in
\e

rs
ec

ti
o~

 
oi

 
\h

e 
so

u
th

 
ri

g
h

l-
o

l-
•o

y
 

lin
e 

ol
 

tn
e 

5!
. 

L;
:IU

iS
 

o
M

 
$

o
u

!h
•e

.'<
le

rn
 
RC
~i
tr
oo
d 

(2
00

 
fo

ot
 

w
id

e 
ri

g
h

l-
o

i-
••

o
y

) 
an

rl
 

th
e 

ea
st

 
ri

g
h

t-
o

f-
w

ay
 l

in
e 

of
 

K
 A
~e

nu
~ 

c~
d 

\h
~ 

ne
rt

h
w
e
sl

c
o

rr
.e

ro
fs

o
id

1
.7

5
4

o
c
re

\r
o

c
t;

 

TH
EN

C
E 

wi
th

 
sa

id
 

so
ut

h 
ri

g
h

t-
o

f-
w

ay
 

lin
e 

an
d 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
lin

e 
of

 
sa

id
 

1.
75

4 
~'

re
 

tr
ac

t.
 

N
or

th
 

70
"1

1
'3

0
" 

En
s\

, 
4.

:B
..l

.l!
 

fe
et

 
\:'>

 
o 

1/
2

 
in

ch
 

ir
on

 
ro

d 
~o

pj
l<

:!
d 

"R
oo

m
e"

 
fm

.n
d 

fo
r 

co
rn

er
 m

a
rk

in
g 

th
e 

in
te
rs
cc
t;
~n
 

of
 

sa
id

 
so

u
th

 
ri

gh
t-

a
l-

w
ay

 
lin

e 
an

d 
th

e 
w

es
t 

ri
g

h
t-

of
-

w
ay

 
lin

e 
of

 
t.!

un
ic

ip
ol

 
A
~e
n
u
e
 

on
d 

th
e 

no
rt

ne
os

t 
co

m
er

 
of

 
so

id
 

1.
75

4 
ce

re
 
lr
~c
t;
 

TH
EN

C
E 

'lf
ilh

 
sa

id
 

w
es

t 
ri

<
jh

t·
of

-w
oy

 
li
n~

. 
th

e 
ea

st
 

lin
e 

of
 

sa
id

 
1.
7
5
~
 
oc
r~
 
tr
oc
~ 

cr
.;!

 
th

e 
ea

st
 

lin
e 

of
 

so
id

 
0.

1:
!7

4 
ce

re
 

tro
Jc

t 
os

 
lo
!l
t>
w~
 

St
>u

lh
 

0
3

'2
3

'2
2

" 
E

as
t, 

12
.7

9 
fe

et
 

to
 

o 
1

/2
 

in
ch

 
ir

on
 

ro
d

 
c
o
p
p
~
 

"R
oo

m
e"

 
fo

un
d 

fe
r 

co
m

er
 

m
o;

ic
in

g 
\h

e 
be

<]
iM

in
<J

 
of

 
o 

:u
f'<

e 
lu

th
e
ri

g
h

l,
 

S
ou

th
we

st
er

ly
 

.. a
n 

3c
id

 
cu

rv
e 

to
 

th
e 

r'<
jh

l 
ho

vi
n9

 
o 

ra
di

us
 

of
 

..
0

0.
0

0
 
f~

et
, 

o 
ce

nt
r:

JI
 

an
gl

e 
of

 
5

7
3

5
'2

7
",

 
on

 
ar

c 
le
n~
th
 

of
 

3
6

7
.2

7
 

fe
et

 
an

d 
o 

ch
or

d 
be

or
irl

<J
 

<:m
O 

d
is

ta
n

ce
 

of
 

S
ou

th
 

2
3

'4
9

'+
8

" 
'l

in
t,

 
J5

4.
5C

 
le

!t
 

b 
c 

1/
2

 
i1

eh
 

ir
on

 
ro

d 
ca

pp
ed

 
"R

oo
m

e
' 

fo
un

d 
fo

r 
co

rn
er

, 

So
~t

h 
5

0
'0

8
'0

1"
 

Ill
es

t,
 

9.
51

 
fe

e\
 

to
 

o 
1/

2
 

ir
,e

h 
iro

n
 r

od
 
co
pp
~d
 

"R
e
a
m
~·
 

'o
u

r.<
! 

fo
r 

co
rn

er
 

m
ar

ki
ng

 
th

e 
oe

qi
nn

in
q 

oi
 

o 
cu

r•
e 

In
 
tn

~ 
le

ft
, 

an
d

 

So
:~

th
w
cs
\e
rl
y 

-..
 itn

 
sa

id
 

cu
rv

e 
to

 
th

e 
le

ft
 
ho
~i
ng
 

o 
ra

di
us

 
of

 
7
~
.
0
2
 

fe
et

. 
c 

ee
n:

_m
; 
on

~:
! 

oi
 

0
9

'2
€

'0
7

",
 

ll
n 

or
e 

le
n~

:h
 

of
 

12
3

.2
E 

fe
~t

 
on

d 
o 

cl
\o

fd
 
be
~r
in
g 

O
'ld

 
d

is
ta

n
ce

 
of

 
S

ou
th

 
45

"2
4

'5
7"

 
W

es
t, 

12
3.

14
 

te
et

 
to

o
 
'/

2
 :

nc
h 

ir
nn

 
ro

d
 

C
Jp

jle
d 

"R
oo

m
e"

 i
o

Jn
d

 
fo

r 
co

rn
er

 
m

or
ki

n9
 
lh
~ 

no
rJ

'J
eo

st
 

co
rn

er
 

of
 

o 
C

(ll
l!d

 
0.

8
18

4
1 

oc
re

 
tr

o
ct

 
ce

~v
er
-d
 

\o
 :

h
e 

C
ity

 
:Jf

 
~
c
n
o
 

!Jy
 o

.i
~e

d 
re

co
rd

!<
:! 

in
 

D
oe

um
en

t 
~
o

. 
9
2
~
0
0
1
41

5
9 

of
 

!l'
le

 
O

ee
d 

R
ec

or
ds

 
of

 C
ol

lin
 

C
ou

nt
y,

 
Te

~~
s 

~
-1
d 

th
e 

>O
ut

ile
o

st
 

co
rn

er
 

of
 _

;o
id

 
0

.6
7

4
 

oc
::

r~
 

tr
ee

!;
 

T
H

[N
C

E
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

lin
e 

of
 

sJ
id

 
O
.
S
H
l
~
l
 

ac
re

 
tr

ac
t 

an
d

 
\h

e 
so

ut
h 

h!
'e

 
of

 
,.,

.;f
d 

0
.6

74
 

')
er

e 
\:

oc
t.

 
)<

J~
,:

i!
o 

a9
·2

o'
:;9

· 
w
~
~

·-· 

17
0

.2
6 

fe
et

 
to

 
0 

1
/2

 
in

ch
 

ir
on

 
ro

d 
co

:>
pe

d 
·~

oo
me

" 
fo

u
nc

1 
f~
r 

cc
rn
~r
 

in
 

•J•
~ 

~e
s

' 
ri

9h
•-

al
-w

o~
 

!;,
-~

 
r>

f 
"= 

A
vM

ue
 

nn
d 

mo
rk
i~
q 

tr
.e

 
n

o
rt

n
"'

e'
t 
c
o
m
~
r
 

of
 

so
id

 
0

.8
1

6
4

1
 

ac
re

 
tr

ac
t 

on
d 

th
e 

so
u:
~w
es
t 

:o
r"
~'
 

oi
 

so
J•

d 
:J

.6
74

 
ce

re
 
tr

o~
!.,

 

TH
~J
>.
C
[
 

w
ith

 
so

id
 

ec
st

 
ri
gh
'~
af
-

o~
oy
 

lin
",

 
th

( 
••

es
t 

lin
e 

C'
f 

~o
ic
1 

0.
87

~ 
~~
r!
 

!;-
~.

:~
 

c
r1

 
1'·

.~
 

·~
e~

l 
li
~~
 

:.
! 

sa
id

 
'.

7
S

4
 

'l:
r•

c 
tr:

>c
L

 
N

or
th

, 
2

,4
.6

5
 

fe
ei

 
:o

 
tl1

e 
P

om
t 

vt
 

\j
~J

ir
on

in
<;

 
om

l 
CO

J•
Iu

i<
'i"

g 
2.
1~
21
! 

<I
C~

3 
;,

f 
l<

;r 
~.

 
Mr
.f
~ 

~:
l'

,:
:_

,i
.f

di
}i

!.
J!
::
 

I 
he

re
by

 c
er

ti
fy

 
\h

ot
 

on
 

\h
e 

31
st

 d
~~
 

c!
 
(o

e:
~'

Tl
be

r,
 

20
1i

, 
th

is
 

SJ
r•

e)
' 

•C
• 

~
'·•

rv
e-

r 
01

1!1
 

is
 

ir
u2

, 
co

rr
i!C

l, 
:m

<f
 
~'
~u
rc
t~
 

rn
 

\o
 

th
e 

tC
U

'Id
af

iE
S 

o.v
. 

o
r~
~•
 

b
J

i:o
:Ji
~9

~ 
on

d 
;m
iJ
I'
o~
ei
T-
!r
>t
s 

lh
"r

co
n,

 
if 

G~
i.

 
on

d 
os

 
to

 
:h

r: 
ot

he
r 

m
:r

t:
N

s 
~
n
~
w
r,

 
~·
J~
e
m
~
n
\
s 

o
n

d
 

ri
gh

ts
-o

f-
w

O
)' 

oo
d 

\lf
 

r.l
l 

·i
g

h
\s

-o
i-

~
r::

r. 
eo
o.
em
en
t~
. 

~ 
.1

 :
m

: 
, 

i ~
~ 

t'
lo

:l
~~

 
be

en
 

od
·.i

se
d,

 
w

ht
lh

er
 

w
 

ne
t 

o
f 

re
to

cd
, 

of
i6

ct
ir1

9 
tr

.e
 

su
t.

e
c
 

pr
•)p

o;-
rt

j·,
 ·

Jn
<i

 
'J

-~
 

~
~<
':
~~
~ 

us
 s

ilo
"'

" 
:m

 
tt.

e 
Sl

li"
W

!'f,
 
tn
~r
e 

·lr
c 

~o
 

en
cr

o1
cm

nc
oh

 
up

on
 

\M
 s

u}
;c

l 
v~
~~
"'
:l
 

b)
' 

im
pr
·~
•·
t1
l!

.'
ll
h 

o
'l

 a
1:
oc
~r
.\
 
pr
op

e·
!~

, 
;n

er
e 

or
e 

n:
> 

en
cr

oa
ch

m
en

t:
; 

01
1 

cd
ju

c
~
n\

 
~r
o1
:
~
rl

y,
 
sl
re
~t
s

, 
:x

 
o!

le
y5

 
P

i 
;tn

y 
""

rr
.;

. 
!,

.,
,-

h
 

··•
• 

rt
.c

 
~
~b
je
<:
l 

~
ro

pe
rt

y,
 

~n
:l

 
\h

e
re

 
o

r~
 
~
J
 

c<
:d

,i
d5

 
or

 
d

;;
c
re
~J

rx
ie

s 

Tn
is 

su
r'<

!ly
 

co
m

pl
ie

s 
,.;

u,
 \

he
 
cu
rr
~~
t 

le
x~

~ 
So

c:
et

y 
ot

 
f'r

ol
es

si
on

ol
 
Su

rv
e)

·o
r~

 
s·
.o
~j
or
.~
; 

af>
ll 

5~
~

:.i
fi<

;-:
~\
Oo
r.
~ 

fo
r 

o 
C

ot
eg

or
y 

lr
\ 

C
or

.o
 \

i~
n 

I
I
S
u~

'<
ey

 

_ h
.:L

/(
! _

__
_

_
_

_
 _ 

M
l
t
t
:
:
I
~
F
 

·-
-
-
-
-
-
-

R
eq

is
te

rt
d

P
ro

fe
ss

io
o

o
ll

ao
c 

S
u

rv
ey

o
rN

o
_

5
5

9
3

 

ill
 ·t·
 

!!>
 

"' ~ l: ~
 

~
 

0
' 

4
0

' 
8

0
' 

~-
--S:o\

e:
1

".
,4

()
' 

12
th

 S
tr

ee
t 

N
ol

es
: 

1)
 C

t.! 
is

 
o 

co
n

tr
ol

lin
g 
m
on
~m
en
t:
 

2)
 
Su
rv
e~
or
's
 

sig
n<

1\
u

re
 

..-i
ll 

op
pe

or
 

in
 

;e
Q

 
in
~ 

en
 <

;e
rti

fie
d 

co
-p

ie
s:

 
J)

 S
ou

rc
e 

be
or

in
q 

De
r 

til
e 

de
ed

 
to

 
5t

lu
fu

 
Pr

ot
>e

rt
ie

s,
 

Lt
d.

 
rt

cr
..-

de
d 

in
 

V
ol

um
e 

52
51

, 
Po

qe
 
35
~7
 

of
 t
h~
 

C
.cr

.d
 

RC
<"

=d
• 

of
 

C
ol

lin
 
Co

~n
;y

, 
Te
~o
s;
 

4)
 

tlo
 

po
rt

io
n 

cf
 

th
e 

su
b

je
ct

 
pr

op
er

ty
 

is
 

sh
ow

n 
to

 
~!

 
wi

ti
~~
 

o 
Sp

e<
.:i

(li
 

flo
od

 
Hu

~o
rd

 
A

re
c 

in
um

Ju
le

d 
by

 
10
0-
)'
E~
r 

f:o
od

 
pe

r 
t.l

op
 

tlo
_ 

46
08

5C
03

30
 J

 
of

 
lh

e
F.

E
.M

,..
Fi

oo
dt

ns
ur

ar
n:

e
R

ot
eM

<
Ip

•
fo

rC
ol

ti
n

C
ou

nl
)'

,l
e>

M
O

n
d

lr
K

:O
rp

o
!'

O
ie

<
IA

re
o

s.
d

o
le

d
Ju

n
e
2

.
20

0
9

(Z
o

n
e
)(

);
S

)T
hi

ss
u

rv
ey

 
10

0S
 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 
~r
it
ho

ut
 

th
e 

be
ne

fi
t 

of
 

Ii
tle

 
co

m
m

it
m

en
t;

&
) 

Th
is

 
su

rl
e)

l 
is 

io
lM

de
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

el
el

us
iv

e 
us

e 
o

ll
h

t 
he

re
on

 
no

te
d 

o .
. n

c
r,

 
o~
rc
ha
se
r.
 

Iit
le

 c
om

pc
ny

 
I;J

n(
J/

or
 

m
:x

ig
o9

03
 c

om
pa

ny
 o

nl
y 

on
d 

th
e 

su
rv

ey
 

is
 

m
od

e 
in 

ou
on

!o
rn

:e
 

wi
th

 
th

e 
ti

tl
e 

co
m

m
ilr

nl
!n

l 
re

lu
el

lO
';e

d 
b;.

-
th

e 
G

t 
oo

m
be

r 
sh

ow
n 

he
re

on
 

<I
S 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
by

 
th

e 
ab

ov
e 

st
~
te
d 

tit
le

 
co

m
pO

oJ
. 

L
eg

en
d

 

~
o
C
o
p
p
e
d
~
R
O
I
I
S
e
1
 

()
ee

.:l
 
~1
<0
'1
!>
 

C
o

li
n

C
o

o
n

ly
 
T•

-

S
ur

ve
y 

o
f 

2
.6

2
8

 A
cr

e
s 

S
a

n
fo

rd
 B

e
ck

 S
u

rv
e

y 
A

b
st

ra
ct

 N
o

. 
73

 
C

ity
 o

f P
la

no
, 

C
ol

lin
 C

ou
nt

y,
 T

ex
as

 
Ja

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
5

 

CI
.i 

C
...

.II
'O

iio
ot

""
'"'

""
on

t 
TB

PL
S 

F
irm

 
N

o.
 

10
01

31
00

 
P

:A
C

/2
D

14
04

/A
C

81
65

69
.D

W
G

 
.J

}lP
 

'-'<
M 

Pc
.le

 
@

"'
I 

"'
ol

oo
lo

lo
\o

, 

.Q
..F

\1 
'-
·~
··
" 

C
lo

a:
.l

ft
,.

fo
n

c
o 

r..,.
 

Ro
om

e La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yi

n
g, 

In
c.
$

 
'"

-
20

00
 A

vt
nu

e 
G

, S
m

te
 8

10
 

Pl
an

o,
 T

ex
as

 7
50

74
 

Ph
on

e(
Q

72
)4

2l
-4

17
2 

i 
F

ax
(9

72
)4

2)
-7

)"
B

 
Yi

\v
v.•

.ro
om

c:
su

rv
c:

yi
ng

.c
om

 







TAPS to suspend operations for 
90 days so staff can focus on 
finances 
 
Valerie Wigglesworth Follow @vlwigg Email 
vwigglesworth@dallasnews.com  
Published: January 6, 2016 5:37 pm  

The TAPS Public Transit board of directors voted unanimously today to temporarily 
suspend its operations for 90 days so the agency can focus on getting its finances in 
order. 

Several area transit agencies have agreed to step in to provide on-demand bus service 
to its riders in a six-county area, hopefully by using existing TAPS vehicles and 
existing TAPS drivers. 

Officials said Wednesday that they don’t believe TAPS riders will notice any lapse in 
service. Riders should continue to use the TAPS toll free number to reserve rides, 
which will are restricted to seniors and those with disabilities as well as those needing 
medical-related trips such as doctor appointments. 

The transition will happen as soon as possible, according to the board resolution 
approved after a two-hour executive session Wednesday. 

“We’re going through a very tough time, but we’ re going to turn thing around,” board 
chairman Spanky Carter said, emphasizing that this move is not the end of TAPS 
Public Transit. 

The plan, which has been in the works for nearly two months, is to focus on getting 
money in the door and getting bills paid, he said. 

The 19 remaining administrative staffers will be focuses solely on TAPS’ finances 
and finding the documentation needed to request reimbursements from the Texas 
Department of Transportation, the Federal Transit Administration and the North 
Central Texas Council of Governments. 

ELECTRONIC ITEM 3.8

http://thescoopblog.dallasnews.com/author/vwigglesworth/
https://twitter.com/@vlwigg
mailto:vwigglesworth@dallasnews.com
mailto:vwigglesworth@dallasnews.com


Interim CEO and executive director Tim Patton said after the meeting that the goal is 
to come back at the end of 90 days and resume bus services for the six-county area. 
The board voted last year to terminate all services in Collin County. There is no 
discussion at this time about resuming service in Collin County. 

“It’s really a positive move for us,” Patton said. “It reduces our costs day to day and 
let’s us focus on financial recovery.” 

The move will also help the agency to catch up on payroll. Its current employees did 
not receive their most recent paychecks. And all the employees laid off in November 
are still waiting for their final paychecks. Patton said TAPS owes about $460,000 in 
back payroll. 

“This is our best opportunity to pay them,” Patton said of the suspension. 
http://thescoopblog.dallasnews.com/2016/01/taps-to-suspend-operations-for-90-days-so-staff-can-

focus-on-finances.html/ 

 

http://thescoopblog.dallasnews.com/2016/01/taps-to-suspend-operations-for-90-days-so-staff-can-focus-on-finances.html/
http://thescoopblog.dallasnews.com/2016/01/taps-to-suspend-operations-for-90-days-so-staff-can-focus-on-finances.html/


More North Texans 
working from home and 
loving low-stress 
‘telecommute’  

Number of Americans who have worked from home has quadrupled since 1995 

Technology gives rise to online workplace 

New perk for employees: flexible hours 

  

By Gordon Dickson 

gdickson@star-telegram.com 

When her children became teenagers, Julie Geiger decided it was time to put her master’s degree 

back to use and return to work. 

But the former public relations executive, who for several years had been a stay-at-home mom in 

Frisco, still wanted to be at least partially in control of her schedule. 

 
So Geiger joined the growing number of Americans who have found jobs that allow employees to 

spend at least some — and in some cases all — of their shifts at home. 

“Those kids and a desire for a work/life balance are the reason I opted to work at home,” said 

Geiger, who for the past seven months has worked as a marketing specialist for DVM Elite, a firm 

that helps veterinarians across the United States and Canada with publicity. 

Geiger works at home five days a week. . She spends a lot of time on telephone conference calls, 

and makes presentations for clients on a computer screen that she controls but that they can also 

view online. 

mailto:gdickson@star-telegram.com
http://www.dvmelite.com/


Work numbers  

A variety of data sources all show that the number of Americans working from home — also known 

as telecommuting — has been on a steady rise for two decades. 

Thirty-seven percent of workers have telecommuted at least once, a whopping four times the 9 

percent of workers who reported working from home in 1995, according to a Gallup annual work and 

education poll released late last year.  

It’s a virtual company. We function as a company but I have never met my co-workers in person. 

Julie Geiger, who works in her Frisco home 

An estimated 13.4 million workers now spend at least part of their work week at home, including 9.4 

million who work at home essentially every work day and 4 million who do their jobs from home 

occasionally, according to the Census Bureau’s American Community Survey, based on in-depth 

questions during the 2010 Census. That’s a 69 percent increase from 1997, when 9.3 million 

employees telecommuted — 6.4 million every day, and 2.9 million occasionally. 

Also, 22 percent of workers surveyed nationwide said they telecommuted more in 2014 than the 

year before, according to FlexJobs, an online company that, for a fee of $14.95 a month (or $29.95 

for three months), helps prospective employees such as Geiger link up with companies that offer a 

work-from-home option. 

“Flexible work will not only play a significant role in the future of work, it will be a key differential of 

successful employers,” said Sara Sutton Fell, FlexJobs chief executive. “Telecommuting and other 

types of work flexibility are starting to have a much-needed impact on the 21st century workplace, 

and there is no sign of it slowing down.” 

Old work habits obsolete  

Alan Pisarski agrees. Pisarski has written a series of books titled Commuting in America that track 

long-term trends in workers’ driving habits, and in a recent interview he said he sees the 8-to-5 shift 

gradually becoming obsolete. 

Part of the reason is more workers seeking jobs that allow them to avoid wasted hours stuck in 

traffic. Also, employers who were once reluctant to let workers spend time unsupervised at their 

homes are now offering telecommuting as a job perk. 

For many workers, the ability to keep flexible hours and spend time at home is worth more than a 

higher salary, Geiger said. 

http://www.gallup.com/poll/184649/telecommuting-work-climbs.aspx
http://www.gallup.com/poll/184649/telecommuting-work-climbs.aspx
https://www.census.gov/hhes/commuting/files/2012/Home-based%20Workers%20in%20the%20United%20States%20Infographic.pdf
https://www.flexjobs.com/


Fort Worth-based American Airlines last year hired more than 8,700 workers, including 1,400 

reservation agents. Of those, 400 were home-based. 

About 13.4 million Americans telecommute, including 9.4 million who do their jobs at home full-time 

and 4 million who work from home occasionally, according to the U.S. Census Bureau. 

American auditioned those candidates using voice interview software, said Eva Zablodowsky, a 

new-hire recruiter assistant. The program, which has also been used by pilot and flight attendant 

recruiters, is sent to applicants who make it through the online application and screening process. 

Job candidates are told to call in and are recorded answering five questions. 

Some employers are initially reluctant to let workers do their jobs at home, fearing they won’t work 

as productively with the distractions of their personal lives so readily available. But many employers 

find that it’s a worthwhile tradeoff to allow workers to spend at least a day or two per month at home 

because it often provides a huge boost in morale, said Sonya Landrum, a principal transportation 

planner at the North Central Texas Council of Governments. 

“More companies are making it available,” said Landrum. “It’s just a matter of getting a complete 

buy-in from middle management.” 

No place like home  

In her seven months working for DVM Elite, Geiger, 46, has developed friendships with several co-

workers, bonds that have been formed even though she has never met them face-to-face. 

“It’s a virtual company. We function as a company but I have never met my co-workers in person,” 

she said. “The employees are all around the country. We have our daily huddles. I speak to them 

every day on the phone.” 

From a small office in her Frisco home, Geiger works full-time helping veterinarians across North 

America develop advertising, marketing campaigns and websites. 

Her husband works outside the home and her children are at school. Her dog, Sadie, is often by her 

side in the home office. 

“I can sit at my desk for 30 hours per week. It allows me to get the kids to school, walk the dog and 

be at my desk by 8:30,” she said. 

Geiger added that, although she might make a higher salary with better benefits and health care 

coverage by working in a more traditional workplace environment, she benefits in other ways. 



“I don’t have to factor in [the cost of] my wardrobe,” she said. “There are no commuting costs, which 

can be a big expense including gas and trips down the tollway. … And my family eats out less 

because I’m at home in time to prepare it.” 

THIS REPORT INCLUDES INFORMATION FROM THE STAR-TELEGRAM ARCHIVES. 

Gordon Dickson: 817-390-7796, @gdickson 

 
Read more here: http://www.star-telegram.com/news/traffic/your-
commute/article54516655.html#storylink=cpy 

 

tel:817-390-7796
https://twitter.com/gdickson


Could a deck park rejoin and 
rejuvenate the Oak Cliff 
neighborhoods that I-35E tore 
asunder?  
By NANETTE LIGHT and CONOR SHINE  
Staff Writers 

Published: 16 January 2016 11:14 PM 

On Feb. 1, 1962, former Dallas Mayor R.L. Thornton set off fireworks to 
commemorate the opening of a new stretch of Interstate 35E in Oak Cliff that would 
bear his name, calling the freeway “essential to the future progress of the city.” 

Those eight lanes of gleaming white concrete had begun their plunge through vibrant 
Oak Cliff neighborhoods the previous decade, dividing communities along the way in 
the name of economic growth. 

While the interstate, now grayed with the years, did bring development, the places it 
carved through on its path to the suburbs saw their fortunes decline — victims of the 
damaging impact that highways wrought on inner-city neighborhoods around the 
country. 

Now, there’s renewed hope that two of those neighborhoods — one west of I-35E that 
has hobbled along since its days as Oak Cliff’s commercial center; the other on the 
east side and ravaged by decades of concentrated crime and poverty — might be 
stitched back together and see the door open to new opportunities. 

The tool to begin the healing process and help expand the recent economic rebound in 
north Oak Cliff to other parts of southern Dallas would be a deck park between 
downtown and the Dallas Zoo — just north of the site where Thornton stood a half-
century ago and hailed the highway. 

The park, which has yet to be funded, is included in plans for the $626 million 
Southern Gateway project to expand I-35E. Regional transportation officials voted 
last week to fast-track the project. 



“The psychological impact and the physical impact of the freeway is so great that … 
some people don’t even realize that the other side of the freeway is still Oak Cliff,” 
said Paul Carden, an area resident who has pushed for inclusion of a deck park in the 
plans. “I see it as a way of giving Oak Cliff a shot to have its redevelopment 
opportunities.” 

Backers of the plan are confident the new green space could provide a foothold for 
new investment, following the lead of the Klyde Warren deck park downtown. 

Word of the grand vision has spread slowly through the neighborhoods adjacent to I-
35E in north and east Oak Cliff. While residents welcome the idea of bringing a deck 
park to an area in need of open spaces, they’re skeptical that it would provide enough 
lift to overcome decades of neglect. 

The view on Jefferson 

On Jefferson Boulevard, a few blocks west of I-35E, strollers, shelves and appliances 
spill onto the sidewalk from a thrift store near a payday lender, a money transfer store 
and a mobile phone retailer. Down the street, the historic Oak Cliff United Methodist 
Church is vacant and up for sale. 

The stretch of road near Marsalis Avenue was once the heart of Oak Cliff’s bustling 
commercial center, home to one of the city’s first J.C. Penney stores as well as other 
department stores and grocers that drew in the neighborhood’s affluent shoppers. 

The solid wood beams and embossed tin ceilings inside the former J.C. Penney at 611 
E. Jefferson speak to the building’s former grandeur. Bedding, clothes, dishes and 
other housewares still pack the store, but these days its customers are the city’s poor 
and homeless, who can get goods there for free. 

The store’s manager, Cleo Sims, has spent the last 20 years on Jefferson and has seen 
it decline even as investment has flowed to other parts of north Oak Cliff, including 
the thriving Bishop Arts District. 

“We need some North Dallas stuff over here, you know what I mean?” said Sims, 
who manages the store for the nonprofit Dallas County Community Action 
Committee. “North is coming south, slowly, but we need more. A park is fine, but we 
need other things. Like decent grocery stores, a nice cafe.” 

Faded memories 



Katherine Homan, 75, remembers shopping at the J.C. Penney on Jefferson decades 
ago, but she said that version of the neighborhood has long since vanished. 

Instead of buying her groceries in the neighborhood, Homan, who has lived in the 
East Kessler area for 40 years, drives to Oak Lawn, while some of her friends head for 
Cedar Hill. 

She sees the arrival of the interstate, which destroyed a swath of homes in its path and 
devalued nearby properties, as the start of the area’s downturn. 

“Pretty soon we had lost everything we had, and you were having to leave Oak Cliff 
to do anything,” she said. 

Homan is one of the community members, along with Carden, who helped push for a 
deck park as part of a plan to expand I-35E between downtown and U.S. Highway 67. 

She said that the highway was built for a car culture that’s losing relevance, and that 
the park would help make the neighborhood more walkable and restore some green 
space. 

“Decking it over is one more way we can make up for the damage [the road] had done 
60 years ago, to make up for the community this road had taken away,” Homan said. 

While the Jefferson Boulevard corridor and neighborhoods immediately west of the 
highway have scraped by in the decades since the arrival of I-35E, the east side has 
seen a greater fall. 

Poverty and crime 

Dilapidated wooden homes, many of them boarded up with plywood, are scattered 
through the area stretching several blocks east from the interstate. The area’s median 
income of $13,558 is a quarter of the countywide figure, and violent crime is 
significantly higher than in areas west of the highway. 

The neighborhood is home to Oak Cliff Cemetery, the city’s first public cemetery and 
the resting place of historic figures including Leslie Stemmons, a prominent 
businessman who donated much of the right of way for what would become 
Stemmons Freeway. 

The area is also home to numerous long-established churches and to a Dallas school 
district magnet program. 

But the few businesses in the neighborhood are mostly auto shops, gas stations or fast-
food restaurants. 



Back on Jefferson Boulevard, on the other side of the highway, opinions vary widely 
on what a new park would mean. 

Lingering concerns 

Some worry that it would be tainted by the graffiti, homelessness and blight that lurk 
throughout the community. 

Others worry the park’s success could bypass those who live nearby, bringing in 
residential and commercial developments that would drive up prices and force out 
longtime residents or transient populations drawn by the area’s affordability. 

“More parks are always great. I know we need more baseball fields — we don’t have 
any,” said German Peña, owner of The Garage Sale, a furniture and appliance store on 
Jefferson. “But when you’re coming in and fixing up an area, that can actually push 
the people who already live in that area out. You’re making it very unaffordable for 
the average person in Oak Cliff.” 

Inner-city highways, with the smog, noise pollution and physical barriers they create, 
are notorious for driving down property values and thwarting development in the 
adjacent areas. 

A deck park wouldn’t undo all of those problems, but it could be a positive first step, 
especially when paired with the nearby Dallas Zoo, toward reversing decades of 
decline. 

Hurdles ahead 

There are still several hurdles the deck park plan would need to clear before becoming 
reality. The state would have to sign off on funding for the larger Southern Gateway 
project, and some combination of city dollars and private donations would be needed 
to pay for the park, which is expected to cost at least $30 million. 

But there is hope, or at least a sense that something has to change. 

“The buildings over here are dilapidated and so old … the whole community needs to 
be upgraded,” said Paul Conner, owner of Quality Furniture on Jefferson. “The park 
would be walking distance. We’re a couple of minutes from downtown. … If Bishop 
Arts is expanding and everything else is being upgraded, why would you just stop 
there?” 

cshine@dallasnews.com 

Twitter: @Conor_Shine, @nanettelight 



Big names on both sides of 
Trinity Parkway debate named to 
advisory committee 

Updated at 4:40 p.m. with a complete write-through and with comments from Angela 

Hunt added.  

By BRANDON FORMBY 
and ELIZABETH FINDELL 

Staff Writers 

Both long-time champions and big-name opponents of Trinity Parkway will help 
decide if reworked plans for the riverside toll road can marry two possibly divergent 
goals. 

Dallas Mayor Mike Rawlings on Friday announced that the Trinity Parkway citizens 
advisory committee will include project supporters Ron Kirk, a former Dallas mayor; 
Lee Jackson, a former Dallas County judge; and Mary Ceverha, a Trinity Commons 
Foundation board member. 

It will also include vocal project critics Rafael Anchia, a state representative from 
Dallas; Angela Hunt, a former council member; and Robert Meckfessel, another 
Trinity Commons board member. 

Those six will join — and were collectively selected by — City Council member 
Sandy Greyson and former toll agency chairman Jere Thompson to form the eight-
person advisory committee. 

“They are all strong people,” Greyson said. 

Federal officials have already approved a large-scale version of the road that they 
expect to eventually be built. But the advisory committee will provide feedback to a 
technical panel of government employees and urban planners designing the road’s 
first phase of construction. 

In hopes of stemming public opposition to the larger version of Trinity Parkway, that 
panel is trying to make the initial version of the road smaller and with features akin to 

http://www.dallasnews.com/news/metro/20150402-highway-officials-clear-trinity-parkway-but-fate-remains-unclear.ece
http://transportationblog.dallasnews.com/2015/04/what-will-the-full-build-out-of-trinity-parkway-look-like.html/
http://www.dallasnews.com/news/local-news/20141205-feds-say-its-all-or-nothing-with-large-scale-trinity-toll-road.ece
http://www.dallasnews.com/news/transportation/20150421-dallas-morning-news-poll-finds-strong-opposition-to-trinity-toll-road.ece


a park access road. That includes adding trees, meanders and parking lots off of the 
toll road. 

“That’s a big deal for a lot of folks,” Thompson said. 

But the technical panel is also trying to make the road act as a major traffic reliever 
for nearby highways so that federal approval isn’t threatened. That’s likely to require 
high speeds and capacity for a large number of cars. 

“If Dallas does nothing to address its core transportation needs, it will not magically 
become compact and walkable. Its downtown area will not look like much smaller 
Boston or San Francisco,” Jackson and Kirk wrote in The Dallas Morning News last 
year. “We might, though, become more like Los Angeles, with 30 to 40 great 
neighborhoods separated by miles of congestion.” 

But critics have long said that characteristics required to help carry traffic aren’t 
compatible with a roadway next to the massive park planned inside the Trinity River 
levees. The road has also been a source of contention because it will create more 
traffic for a large swath of Dallas than it reduces on a handful of downtown highways. 
And opponents have been distrustful of supporters because reasons for building the 
road have shifted throughout the years. “The major question we need to understand is 
what is the purpose of the Trinity Parkway,” Hunt said. “That is ever-changing and 
that is ill-defined.” 

Rawlings last year championed a reimagining of the road’s first phase of construction. 
A team of transportation experts and urban planners led by Larry Beasley designed a 
road that has 20 goals aimed at making it more like a meandering parkway than the 
hulking highway federal officials approved. 

But it’s not yet known which characteristics federal officials will allow. That’s part of 
what the technical committee is doing – fitting the Beasley goals within the 
framework of what federal officials already approved. 

Rawlings said the advisory group will work somewhat in tandem with the technical 
committee to weigh in on whether ongoing design work is living up to the so-called 
Beasley plan. 

“I felt these citizens could help this process to do it before versus after,” Rawlings 
said. 

Federal authorities will also likely have to clear proposed changes, like additional 
trees in the Trinity River flood plain and parking lots off of the high-speed toll road. 

http://www.dallasnews.com/opinion/latest-columns/20150329-ron-kirk-and-lee-jackson-congestion-will-worsen-without-trinity-toll-road.ece
http://www.dallasnews.com/news/metro/20150911-city-moving-forward-with-trinity-park-plan-mayor-says.ece
http://www.dallasnews.com/news/transportation/20150408-federal-study-trinity-tollway-will-increase-traffic-on-most-adjacent-roads.ece
http://www.dallasnews.com/news/transportation/20150408-federal-study-trinity-tollway-will-increase-traffic-on-most-adjacent-roads.ece
http://www.dallasnews.com/news/transportation/20150211-trinity-parkway-dream-team-wants-smaller-meandering-road.ece


Questions have already arisen over whether the road can meander the way a team of 
urban planners suggest. 

“There may be technical issues that are hard to overcome,” Rawlings said. 

Once the technical panel of government employees and urban planning experts 
presents its final work to the City Council’s Transportation and Trinity River Project 
Committee, the citizens advisory committee will weigh in on whether the plans meet 
the spirit of what was promised to the public last year. 

“We’re very close to pulling the city together on this issue,” Rawlings said. 

Greyson said trying to reach a consensus on the project required getting prominent 
players from both sides. 

“It’s important because if in the end we are able to come to some kind of agreement, 
it’s significant that people who have spoken out on both sides of the issue have been 
able to come together,” she said. 

Transportation committee chairman Lee Kleinman said he’s cautiously optimistic that 
both sides will like what comes out of the technical committee’s work. 

“We don’t want anybody saying, ‘You didn’t listen to me,’” Kleinman said. 
 

http://www.dallasnews.com/news/metro/20151025-its-unclear-if-dallas-trinity-parkway-will-be-able-to-meander-the-way-picture-shows.ece


EPA’s proposed ozone rule 
will slow North Texas 
commuters  

Ozone in North Texas air has been reduced, but not enough to meet current standards 

Proposed new standards would be much harder to meet 

Possible sanctions include reduction in federal money for road expansion 

By Stanford Lynch 

Special to the Star-Telegram 

As any business owner will admit, a great business means nothing if people can’t access it.  

Here in North Texas, we’ve been expanding our roads over the past few years to accommodate new 

companies, as well as the people moving here to take advantage of new opportunities.  

Although most of us have complained about the traffic, we also recognize that, ultimately, those 

construction projects will bring a smoother commute. 

That’s one reason why new regulations from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency are a 

concern for motorists all across the Metroplex. 

 

The EPA is moving forward with a plan to tighten the National Ambient Air Quality Standard for 

ozone.  

The original clean air standard for ozone was set in 1997 at 85 parts per billion. At that time, North 

Texas air was at 102 ppb. 

After more than a decade of effort, our region is now at 83 ppb. However, in 2008 the EPA changed 

the standard to 75 ppb, an even more challenging goal. 



Now, EPA wants to change again by moving the standard further to 70 ppb, at which point some 

believe national parks would be in non-attainment, including Death Valley National Park and Cape 

Cod National Seashore.  

With a 70 ppb ozone standard, many counties in Texas will also remain in non-attainment, including 

Tarrant County.  

According to a joint warning from the U.S. Conference of Mayors, the National Coalition of Counties 

and the National League of Cities, a non-attainment designation can severely affect new 

transportation projects.  

As those groups explained, “for non-attainment areas, the federal government can withhold federal 

highway funds for projects and plans … even when these projects and plans could have a 

measurable positive effect on congestion relief.”  

According to the Texas A&M Transportation Institute’s Urban Mobility Scorecard, the Metroplex 

burned nearly 80 million gallons of excess fuel due to traffic congestion in 2014. The related loss of 

productivity cost our region a staggering $4.2 billion last year, which is the seventh highest in the 

country. 

Recently, the U.S. Chamber of Commerce released a report on the impact of the new ozone rule for 

North Texas commuters.  

As the report notes, the North Central Texas Council of Governments has identified $95 billion of 

transit projects that are necessary to alleviate the worst congestion problems, including $40 billion 

for freeway construction and expansion, all to accommodate additional cars and trucks from our 

growing population.  

But the EPA’s ozone rule puts these projects at risk; even the cleanest vehicles have emissions. 

Two such at-risk projects are the I-820 Loop Interchange and I-35W reconstruction, which could face 

a cutoff in federal funds and a permitting freeze until the region can get into attainment.  

NCTCOG has diligently worked to avoid such cuts by implementing innovative programs that further 

lower our emissions levels.  

The federal government has recognized these good-faith efforts and steady reductions by continuing 

to grant transportation funds, even though our region is not yet to the current 75 ppb goal set by the 

EPA. A 70 ppb standard may make sanctions more likely.  

Finally, more than 60 percent of the controls and technologies needed to meet the new standard are 

what the EPA admits are unknown controls.  



These unknown controls do not take into account negative air quality influences for the Metroplex 

from other areas of the state, such as the Piney Woods of East Texas or other metropolitan areas, 

let alone the influences from out of state as far north as Chicago.  

In other words, the rule is setting up the potential for a traffic nightmare from which North Texans 

may never be able to awaken. 

Balancing economic growth with environmental protection is never easy, but imposing new federal 

regulations without regard to cost or feasibility is not the answer. 

Stanford Lynch is chairman of the Fort Worth Chamber of Commerce Transportation Committee and 

an associate with Freese and Nichols Inc. 

 
Read more here: http://www.star-telegram.com/opinion/opn-columns-blogs/other-
voices/article56156110.html#storylink=cpy 

 



Raising 50-mph speed limit on Chisholm 
Trail Parkway in Fort Worth could take 
months  
Higher posted speed limits possible by summer 

Until then, police presence likely to remain strong 

Fort Worth-area drivers embrace TollTags 

By Gordon Dickson 

gdickson@star-telegram.com 

FORT WORTH  

Motorists annoyed by what they say is an unnecessarily low 50-mph speed limit on Chisholm 
Trail Parkway will likely have to tap the brakes for at least four or five more months. 

North Texas Tollway Authority officials said the earliest they can raise the speed limit is likely 
to be May or June — and that would only occur if a formal speed study justifies the change and 
Fort Worth residents who live near the 28-mile toll road agree to it. 

 “There will be a thorough public process, and safety goes into it as well,” said Elizabeth Mow, 
the tollway authority’s assistant executive director of infrastructure. 

Even so, the call to raise the speed limit is growing louder. 

The Fort Worth City Council earlier this month voted to change its agreement with the tollway 
authority to allow for higher speeds. That’s the first step in a process that officials say could take 
four to five months. 

You may take away a major revenue source for DPS. 

Fort Worth Mayor Betsy Price, joking about how raising the speed limit could reduce speeding 
tickets. 

The next step is for the tollway authority board, which meets monthly in Plano, to vote in favor 
of amending its agreement with Fort Worth and conducting the speed study. The earliest the 
board likely would take that action is at its mid-February meeting. 

If the tollway board approves, a speed study would then be conducted in March or April, Mow 
said. The study would measure how fast motorists are currently traveling on Chisholm Trail 

mailto:gdickson@star-telegram.com


Parkway, and look at design elements to determine if it is technically able to support higher 
speeds. 

The results of that study would then be discussed in public meetings involving neighborhoods 
near the tollway, to gauge support for any possible changes. 

The Texas Department of Transportation, which was a partner in building the toll road, would be 
asked to sign off on the change as well. 

History of the 50-mph limit  

Before the Chisholm Trail Parkway was built, Fort Worth officials in the early 2000s negotiated 
a 50-mph speed limit on the road’s northernmost four miles from south of Arborlawn Drive to 
Interstate 30 at the request of neighborhood residents. The idea was that a lower speed limit 
would minimize noise pollution and help older neighborhoods preserve their quaintness. 

50 mph The speed limit on Chisholm Trail Parkway from I-30 near downtown Fort Worth to 
south of Arborlawn Drive. 

Tollway officials at the time agreed to the lower speed limit, but warned city officials that they 
would have to charge higher-than-normal tolls on the road — about four cents per mile more 
than roads in the Dallas area — to offset the projected loss of revenue caused by fewer motorists. 
The reasoning was that, with a lower speed limit, the road would be a less attractive option for 
many commuters because it would take longer for them to get where they were going, which in 
turn would lead to less traffic and less revenue for the tollway authority. 

Now, nearly two years after the parkway opened, Fort Worth Councilman Jungus Jordan said he 
rarely gets complaints about the toll charges. Instead, most complaints he hears are about the low 
speed limit. 

Many elected leaders including Fort Worth Mayor Betsy Price have noted that both city police 
and the Texas Department of Public Safety enforce the speed limit heavily. 

“You may take away a major revenue source for DPS,” Price quipped during a recent pre-council 
briefing in which the city staff discussed the steps needed to raise the limit. 

The speed study will be conducted on the entire 28-mile road, Mow said. 

The speed limit is 60 mph from south of Arborlawn Drive to Alta Mesa Boulevard, and 70 mph 
from Alta Mesa Boulevard to U.S. 67 in Cleburne. Those speed limits theoretically could change 
as well, depending upon the study results, she said. 

Despite concerns about the speed limit, the parkway is enjoying popularity among Tarrant and 
Johnson County motorists, tollway authority figures show. 



A total of 22.1 million transactions were processed on the road in fiscal year 2015 — more than 
19 percent higher than what the tollway had projected. 

A transaction can occur anytime a motorist drives under one of the many overhead electronic 
gantries on the road. The road has no toll booths, and motorists pay their tolls electronically. 
Nearly 74 percent of motorists pay using a TollTag sticker on their windshield. 

Vehicles without a TollTag can still use the road, and a camera system is used to photograph 
their license plate so the registered owner can be sent a bill. For those users, the toll rates are 
higher. 

Gordon Dickson: 817-390-7796, @gdickson 

 
Read more here: http://www.star-telegram.com/news/traffic/your-
commute/article56476238.html#storylink=cpy 
 

tel:817-390-7796
https://twitter.com/gdickson


New smartphone app lets drivers pay for 
parking at all Fort Worth meters  
Using FW Park app costs an extra 35 cents per transaction 

Works at 2,700 metered spaces downtown, in TCU area and Cultural and medical districts 

Old-fashioned coins still work, too 

By Gordon Dickson 

gdickson@star-telegram.com 

FORT WORTH  

Motorists can now pay for parking at all Fort Worth meters with a few taps on their smartphone. 

A company called Parkmobile LLC is offering a smartphone application known as FW Park. 
With the app, users can pay for parking at the 2,700 curbside, metered spots in and around 
downtown Fort Worth, Texas Christian University, the Cultural District and Medical District. 

“If you’re still a little old-fashioned and you want to carry coins in your pocket, you can still do 
that,” Fort Worth Mayor Betsy Price said. “But how cool is it to be sitting in a meeting or 
shopping and get an alert that your parking meter is about to expire, and just hit ‘pay more’?” 

$2.2 million Amount motorists spend annually parking at Fort Worth meters. 

How it works  

To get started using the app, users may visit Google Play (for Android phones) or the App Store 
(for iPhones) and download FW Park at no charge. To create an account, users input information 
such as their name, mobile phone number, vehicle license plate number and credit card data. 

Once that’s done, the user simply parks at a metered spot. Most Fort Worth meters now have a 
white sticker with a prominent zone number. App users are asked to input the zone number and 
choose how much they want to pay the meter for parking. 

The money is automatically charged to a credit card account, and a 35-cent fee is attached to 
each transaction. 

The app will send an alert to the account holder’s smartphone to warn 15 minutes before the 
meter expires. And the user can add another payment to the meter remotely, to avoid getting a 
parking ticket. 

mailto:gdickson@star-telegram.com
http://us.parkmobile.com/
http://www.tcu.edu/


Similar apps have been downloaded 3.5 million times, said Brian Burleson of Plano, who is 
Parkmobile’s head of operations. 

Parkmobile, based in Atlanta, handles parking transactions in 1,400 communities, he said. Many 
of the cities are small, but the company does handle thousands of transactions per day in major 
markets such as Washington, D.C., Houston and Los Angeles. Once a user has a Parkmobile 
account such as FW Park, it works in other cities that use Parkmobile’s services, he said. 

The idea is to use technology to make life simpler, so motorists don’t have to stress over the 
prospect of getting a citation, he said. 

“Parking is not a destination,” Burleson said. “It’s just something we have to do.” 

Limitations  

How cool is it to be sitting in a meeting or shopping and get an alert that your parking meter is 
about to expire, and just hit ‘pay more?’ 

Fort Worth Mayor Betsy Price 

The technology doesn’t address every possible headache. For example, if you park in a space 
with a two-hour limit, the app won’t let you pay for additional time beyond the two hours. 

The city’s parking enforcement officers will still patrol the streets and cite vehicles they see 
remaining at a spot longer than the allotted time, said Peter Elliott, city parking manager. They 
have various means of keeping track of such vehicles, including the tried-and-true method of 
marking the tires of parked cars with a piece of chalk and returning to the spot later to see if the 
vehicle is still parked there, he said. 

The new parking payment should have little effect on how much the city collects each year from 
its meters — about $2.2 million, Elliott said. 

However, if the app leads to fewer parking tickets, it could put a dent in how much the city 
receives from parking citation violators, he acknowledged. 

The app will also create more work for the parking enforcement officers. Now, when they come 
across a vehicle at an expired meter, before writing a ticket the officers will check their own 
smartphones to see if the vehicle has paid through FW Park. 

If so, the officer will walk away from the car without writing a ticket. 

Gordon Dickson: 817-390-7796, @gdickson 

 
Read more here: http://www.star-telegram.com/news/traffic/your-
commute/article56863418.html#storylink=cpy 
 

tel:817-390-7796
https://twitter.com/gdickson


Red River Valley Association sets sights on ports in Texoma  
News Date: 
1/27/2016 
Outlet: 
Herald Democrat 
Contact: 
Miranda Wilcox Herald Democrat 
The inland areas of Dallas and Texoma may soon get a taste of the sea. A plan to open up the 
Red River to cargo transportation from Shreveport, Louisiana, to the Dallas-Fort Worth 
Metroplex is taking shape to increase the area's transportation and trading abilities. 
 
The idea stems from the Red River Valley Association in Shreveport, an organization with a 
long-term goal of having waterway access from the Mississippi River all the way to Texoma. 
The transportation model has already taken shape in Louisiana with five public ports, and RRVA 
Executive Director Richard Brontoli said making the Red River navigable in Arkansas is the next 
goal. After this, Texoma gets to step up to the plate. 
 
"You're limited in Dallas-Fort Worth," Brontoli said. "It (cargo) has to be able to move by road 
or rail, so you're limited to size and weight. So if you open it up to barge traffic, you can build 
anything as big as you want and put it on a barge and send it anywhere in the world that you 
want." 
 
By connecting the Red River to the Mississippi River, it allows not only the metroplex, but also 
Sherman and Denison access to international waters with imports and exports. 
 
The Dallas-Fort Worth area is the ninth-largest metropolitan region in the nation for 
manufacturing, and is the only one without a port to transfer products. 
 
"It opens up a lot of potential," Brontoli said. "So it's just something we need to look at and 
pursue." 
 
Currently the project itself is estimated at $1 billion, and Brontoli said it could end up costing 
more, once supplies and equipment are taken into account and all the studies are performed. The 
North Central Texas Council of Governments, however, has pledged $500,000 to pay for a 
feasibility study to see whether a waterway system like this would even work. Brontoli said 
items such as how many locks and dams would be needed, if the terrain is accessible and 
available for navigation, etc. would be looked at in this study. It would be one way to determine 
whether any extra money would be needed to further pursue the project. 
 
There are a number of ways the project could be funded, including pulling the money from a 
federal trust fund, or a public/private option where the state would have a way to collect funding 
to operate and maintain it, just like a toll road. 
 
Brontoli explained the project would work with a system of locks and dams, which is a series of 
stair steps and water elevators that send water to an area to help a barge move upstream. The 
river would be straightened and expanded to keep the water level high year-round. 



 
"You have a series of locks and dams of 25 to 30 feet, and that's where the engineers would have 
to calculate where the next one would have to go, and you'd have your tows and barges coming 
through and taking this stair-step effect up the Red River," he said. 
 
Similar models of river navigation have been established at the port of Catoosa in Tulsa, 
Oklahoma, he said. 
 
"The whole Arkansas River, from the Mississippi River all the way to Tulsa, has been made 
navigable with a series of lock and dams, so the same concept is what were looking at on the Red 
River," he said. 
 
When NCTCOG was first approached with the idea, Director of Transportation Michael Morris 
said the project had potential. In a video of a 2014 Regional Transportation Council meeting 
available on the NCTCOG website, Morris said it was an interesting way to finally get the area 
access to the sea, which opens a number of benefits. 
 
"It provides additional freight transportation, such as bulk items that we're not familiar with that 
are normal business practice," Morris said in the meeting. "Sands and pipes and things for 
drilling, you could divert the freight traffic from the highways over to the waterways, it's a very 
inexpensive way to move bulk product. … They're talking about electric power generation, 
they're talking about the movement of water that may help the particular region. … We don't 
have very often, good movement, water, electric generation all in the same particular concept." 
 
It's a situation that Consultant to the Arkansas Red River Commission John Stone says is a "win-
win." Forty percent of the entire Texas population would be affected if the project came through. 
 
"The economic impact of it goes three to four counties deep on either side of the river course 
way," Stone said. "And that's in Texas and Oklahoma and in Arkansas and in Louisiana." 
 
He said it would create a huge demand for jobs in the area with individuals hired as barge 
operators and barge maintainers, to those who will import and export. Besides the commercial 
aspect, he said the recreational aspect of the area would be impacted as well. 
 
"You have to straighten the river out and put the dams in between them, and locks create the 
pools that are stair stepped up in elevation," Stone said. "… So the water flows quicker and is 
less prone to floods, you can use the locks and the dams to let the water flow better in times of 
drought. You can preserve the water better, so you have a water supply aspect of it, too." 
 
These pools are ideal for fishing, water skiing, camping, scuba diving and other activities, he 
said. 
 
Brontoli said the project is still several years away from development. By 2017, the study for the 
Arkansas portion of the river will be figured out, and after that the RRVA can set its sights on 
Texoma. 
 



Editorial: Stalled road projects will get cash infusion  

January 28, 2016 5:54 PM  
THE EDITORIAL BOARD 

State officials are allocating an extra $163.8 million to highway projects in Tarrant County, 
money freed up last year when legislators stopped diverting $1.3 billion in highway fund money 
to non-road spending. 

It’s hard to argue with extra money for roads, and in this case the targeted projects are 
particularly worthy. Those projects have long been planned, but they’ve been on hold for lack of 
funding. 

One is the Texas 121/360 intersection in southern Grapevine. Northbound and southbound 
drivers must merge and change lanes in sometimes hazardous ways as these two heavily 
traveled highways converge. 

The Texas 121/Loop 820 interchange where Fort Worth, Hurst and Richland Hills come together 
was left out of the recent North Tarrant Express freeway/tollway expansion project, and now it’s 
a bottleneck where traffic exiting the North Tarrant Express comes to a standstill. Funding to 
ease congestion is welcome. 

Finally, speeded-up funding is scheduled for Texas 199 in the Azle area. 

The Legislature was wise to end diversions of highway fund money, and transportation officials 
are wise to quickly target the money where it will ease traffic congestion. 

http://www.star-telegram.com/opinion/editorials/article57146823.html 

http://www.star-telegram.com/opinion/editorials/article57146823.html


Editorial: TEX Rail is moving full-speed ahead, but should it be 
stopped?  

By Konni Burton 
Special to the Star-Telegram  
January 27, 2016 

Tarrant County residents who pay close attention have heard of the “TEX Rail” project.  

Still, my guess is the vast majority are not aware of the costs and realities of this 27-mile 
commuter train planned to run from downtown Fort Worth to Dallas/Fort Worth Airport. 

The enormous price tag of TEX Rail currently sits at $998.78 million.  

Local officials are aggressively pushing forward despite not having secured complete funding for 
the project.  

At the end of 2015, total funding for TEX Rail included: $150 million from the federal 
government, $46 million from the state, $20 million from Tarrant County, $25 million from 
regional toll revenue and a projected, combined sales tax revenue of $288.8 million from 
Grapevine and Fort Worth.  

These sources total just under $530 million, and there is no guarantee of securing the remaining 
$468 million from the federal government. 

Also unsettling is the fact that our community has not signaled a desire for mass transit.  

Other county governments, such as Travis County, allowed their residents to vote on a 
commuter rail project before committing to spend millions of dollars.  

Would it not have behooved our local governments to bring TEX Rail to a countywide vote to 
gauge the public’s interest and willingness to use and support the project long term with tax 
dollars? 

The Federal Transportation Administration offers grants to cities for projects that fall within its 
ultimate objective of socially re-engineering the urban landscape.  

The two obvious problems with this are that our local officials are entering into a multiyear, 
billion-dollar project with the irrational and fiscally irresponsible federal government, and that we 
are artificially creating supply for a commodity that has little demand. 

Further, the environmental impact study for TEX Rail, published in May 2014 states, “Overall the 
commuter rail alternative has negligible effects on traffic patterns and volumes on parallel 
roadways.”  

It further posits the average daily vehicle miles traveled in our region would decrease by only 
0.07 percent. The study concludes there will be no significant improvements on air quality or 
congestion, whether building rail or not.  



An unjustifiable taxpayer-funded albatross is being created here.  

Mass transit systems are an essential component to a thriving urban area; however, rail has 
repeatedly shown to be a cost-intensive and failed option for growing cities.  

Our bus system is a great example of a manageable and necessary system of mass transit. 
Many low-income and disabled individuals rely on our bus system for their everyday livelihood.  

Sadly, studies have shown rail projects attract middle-to-high income riders, which in turn 
creates a transit system that neglects the needs of our most vulnerable.  

Furthermore, case studies show bus service suffers when rail is introduced, because tax dollars 
are redirected to shore up funding shortfalls for maintenance and operations of rail. Ridership 
revenues simply do not cover the costs. 

The allure of easy money from the federal government can sometimes create blind spots when 
determining what is best for our local community.  

With TEX Rail, our local leaders have disregarded the grim realities of rail and have sidestepped 
the residents of Tarrant County to make a bad deal with the central planners and social 
engineers in Washington, D.C.  

If you agree with me, demand a say. Tarrant County deserves better. 

State Sen. Konni Burton, R-Colleyville, represents Senate District 10 in Tarrant County. 

 



Why Fort Worth-area 
roads got $163.8 million in 
fresh highway funding  

Projects selected were “shovel ready” 

Shaky old bridge near North East Mall to be replaced 

Commuters likely to see relief in two to four years 

By Gordon Dickson 

gdickson@star-telegram.com 

The Baker Boulevard/Hurst Boulevard bridge over Loop 820, just south of North East Mall, often 

shakes as truck traffic rolls over it. 

The westbound side of the structure has received poor marks during state bridge inspections for 

more than a decade. 

But that shaky old bridge soon will be replaced. 

A new overpass will be built as soon as next year as part of a massive makeover of the Loop 820 

corridor, from the Texas 121 split to Randol Mill Road near the convergence of Fort Worth, Hurst 

and Richland Hills. The area is just south of North East Mall and one of the most intense choke 

points for traffic in Tarrant County. 

ADVERTISING 

That project was one of three in the Fort Worth area selected last week to receive $163.8 million 

over the next few years, as part of the Texas Department of Transportation’s initiative to spend $1.3 

billion statewide to ease road congestion in major metro areas. 

$1.3 billion New funds identified for road work after Texas ended diversion of highway money for 

other state needs. Of that, $163.8 million goes to the Fort Worth area. 

mailto:gdickson@star-telegram.com


The other Tarrant County projects to receive the funding were the Texas 121/360 interchange in 

Grapevine, and Texas 199 in and near Azle. 

The projects were picked because they are “shovel ready,” meaning there are no bureaucratic steps 

such as an environmental study or the purchase of right-of-way to get in their way, a state official 

said. Essentially all that has been missing, until now, is the money. 

“The reason why these projects were selected is they are sorely needed in your community,” said J. 

Bruce Bugg Jr., a state transportation commissioner. He said that before selecting a small number of 

projects to receive the funding, state officials asked local leaders from the Dallas-Fort Worth area, 

“What is in the queue that maybe just needs the funding?” 

“We’re looking right now not only at bad congestion points, but what has been approved from an 

environmental standpoint, and right-of-way acquisition has been taken care of,” Bugg said. 

State officials added that it was also crucial that the money not be spent on projects that include 

tolls. State legislators have made it clear that Texas built enough toll roads and managed toll lanes 

during the past two decades, and especially during the past five to 10 years. 

The Texas Transportation Commission is expected to formally approve the list of projects slated to 

receive the $1.3 billion statewide during its next meeting in late February. 

Loop 820  

The Loop 820 project includes not only the replacement of the Baker Boulevard/Hurst Boulevard 

bridge, which is part of Texas 10, but also the expansion of Loop 820’s main lanes. The freeway will 

be expanded to three lanes in each direction, up from two lanes in each direction today, from Texas 

121 to Randol Mill Road. 

The area has been overcrowded for more than a decade, especially during the past two years as the 

nearby $2.5 billion North Tarrant Express project was completed at the Loop 820/Texas 121 

interchange. Once that project was completed, the gridlock that used to accumulate near North East 

Mall now gathers south of the mall, Michael Morris, transportation director for the North Central 

Texas Council of Governments, told area officials during a recent special meeting with Bugg. 

We’re looking right now not only at bad congestion points, but what has been approved from an 

environmental standpoint, and right-of-way acquisition has been taken care of. 

J. Bruce Bugg Jr., Texas Transportation Commission member 



The project also includes other bridge improvements and the construction of direct connectors from 

eastbound Texas 121 to southbound Loop 820, and from northbound Loop 820 to westbound Texas 

121. 

Work is scheduled to start in the summer of 2017 and be completed by the end of 2021, officials 

said. 

The work is slated to receive $46.3 million in new state congestion funding. The replacement of the 

Baker Boulevard/Hurst Boulevard bridge and other components of the project will actually cost much 

more. In fact, the total cost could be closer to $137 million. 

But federal bridge money and savings from the Interstate 35W expansion in north Fort Worth are 

available to offset the additional costs, state and local officials said. 

Grapevine  

In Grapevine, the $1 billion reconstruction of the Texas 114/121 corridor — known as the DFW 

Connector — tapers to an end on its westbound side, where Texas 121 splits toward Fort Worth and 

Texas 114 splits toward Bridgeport. 

The new state funding will provide an additional $61 million to continue the modernized lanes about 

another mile to the south, where 121 merges with Texas 360. The lanes and exit and entrance 

ramps will be modernized on Texas 360 about as far south as the Bear Creek Park entrance, and on 

Texas 121 to Hall-Johnson Road. 

The project is scheduled to start this summer and be completed by 2018. But the transportation 

department’s Fort Worth district engineer, Brian Barth, has said the work may be completed earlier 

by using contractors already in the area finishing up an earlier phase of the DFW Connector near the 

Grapevine-Flower Mound-Lewisville borders. 

Azle area  

Drive on Texas 199, also known as Jacksboro Highway, and it’s clear the freeway is being built in 

phases. There are areas where the land is clear for lanes, bridges and other improvements, but the 

work just hasn’t been done. 

With $56.5 million in new state funding, the work will focus on expanding four-lane sections of Texas 

199 to six lanes in a two-mile corridor from Nine Mile Bridge Road to the future Western Center 

Boulevard extension. 



The work also includes bridges for Nine Mile Bridge Road and Hangar Cut Off Road, a new 

underpass for future Western Center Boulevard exit and entrance ramps. 

Work is expected to begin in the summer and be completed by 2020. 

Dallas, too  

The state funding also includes $364 million for the eastern side of the Metroplex. 

That money is scheduled to be used rebuilding the Southern Gateway/Lowest Stemmons area of 

Interstate 35E and U.S. 67 southwest of downtown Dallas. 

The area could also include a deck park over the roadway, which would be paid for with local 

funding. Several years ago, the 5.2-acre Klyde Warren Park was completed on top of Woodall 

Rodgers Freeway on the north end of downtown Dallas, and the deck park has been heralded as a 

game-changer in terms of making the area more walkable and livable. 

Gordon Dickson: 817-390-7796, @gdickson 

 
Read more here: http://www.star-telegram.com/news/traffic/your-
commute/article57495123.html#storylink=cpy 

 

tel:817-390-7796
https://twitter.com/gdickson


Where to put Dallas’ next deck 
park?  
Published: 13 January 2016 05:06 PM 
Updated: 14 January 2016 09:14 AM 

Related 
 Dallas delays vote on new southern Dallas charter school  

 Trinity Parkway was supposed to help Stemmons, but now it's the other way 
around  

Transportation planners for North Texas are wasting no time in letting state officials 
know just how new congestion-relief funds should be spent here in North Texas. 

Staff at the North Central Texas Council of Governments in Arlington has proposed 
that the Texas Department of Transportation spend $264 million of the new 
congestion-relief funds to shore up financing for the $626 million project known as 
the Southern Gateway. The Regional Transportation Council will vote Thursday on 
that proposal, which also includes recommendations for Fort Worth-area projects and 
smaller jobs in Dallas, should funding allow. 

We like the Southern Gateway project. It would rebuild Interstate 35E from the 
downtown Horseshoe to U.S. 67, and U.S. 67 from the I-35E split to Interstate 20. 
The reconstruction would add general-purpose lanes to both highways and improve 
their HOV capacity, too. It wouldn’t require any tolls. 

Of its total cost, TxDOT has already pledged $139 million, and the council of 
governments has identified another $223 million. 

We do urge the council and ultimately the Texas Transportation Commission to keep 
an open mind about priorities for the downtown Dallas highways until after the 
ongoing CityMAP visioning exercise is complete. That includes decisions about 
whether and when to build new deck parks, along the lines of the successful Klyde 
Warren Park. That park has fueled dreams of similar projects across North Texas and 
the rest of the state. 

Recently, the Southern Gateway project has been adorned with a deck park proposal 
of its own. The proposal before the RTC includes a $30 million provision that would 

http://cityhallblog.dallasnews.com/2016/01/dallas-delays-vote-on-new-southern-dallas-charter-school.html/
http://transportationblog.dallasnews.com/2016/01/trinity-parkway-was-supposed-to-help-stemmons-but-now-its-the-other-way-around.html/
http://transportationblog.dallasnews.com/2016/01/trinity-parkway-was-supposed-to-help-stemmons-but-now-its-the-other-way-around.html/


add a deck park over Interstate 35E somewhere between Colorado Avenue and the 
Dallas Zoo. It is to be paid for with $20 million from the RTC and $10 million from 
either the city of Dallas or private donors. 

On balance, we like the idea of adding some of the Klyde Warren Park magic to other 
highways, especially in areas that could really use an economic development lift. But 
we’d caution that decisions about such amenities should wait on the results of the 
CityMAP effort, due within a month or so. 

That process, initiated by Texas Transportation Commission member Victor 
Vandergriff of Arlington, has sought out many diverse views about the future of 
highways in downtown Dallas. The idea is to closely study a wide array of options — 
even some that might sound radical — before long-term decisions about Dallas’ 
downtown highways are made. 

The question of whether and where to put additional deck parks — for instance, on I-
35, as proposed here, or on I-30 near Fair Park, as we have urged previously — 
should be part of that deliberative, strategic thinking. 
 



33 Texas officials send Japanese Ambassador letter 
opposing high-speed train 
By Carol Christian 

Updated 12:11 pm, Thursday, January 14, 2016  
 

 

The Japanese N700 Series Shinkansen train, which Texas Central Partners proposes to use on the bullet-train route 
between Houston and Dallas. 
 
Photo courtesy of Texas Central Partners 

 

The Japanese Ambassador to the United States may be scratching his head over a 
recent letter signed by 33 officials in East Texas. 
Sent Monday, the letter from state legislators and other officials plunges right in stating 
"deep opposition" to the Texas Central Railway High-Speed Rail Project. 
As proposed, the 200-mph train between Houston and Dallas would use Japanese 
Shinkansen "bullet train" technology. Texas Central Partners, a private company,  plans 
to start construction of the 240-mile route next year, with service slated to begin in 2021. 
Texans Against High-Speed Rail organized in May and continues to work against the 
proposed train. 
This week, the letter writers turned to Ambassador Kenichiro Sasae in Washington, DC, 
for help in stopping the project they say will harm local communities. 
"Through their recently formed U.S. companies, the HSR Project would unjustly take 
private property for the ultimate benefit of a foreign company," the letter states. 

http://www.chron.com/author/carol-christian/
http://www.texascentral.com/project/
http://www.chron.com/news/transportation/article/Study-finds-high-speed-rail-line-an-economic-shot-6572216.php
http://www.texansagainsthsr.com/#sthash.IHNpZtuE.dpbs
http://www.texastribune.org/2015/05/05/rural-critics-bullet-train-get-organized/
http://www.us.emb-japan.go.jp/english/html/Ambassador/ambassador_sasae.html


"Furthermore, the HSR Project will cut through numerous counties that will have no 
stops and be permanently scarred by a track dividing land and property that has been 
passed down through Texas families for generations, in many cases spanning multiple 
centuries," the letter continues. 
In closing, the 33 say, "There may be other places that are better suited for and would 
welcome your Shinkansen technology. We encourage you to seek out a different market 
where this would provide an actual transportation solution and where you may 
encounter less opposition." 
The 33 signatures on the letter included those of 11 Republican state Legislators, 
including State Sen. Lois Kolkhorst of Brenham and State Rep. Will Metcalf of Conroe.  
Asked for comment, the Japanese Embassy sent an email statement from 
Transportation Counselor Yoshihiro Taguchi: "The project referred to is a private 
initiative, but we understand its importance to the region. As Japan takes pride in its 
experience of over 50 years of safe and efficient Shinkansen operation record, we are 
hoping to contribute with our technology to the improvement of the infrastructure in 
Texas. We will also respect the process and outcome of the discussions among all 
parties concerned." 
A study released in October showed that the project would inject $36 billion into the 
state's economy, but the report hasn't quelled opposition. 
In August, the Federal Railroad Administration approved the 240-mile rail corridor 
preferred by the developers of the Dallas-Houston train. 
 

http://blog.chron.com/thehighwayman/2015/10/study-finds-high-speed-rail-line-an-economic-shot-for-texas/
http://www.chron.com/news/houston-texas/texas/article/Feds-approve-Texas-high-speed-rail-corridor-6467544.php


 

PRESS RELEASE
 

Contact: Amanda Wilson
(817) 695-9284

awilson@nctcog.org

Sonya Landrum
(817) 695-9273

slandrum@nctcog.org
 

 
NCTCOG Gives TryParkingIt.com Fresh, User-Friendly Look  

Users who activate accounts by Feb. 5 eligible for Mavericks ticket giveaway 
 

Jan. 27, 2016 (Arlington, Texas) – The region’s alternative-commute and ride-matching website 
has a new look. The North Central Texas Council of Governments recently relaunched 
TryParkingIt.com, which for almost 10 years has allowed users to track alternatives to driving 
alone and see how much money and emissions they can save by making a transportation 
choice that lessens congestion.  
 
Options include carpooling, transit, bicycling, walking, working from home and more. 
 
The new version still allows the users to track their savings and find ride matches, but 
introduces rewards such as discounts and contests designed to inspire greater participation in 
the program. Prizes and merchandise discounts are donated by G.R.E.E.N. Partners. 
Companies and other providers participating as partners benefit by receiving recognition on the 
Try Parking It website and other NCTCOG platforms, expanding their customer bases and 
motivating commuters to try alternatives to driving alone.    
 
Users will be awarded points each time they enter an alternative commute. The points can be 
used to enter contests, or redeemed for giveaways, store discounts and more.  
 
All users who register on the site by Feb. 5 will be entered to win four tickets and a parking pass 
to a Dallas Mavericks game. 
 
While the enhancements make the site more interactive and user-friendly, improving air quality 
and reducing traffic congestion remain the priorities. In addition to keeping track of the money 
and miles saved by alternative commutes, users can see how many pounds of greenhouse 
gases they have saved. 
 
Another feature of the updated site is the multimodal trip logging. Previously, TryParkingIt.com 
allowed only one commuting method to be entered for each trip. The updated site will take into 
account the reality that people may get to work using multiple options.  
 
For example, if a commuter wants to ride her bike to work, but lives too far from the office, she 
may choose to ride to the nearby rail station and take the train the rest of the way, continuing on 
her bike when she reaches the station nearest her workplace.  She can now enter her entire trip 
on the site.  
 

ELECTRONIC ITEM 3.9



With the new website, North Texans who want to try alternative commutes can also select 
mentors to help them navigate the transit system or safely walk or bicycle to work. These 
options can be intimidating for people who have not tried them before, and it helps to be paired 
with experienced alternative commuters. Additionally, people wishing to serve as mentor to less-
experienced commuters can volunteer and be matched with commuting partners. 
 
The relaunched site also offers a mobile version, which allows users to easily record their 
commutes and find ride matches on the go, using their phones or tablets. 
 
While individual commuters are a major focus of the site, employers play a significant role in 
reducing traffic congestion. Area companies can learn about NCTCOG’s Employer Trip 
Reduction Program, a free educational program developed to reduce employee commute trips 
through strategies such as carpooling, vanpooling, transit, telecommuting, flexible work-hour 
programs, bicycling and walking. 
 
Log on to TryParkingIt.com today to learn about all the site’s features and start saving. 
  
About the North Central Texas Council of Governments:  

NCTCOG is a voluntary association of local governments established in 1966 to assist local 
governments in planning for common needs, cooperating for mutual benefit and coordinating for 
sound regional development. NCTCOG's purpose is to strengthen both the individual and 
collective power of local governments and to help them recognize regional opportunities, 
eliminate unnecessary duplication and make joint decisions.  

NCTCOG serves a 16-county region of North Central Texas, which is centered on the two urban 
centers of Dallas and Fort Worth. Currently, NCTCOG has 238 member governments including 
16 counties, 169 cities, 22 school districts and 31 special districts. For more information on the 
NCTCOG Transportation Department, visit NCTCOG.org/trans.  

 

### 



Regional Transportation Council Policy Position to 
Assist Local Governments in Attracting Large Employers to the Region 

(P16-02) 
 
 
 

This policy only applies if the Regional Transportation Council (RTC) is being asked to help fund 
infrastructure improvements to attract a large employer.  This policy only applies to attracting 
large employers to the region and does not apply to retaining employers or moving employers 
within the region. 
 
The entity requesting funding assistance from the RTC needs to be aware that RTC assistance 
is not possible without communication to the full RTC of the request.  If funding is requested, 
this policy would place an item on the RTC agenda for approval, creating an opportunity for the 
local governments to participate in the selection process. 

DRAFT

REFERENCE ITEM 4



The Metropolitan Transportation Plan 
for North Central Texas

Regional Transportation Council

Chad McKeown and Chris Klaus

February 11, 2016

E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 IT

E
M

 5
.1



• Conduct comprehensive corridor evaluations

• Reevaluate toll facility recommendations

• Review needed arterial improvements

• Reassess regional rail recommendations

• Update the Regional Veloweb

• Maintain and enhance existing infrastructure

• Consider the role of new technology

2

Mobility 2040 Guiding Principles 



3

Mobility 2040 Prioritization and Expenditures

M
ax

im
iz

e
 E

xi
st

in
g 

Sy
st

e
m

St
ra

te
gi

c 
In

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
In

ve
st

m
e

n
t

$37.4

$7.2

$3.6

$27.2

$43.4
Freeways/Tollways and Arterials

Additional Vehicle Capacity

HOV/Managed Lanes
Increase Auto Occupancy

Rail and Bus
Induce Switch to Transit

Growth, Development, and 
Land Use Strategies

More Efficient Land Use & Transportation Balance

Management and Operations
• Improve Efficiency & Remove Trips from System
• Traffic Signals and Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvements  

Infrastructure Maintenance
• Maintain & Operate Existing Facilities
• Bridge Replacements

Mobility 2040 Expenditures          $118.9*

*Actual dollars, in billions. Values may not sum due to independent rounding.



4



5



6

Cotton Belt Corridor Proposed Recommendations

Mobility 2040 will include the “RTC Policy Position on Transit 
Implementation in the Cotton Belt Corridor (P16-01)”

Regional Rail line from DFW Airport to Plano with one-seat 
ride connectivity with TEX Rail

Expedite project delivery to 
include in “Ten-Year Plan”

If rail service cannot be 
expedited, review potential 
for High Intensity Bus service
as an early implementation 
phase



7



8



9



Mobility 2040 Draft Document

A draft of the Mobility 2040 document is available 
for review online.

www.nctcog.org/mobility2040

10

http://www.nctcog.org/mobility2040


RTC Policy Bundle Concept Summary

Solutions beyond infrastructure improvements are needed 
to achieve regional transportation goals. Policies included in 
Mobility 2040 aim to encourage alternative solutions to 
reach these goals.

The RTC Policy Bundle Concept:

• Works as a credit bank to help offset local funds on federal 
projects

• Participation is a Governmental Entity’s Decision

− Voluntary
− Decide Preference
− 50 Percent Target

11



Policy Types

Type 1: Joint Staff 
Coordination

• Meet with Major 
Employers to Promote 
Employer Trip Reduction 
Program

• Implement Strategies to 
Reduce Wrong-Way 
Driving Crashes

• Secure Transportation 
Infrastructure 

• Integrate Traffic 
Operations Systems

• Develop Parking 
Management Strategies

• Coordinate 
Implementation of Safe 
Routes to School 

• Improve Railroad Safety

• Share Best Practices to 
Prevent Copper Theft

Type 2: Governing Body 
Approval

• Clean Fleet

• Support Traffic Incident 
Management

• Develop Sustainable 
Land Use Strategies to 
Support Urban, Rural 
and Suburban 
Communities

• Collaborate on ISD 
Growth Plans and City 
Plans

• Implement Complete 
Streets Policy

• Implement Urban 
Thoroughfare 
Revitalization

• Implement Sustainable 
Stormwater Practices

• Encourage Use of Lower-
Emission Construction  
Equipment

• Allocate Local Funds to 
Support Public Transit 

Type 3: Ordinances

• Implement and Enforce 
Locally Enforced Motor 
Vehicle Idling Limitations

• Enhance Freight-
Oriented Land-Use 
Sustainability

• Implement Operational 
Restrictions of 
Unmanned Aircraft 
Systems (UAS)

Type 4: Elections

• Participate in 
Membership with a 
Transportation Authority

12



Mar. 
2015

Apr. 
2015

May 
2015

June 
2015

July 
2015

Aug.
2015

Sept. 
2015

Oct. 
2015

Nov. 
2015

Dec. 
2015

Jan. 
2016

Feb. 
2016

Mar.
2016

Apr. 
2016

May
2016

June
2016

13

Public meetings held during highlighted months.

Regional Transportation Council plan adoption scheduled for March, 2016.

Air Quality 
Conformity

STTC & RTC 
Action

Official 
Comment 

Period

Draft 
Recommendations 

for Review

Plan Development

Schedule



Purpose:  Federal requirement in nonattainment areas to conduct air 
quality analysis on projects, programs, and policies identified in 
transportation plans, transportation improvement programs, 
federally funded projects, or projects required for federal 
approval

Analysis Years:  2017, 2027, 2037, and 2040

Latest Planning Assumptions:  MOVES2014 Emissions Model
2014 Registration
2014 Traffic Count Data
2014 Meteorological Data

Motor Vehicle Emissions Budgets (MVEBs)*

Nitrogen Oxides (NOX) = 148.36 tons/day
Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) = 77.18 tons/day

Analysis Area:  Ten-County Ozone Nonattainment Area 

14

2016 Transportation Conformity

*Adequacy finding of MVEB’s for Transportation Conformity purposes effective January 26, 2016



15

Ten-County Nonattainment Area Under the 
Eight-Hour Ozone Standard



Nitrogen Oxides (NOX) Emission Results

1 Source: Environmental Protection Agency Notice of Adequacy Status of the Dallas-Fort Worth, TX Reasonable Further Progress 8-Hour Ozone Motor Vehicle Emission Budgets for 
Transportation Conformity Purposes; 81 FR 1184, https://federalregister.gov/a/2016-339.

Analysis Years

E
m

is
s

io
n

s
 (

to
n

s
/d

a
y
)

8

16

https://federalregister.gov/a/2016-339


Analysis Years

Em
is

s
io

n
s
 (

to
n

s
/d

a
y
)

9

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) Emission Results

1 Source: Environmental Protection Agency Notice of Adequacy Status of the Dallas-Fort Worth, TX Reasonable Further Progress 8-Hour Ozone Motor Vehicle Emission Budgets for 
Transportation Conformity Purposes; 81 FR 1184, https://federalregister.gov/a/2016-339.

17

https://federalregister.gov/a/2016-339


Contact Information

18

Additional information available online

Mobility 2040: www.nctcog.org/mobility2040

Conformity: http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/conformity/

Chad McKeown, AICP
Program Manager

cmckeown@nctcog.org
817-695-9134

Chris Klaus
Senior Program Manager

cklaus@nctcog.org
817-695-9286

http://www.nctcog.org/mobility2040
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/air/conformity/
mailto:cmckeown@nctcog.org
mailto:cmckeown@nctcog.org


Mobility 2040 - NCTCOG.org

http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/[2/3/2016 8:33:31 AM]

`
 

 

Select Language ? ?

Home > Transportation > Metropolitan Transportation Plan Home

Print this page

 

Mobility 2040

The North Central Texas Council of Governments

coordinates with cities, counties and transportation

partners to plan road, transit, bicycle and pedestrian

transportation for North Texas.

As the metropolitan planning organization for the Dallas-

Fort Worth area, the North Central Texas Council of

Governments (NCTCOG) is required to maintain a long-

term transportation plan that defines a vision for the

region’s multimodal transportation system and guides

expenditures of state and federal transportation funds

during the the next 20 plus years.

Staff are in the process of developing Mobility 2040, the

next long-term transportation plan. Input received during

the spring and summer from the public, cities, counties

and transportation partners is especially beneficial. Draft

recommendations are expected to be available in late

2015, and the Regional Transportation Council is

expected to approve the new long-term plan in spring

2016.

 
Español

DRAFT  Mobility 2040 Document   I   Mobility 2040 Appendix A-D  DRAFT

                DRAFT  Mobility 2040 Appendix E-G

January 2016 Public Meeting Presentation

 

Regional Transportation Council

December 10, 2015

Proposed Freeway/Tollway Recommendations

 

Regional Transportation Council Mobility Plan Workshop

November 12, 2015

Agenda

Presentation 1

Presentation 2

 

Regional Transportation Council Mobility Plan Workshop

July 9, 2015 I 11:30 am 

Agenda

Presentaton

 

LBJ East Legislative Meetings

Presentation 1

Presentation 2

Metropolitan Transportation
Plan Home

Metrpolitan Transportation
Plan: Mobility 2040

Metropolitan Transportation
Plan: Mobility 2035 - 2014
Amendment

Previous Metropolitan
Transportation Plans

Regional Managed Lane
System

Texas Metropolitan Mobility
Plan (TMMP)

Transportation Resource
Agency Consultation and
Environmental Streamlining
(TRACES)

Other Plan-Related
Information

Transportation Home

Programs Topics A-J Topics K-Z Departments Services About Us

ELECTRONIC ITEM 5.2

http://www.nctcog.org/index.asp
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
http://www.nctcog.org/
http://www.nctcog.org/Trans/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/espanol.asp
http://nctcog.org/trans/outreach/involve/notifydb.asp
http://nctcog.org/trans/outreach/meetings/feedback.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/Mobility2040Chapters.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/Mobility2040AppendixA-D.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/Mobility2040AppendixE-G.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/Mobility2040PublicMeetingJan2016.pptx
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/MTP2040ProjectSummary.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/Mobility2040RTCWorkshopAgenda11.12.2015.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/Mobility2040RTCWorkshop111.12.2015.pptx
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/Mobility2040RTCWorkshop111.12.2015.pptx
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/Mobility2040RTCWorkshop211.12.2015.pptx
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/RTCMobilityPlanWorkshopAgenda_July.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/Mobility2040RTCWorkshop7.09.2015.pptx
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/Mobility2040_JulyRTCWorkshop.pptx
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/LBJEastOptions1.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/documents/LBJEastOptions2.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2035/2014amendment.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/previous/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/managed/managedlanes.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/tmmp/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/traces
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/related.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2035/2014amendment.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2035/2014amendment.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2035/2014amendment.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/previous/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/previous/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/managed/managedlanes.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/managed/managedlanes.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/tmmp/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/tmmp/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/traces
http://www.nctcog.org/traces
http://www.nctcog.org/traces
http://www.nctcog.org/traces
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/related.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/related.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/
http://www.nctcog.org/dept.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/dept.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/about.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/about.asp


Mobility 2040 - NCTCOG.org

http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/[2/3/2016 8:33:31 AM]

Please sign up to stay involved in developing Mobility 2040, and submit questions and comments.

Additionally, please feel free to share this information with your friends, family and colleagues.

Public Input

Results from two Mobility 2040 surveys, distributed online and at NCTCOG outreach events and meetings,

are now available.

Fall 2015 Survey Results >>> [PDF]

Spring/Summer 2015 Survey Results >>> [PDF]

Partner Coordination
Local Government Review

Infographic: Transportation Choices for Our Future

Take a look at how the region is growing, funding transportation improvements, meeting traffic challenges

and finding a way forward in the Mobility 2040 infographic. [PDF]

Español

 

1/29/2016  4/01/09  MW

 CONTACT US | SITE MAP | LEGAL | SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS       

 North Central Texas Council of Governments | 616 Six Flags Drive P.O. Box 5888 Arlington, TX 76005-5888 

 Main Operator: (817) 640-3300 | Fax: (817) 640-7806

http://nctcog.org/trans/outreach/involve/notifydb.asp
http://nctcog.org/trans/outreach/meetings/feedback.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/Survey2_FinalResults_online_combined.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/Survey2_FinalResults_online_combined.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/Survey1_FinalResults_online.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/RSA.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/mobility_info.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/mobility_info.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/mtp/2040/espanol.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/contactus.asp?id_mnu=7174
http://www.nctcog.org/site-map/index.asp
http://www.facebook.com/NCTCOGtrans
http://www.twitter.com/NCTCOGtrans
http://www.youtube.com/user/NCTCOGtrans
http://instagram.com/nctcogtrans?ref=badge


RTC Policy Position on Transit Implementation in the Cotton Belt Corridor 
(P16-01) 

 
Background 
 
Mobility 2035 proposes regional rail service in the Cotton Belt Corridor from southwest Fort 
Worth to Plano.   The Fort Worth Transportation Authority (the T) is constructing rail service 
from downtown Fort Worth to the A/B station at the DFW International Airport.  It is anticipated 
that the T will have a full funding grant agreement with the Federal Transit Administration in 
early 2016.  In addition, the Fort Worth Transportation Authority has ordered rail vehicles that 
have been agreed to by Dallas Area Rapid Transit to operate in the eastern portion of the 
corridor (east of DFW International Airport).  Mobility 2035 calls for a seamless connection of 
transit service between the two transportation authorities.  It is anticipated that rail service will 
be operating in the western portion of the corridor in 2018.  Dallas Area Rapid Transit has 
approved rail funding in their 2035 financial plan.  This would provide full funding for rail by 
2035.   
 
Policy Direction/Context  
 
The Regional Transportation Council requests in this policy that Dallas Area Rapid Transit 
explore possibilities in expediting rail service in the eastern side of the corridor.  Dallas Area 
Rapid Transit may wish to consider public and public/private partnerships to advance rail 
service in a timeframe that closer matches the investment in the western side of the 
corridor.  The Regional Transportation Council stands ready to assist Dallas Area Rapid Transit 
in any areas that may accomplish this objective.  The reason for both a seamless rail connection 
and an expedited delivery is related to three factors:  

1) The movement of a greater share of travel in the region by rail transportation aiding in 
reliability, safety and air quality. 

2) The significant demand between the two sub-regions that wish to travel between Tarrant 
and Dallas County.  A seamless connection that includes interlining rail service between 
the sub-systems without forcing a transfer will maximize transit benefits.  Expediting 
service will aid in the meeting of this regional need.  In addition to cross-regional transit 
movements is the desire to go to and from DFW International Airport and to transfer 
between the Cotton Belt and the Orange Line at the A/B station.   

3) Investment in the rail component of the Regional Transportation System is essential and 
needs special focus to offset the magnitude and innovation of roadway investments 
within the region.  Greater and special attention to innovative rail funding and financing is 
critical to deliver the appropriate balance of transportation investments to a region of 
10.7 million person by 2040.  
 

If rail service cannot be expedited, some form of DART selected premium transit service should 
be implemented to accomplish these policy objectives.  Although a rail to bus transfer will 
reduce the demand for service between the regions (eliminating a one-seat ride) some attention 
to near term transit investment remains critical.  Rail is preferred but some connection by 
premium bus transit is better than no service.   
 
Definitions 
 
Regional Rail - Rail service provided by commuter rail-type vehicles.  In the Cotton Belt 

Corridor, these vehicles will be identical or similar to the FLIRT vehicles purchased by the 
Fort Worth Transportation Authority. 

DRAFT

ELECTRONIC ITEM 6



 
Seamless Connection – In this policy, seamless connection refers to the coordination of service 

between the Fort Worth Transportation Authority and DART.  This policy anticipates the 
same technology between the two sub-regions, therefore, rail vehicles will need to have 
continuous interline scheduling between the areas resulting in no transfers for passengers.  
This is often referred to as a One Seat Ride.  If rail service is delayed and premium transit 
service is implemented, sensitivity to the customer resulting in efficient transfers will need to 
be addressed.   

 
Premium Transit Service – This level of service is referred to in Mobility 2040 as High Intensity 

Bus.  This service could include such transit attributes as guaranteed travel times, additional 
passenger amenities and increased technology.   

 
 
Mobility 2040 Recommendation 
 
Rail service along the entire corridor.  The western sub-region will explore bus service on the 
Chisholm Trail as an interim measure south of Fort Worth.  In the eastern sub-region, rail should 
be in place by 2035.  Rail service may be possible before this timeframe.  If rail service cannot 
be expedited within the next four years, Dallas Area Rapid Transit should explore the 
introduction of premium transit service in the corridor.   
 
“Ten Year Plan” (Consistency with HB 20) 
 
Rail service along the entire corridor.  The western sub-region will explore bus service on the 
Chisholm Trail as an interim measure south of Fort Worth.  In the eastern sub-region, rail should 
be in place by 2027.  Rail service may be possible before this timeframe.  If rail service cannot 
be expedited within the next four years, Dallas Area Rapid Transit should explore the 
introduction of premium transit service in the corridor.   
 
Quarterly Monitoring/Expedited Service 
 
Dallas Area Rapid Transit and the RTC Staff will present quarterly updates on the status of 
expediting rail service in the eastern corridor.  If rail service cannot be expedited within four 
years, efforts will transition to premium transit service. 
 
Expediting Bus Transit Improvements  
 
If premium bus transit service in the form of bus rapid transit is advanced, DART will provide 
additional information on the following questions. 
                How will bus rapid transit access DFW International Airport? 
                Where will bus rapid transit meet the western side regional rail line?  
                How will DART and the T minimize the impact of passenger transfers?  
                How will bus rapid transit be built in the Cotton Belt Corridor that has active freight 
                    service?  
                Will bus rapid transit cross conflicting north/south thoroughfare streets at-grade?  If  
                     so, what traffic controls will be used? 
                How will bus rapid transit be built in the Cotton Belt Corridor that has no freight  
                     service? 
                Will bus rapid transit cross conflicting north/south thoroughfares at-grade in this  
                     section?  If so, what traffic controls will be used?   

DRAFT



                If there are going to be arterial grade separations, would those structures be built for 
                    bus transit or regional Rail? 
                Would DART place all of the bus transit within the Cotton Belt right-of-way, or other  
                    parallel facilities?  
 
 

DRAFT



 

1 
 

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
THE FIXING AMERICA’S SURFACE TRANSPORTATION (FAST) ACT SUMMARY 

HR 22 – 114th CONGRESS  
 

Table of Contents 
 
DIVISION A – SURFACE TRANSPORTATION .............................................................. 2 

TITLE I – FEDERAL-AID HIGHWAYS ............................................................................ 2 

Subtitle A – Authorizations and Programs ........................................................... 2 

Subtitle B – Planning and Performance Management .......................................... 9 

Subtitle C – Acceleration of Project Delivery ...................................................... 10 

Subtitle D – Miscellaneous ................................................................................ 12 

TITLE II – INNOVATIVE PROJECT FINANCE .............................................................. 15 

TITLE III – PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ...................................................................... 15 

TITLE IV – HIGHWAY TRAFFIC SAFETY .................................................................... 20 

TITLE V – MOTOR CARRIER SAFETY ........................................................................ 20 

Subtitle A – Motor Carrier Safety Grant Consolidation ....................................... 20 

TITLE VI – INNOVATION .............................................................................................. 20 

TITLE VIII – MULTIMODAL FREIGHT TRANSPORTATION ......................................... 21 

TITLE IX – NATIONAL SURFACE TRANSPORTATION ............................................... 22 
      AND INNOVATIVE FINANCE BUREAU 

TITLE XI – RAIL ............................................................................................................ 22 

Subtitle A – Authorizations ................................................................................. 22 

Subtitle B – Amtrak Reforms ............................................................................. 22 

Subtitle C – Intercity Passenger Rail Policy ....................................................... 23 

Subtitle D – Safety ............................................................................................. 23 

Subtitle E – Project Delivery .............................................................................. 24 

Subtitle F – Financing ........................................................................................ 25 

ELECTRONIC ITEM 7



 

2 
 

THE FIXING AMERICA’S SURFACE TRANSPORTATION (FAST) ACT 
HR 22 – 114TH CONGRESS 

 
DIVISION A – SURFACE TRANSPORTATION 
Sec. 1003. Effective Date 
Effective October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2020. 
 
TITLE I – FEDERAL-AID HIGHWAYS 
This title reauthorizes the Federal-aid Highway Program and highway safety programs through 
fiscal year 2020, makes policy changes and reforms to the programs and establishes two new 
freight programs. 
 
Subtitle A – Authorizations and Programs 
 
Sec. 1101. Authorization of Appropriations 
The FAST Act creates contract authority for the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). 
Programs of interest and corresponding authorization totals are shown below for fiscal years 
(FY) 2016-2020, with FY15 as a comparison. Additional funding tables and estimated highway 
apportionments by each State can be found on the FHWA website at: 
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/funding.cfm.  
 

FAST Act Funding Authorizations – Federal Highway Administration Programs 

Programs FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

Federal-aid 
Highway 
Program 

$37,798,000,000 $39,727,500,000 $40,547,805,000 $41,424,020,075 $42,358,903,696 $43,373,294,311 

Estimated Split Among Programs: 

National 
Highway 

Performance 
Program 

$21,908,178,122 $22,332,260,060 $22,827,910,827 $23,261,963,879 $23,741,388,895 $24,235,621,114 

Surface 
Transpor-

tation Block 
Grant 

Program 
(includes 

TAP below) 

$10,077,074,081 $11,162,564,768 $11,424,412,150 $11,667,786,566 $11,876,329,314 $12,136,990,131 

Transpor-
tation 

Alternatives 
Program 

(TAP now  
STBGP set-

aside) 

$819,900,000 $835,000,000 $835,000,000 $850,000,000 $850,000,000 $850,000,000 

Highway 
Safety 

Improve-
ment 

Program 
(HSIP)  

$2,192,406,423 $2,225,594,512 $2,275,061,630 $2,317,759,770 $2,359,554,152 $2,407,423,445 

 
 

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/funding.cfm


 

3 
 

FAST Act Funding Authorizations – Federal Highway Administration Programs 

Programs FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

Estimated Split Among Programs Continued: 

Safety 
Related 

Programs 
(set-aside 

from HSIP) 

$0 $3,500,000 $3,500,000 $3,500,000 $3,500,000 $3,500,000 

Railway-
Highway 

Crossings 
Program 

$220,000,000 $225,000,000 $230,000,000 $235,000,000 $240,000,000 $245,000,000 

Congestion 
Mitigation 

and Air 
Quality 

Improve-
ment 

Program 
(CMAQ) 

$2,266,889,602 $2,309,059,935 $2,360,308,101 $2,405,187,322 $2,449,216,207 $2,498,960,969 

Metropolitan 
Planning 
Program 

$313,551,772 $329,270,722 $335,938,378 $342,996,446 $350,360,775 $358,516,037 

National 
Highway 

Freight 
Program 

$0 $1,140,250,003 $1,090,673,914 $1,189,826,092 $1,338,554,353 $1,487,282,615 

Other Programs: 

TIFIA $1,000,000,000 $275,000,000 $275,000,000 $285,000,000 $300,000,000 $300,000,000 

Nationally 
Significant 

Freight and 
Highway 
Projects 

$0 $800,000,000 $850,000,000 $900,000,000 $950,000,000 $1,000,000,000 

 
Sec. 1104. Apportionment 
The FAST Act authorizes $305 billion from both the Highway Trust Fund (HTF) and the General 
Fund. It provides $225 billion in HTF contract authority over five years for the Federal-aid 
Highway Program. The bill provides $61 billion for Federal transit programs including $49 billion 
in HTF contract authority and $12 billion in funding from the General Fund. Also provided is $4.7 
billion for the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration and $3.2 billion for the Federal 
Motor Carrier Safety Administration. Finally, unlike past surface transportation bills, $10 billion is 
authorized for the Federal Railroad Administration and Amtrak.  
 
The bill also includes a $7,569,000,000 rescission of unobligated balances of contract authority 
of the States on July 1, 2020. The FAST Act spreads the rescission among States and would be 
prorated based on the unobligated balances held by states. The Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP), Railway-Highway Crossings Program, Metropolitan Planning and suballocated 
portions of the Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBGP) are not subject to the 
rescission.   
 
 
 



 

4 
 

Sec. 1105. Nationally Significant Freight and Highway Projects 
New Discretionary Program 
Section 1105 creates a new discretionary grant program for freight projects of national or 
regional significance. States, groups of states, metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs), 
local governments, special purpose districts, federal land agencies, Indian tribes or a 
combination of those, can apply and the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
Secretary will select the projects. The minimum federal grant size is $25 million. 
 
Eligible projects must be highway freight projects on the National Highway Freight Network, 
highway or bridge projects on the National Highway System (NHS), intermodal facilities or grade 
crossings. The project cost must exceed the lesser of $100 million or 30 percent of that State’s 
annual federal highway apportionment. 10 percent of the money is reserved for smaller projects 
and 25 percent of the grants must be awarded to rural areas.  
 
Grant amounts received for a project may be used for development phase activities, including 
planning, feasibility analysis, revenue forecasting, environmental review, preliminary 
engineering and design work, other preconstruction activities, as well as construction, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, acquisition of real property, environmental mitigation, construction 
contingencies, acquisition of equipment and operational improvements directly related to 
improving system performance. 
 
When making a grant, the USDOT Secretary will also consider utilization of nontraditional 
financing, innovative design and construction techniques, or innovative technologies, utilization 
of non-Federal contributions and contributions to geographic diversity among grant recipients. 
The grant’s share of total project cost is not to exceed 60 percent, which can be supplemented 
with other federal funds to a maximum of 80 percent federal share.  
 
Funding 

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

$800,000,000 $850,000,000 $900,000,000 $950,000,000 $1,000,000,000 

 
Sec. 1106. National Highway Performance Program 
Existing Program  
Section 1106 updates the funding eligibility for the National Highway Performance Program 
(NHPP). NHPP funds can be used to pay Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation 
Act (TIFIA) Program subsidy, administrative costs used for bridges off the NHS and to address 
critical infrastructure needs.  
 
Funding 

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

$22,332,260,060 $22,827,910,827 $23,261,963,879 $23,741,388,895 $24,235,621,114 

 
Sec. 1108. Railway-Highway Grade Crossings 
Existing Program 
Section 1108 amends the amount of funding set aside to railway-highway grade crossings. The 
Secretary will continue to set-aside a portion of Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 
funds for the elimination of hazards and the installation of protective devices at railway-highway 
crossings, as done in previous law. However, funding for the grade crossings program will 
increase from the current $220 million per year by $5 million each year, from $225 million in FY 



 

5 
 

16 and up to a total of $245 million in FY20. At least half of the funds set aside in each fiscal 
year will be available for the installation of protective devices at railway-highway crossings. 
 
Funding 

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

$225,000,000 $230,000,000 $235,000,000 $240,000,000 $245,000,000 

 
Sec. 1109. Surface Transportation Block Grant Program 
Amended Program 
The Surface Transportation Program name is changed to the Surface Transportation Block 
Grant Program (STBGP) to provide flexible funding to address State and local transportation 
needs. The list of projects eligible for the Surface Transportation Block Grant Program have 
been amended. Funds apportioned to a State for the program may be obligated for the 
following: 

 construction of highways, bridges, tunnels, certain ferry boats and terminal facilities, 
transit capital projects eligible for assistance under chapter 53 of title 49, infrastructure-
based intelligent transportation systems capital improvements, truck parking facilities 
eligible for funding under Section 1401 of MAP–21, and certain border infrastructure 
projects 

 operational improvements and capital and operating costs for traffic monitoring, 
management, and control facilities and programs 

 certain eligible environmental measures and transportation control measures listed in the 
Clean Air Act 

 highway and transit safety infrastructure improvements and programs, including railway-
highway grade crossings 

 fringe and corridor parking facilities and programs and carpool projects 

 recreational trails projects, pedestrian and bicycle projects (including modifications to 
comply with accessibility requirements under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990) 
and the Safe Routes to School Program 

 planning, design, or construction of boulevards and other roadways largely in the right-
of-way of former Interstate System routes or other divided highways 

 development and implementation of a State asset management plan for the National 
Highway System and a performance-based management program for other public roads 

 protection against extreme events for bridges and tunnels on public roads, and 
inspection and evaluation of bridges and tunnels and other highway assets 

 surface transportation planning programs, highway and transit research and 
development and technology transfer programs, and workforce development, training, 
and education under Chapter 5 of this title 

 surface transportation infrastructure modifications to facilitate direct intermodal 
interchange, transfer and access into and out of a port terminal 

 projects and strategies designed to support congestion pricing, including electronic toll 
collection and travel demand management strategies and programs 

 at the request of a State, subsidy and administrative costs necessary to provide an 
eligible entity Federal credit assistance under Chapter 6  

 the creation and operation by a State of an office to assist in the design, implementation, 
and oversight of public-private partnerships eligible to receive funding under this title and 
chapter 53 of title 49, and the payment of a stipend to unsuccessful private bidders to 
offset their proposal development costs, if necessary to encourage robust competition in 
public-private partnership procurements 



 

6 
 

 any type of project eligible under the Transportation Alternatives section as in effect on 
the day before the date of enactment of the FAST Act 

 
The amount of total STBGP funding sub-allocated to metropolitan areas over 200,000 on the 
basis of population increases over five years. The allocations of apportioned funds to areas 
based on population will be calculated based on the following percentages: 

 51 percent for fiscal year 2016 

 52 percent for fiscal year 2017 

 53 percent for fiscal year 2018 

 54 percent for fiscal year 2019 

 55 percent for fiscal year 2020  
 
Transportation Alternatives Program Set-aside  
The sections of Title 23 that authorized the Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) have 
been repealed, but funds are now set aside under STBGP to be used for what were known as 
the TAP before the FAST Act was enacted.  
 
Within the STBGP funds apportioned to a State for each fiscal year, the Secretary will reserve 
$835,000,000 for each of fiscal years 2016 and 2017 and $850,000,000 for each of fiscal years 
2018 through 2020 for projects under the former TAP program. These funds may be obligated 
for projects or activities described in the TAP provisions under Title 23 before the enactment of 
the FAST Act.  
 
TAP funds continue to be allocated 50/50 between States and MPOs. Areas over 200,000 in 
population may use up to 50 percent of the reserved funds for any purpose under the STBGP. 
States are required to obligate funds to recreational trails unless the Governor opts out.  
 
Funding 

Program FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

Surface Transportation 
Block Grant Program 

(Includes TAP set aside) 
$11,162,564,768 $11,424,412,150 $11,667,786,566 $11,876,329,314 $12,136,990,131 

TAP (as a reservation 
within the STBGP funds) 

$835,000,000 $835,000,000 $850,000,000 $850,000,000 $850,000,000 

MPOs over 200,000 will 
receive half of the 

TAP/STBGP set-aside 
funds allocated to states  

$417,500,000 $417,500,000 $425,000,000 $425,000,000 $425,000,000 

 
Sec. 1111. Bundling of Bridge Projects 
Section 1111 allows states to bundle two or more similar bridge projects and award a single 
contract for engineering and design or construction. The bundled project may be listed as one 
project on the Transportation Improvement Program/Statewide Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP/STIP).  
 
 
 
 



 

7 
 

Sec. 1113. Highway Safety Improvement Program 
Existing Program 
Section 1113 amends the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) to make vehicle-to-
vehicle communication equipment, pedestrian hybrid beacons and roadway improvements that 
provide separation between pedestrians and motor vehicles, such as medians and crossing 
islands, eligible for funding. States are also allowed to opt out of collecting data on gravel public 
roads.  
 
The USDOT Secretary must conduct a review of commercial motor vehicle safety best practices 
with respect to the implementation of roadway safety infrastructure improvements that are cost 
effective and reduce the number of severity of accidents involving commercial motor vehicles. 
Within one year after the date of enactment of this Act, the Secretary must submit a report to 
Congress describing the results of the review. 
 
Funding 

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

$2,225,594,512 $2,275,061,630 $2,317,759,770 $2,359,554,152 $2,407,423,445 

 
Sec. 1114. Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program 
Existing Program 
Section 1114 amends the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) 
to allow funds to be used for the installation of vehicle-to-infrastructure communication 
equipment and the purchase of port related freight operations under the PM2.5 set-aside. In 
States with a population density of 80 or fewer persons per square mile of land area based on 
the most recent decennial census, an exception is made to the requirement to prioritize funds to 
projects for PM 2.5 under certain circumstances. 
 
Funding 

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

$2,309,059,935 $2,360,308,101 $2,405,187,322 $2,449,216,207 $2,498,960,969 

 
Sec. 1116. National Highway Freight Program 
New Formula Program 
The FHWA Administrator will establish the National Highway Freight Program as part of the 
core Federal-aid Highway Program structure to improve the efficient movement of freight on the 
National Highway Freight Network.  
 
The Administrator will establish a National Highway Freight Network with policy and goals. The 
initial designation of the primary highway freight system will be the 41,518-mile network 
identified during the designation process for the primary freight network in MAP-21. In addition, 
the National Highway Freight Network will consist of a primary highway freight system, critical 
rural freight corridors, critical urban freight corridors and the portions of the Interstate System 
not already designated as part of the primary highway freight system.  
 
After five years, the Administrator will redesignate the primary highway freight system every five 
years, but cap the increase in mileage to not more than three percent of the total system. A 
process for redesignation is established. In redesignating the primary highway freight system, 
the Administrator will consider the following:  

 changes in the origins and destinations of freight movement in, to, and from the United 
States 



 

8 
 

 changes in the percentage of annual daily truck traffic in the annual average daily traffic 
on principal arterials  

 changes in the location of key facilities  

 land and water ports of entry  

 access to energy exploration, development, installation, or production areas,  

 access to other freight intermodal facilities, including rail, air, water, and pipelines 
facilities 

 the total freight tonnage and value moved via highways 

 significant freight bottlenecks, as identified by the Administrator 

 the significance of goods movement on principal arterials, including consideration of 
global and domestic supply chains  

 critical emerging freight corridors and critical commerce corridors  

 network connectivity 
 
The criteria to designate critical rural and urban corridors is established under this section. In an 
urbanized area with a population of 500,000 or more individuals, the MPO, in consultation with 
the State, may designate a public road in the State as a critical urban freight corridor. In an 
urbanized area with a population of less than 500,000 individuals, the State, in consultation with 
the MPO, may designate a public road in the State as a critical urban freight corridor. 
 
The requirements for urban designations are also established. A designation may be made if 
the public road is in an urbanized area and 1) connects an intermodal facility to the primary 
highway freight system, the Interstate System or an intermodal freight facility, 2) is located 
within a corridor of a route on the primary highway freight system and provides an alternative 
highway option important to goods movement, 3) serves a major freight generator, logistic 
center, or manufacturing and warehouse industrial land, or 4) is important to the movement of 
freight within the region, as determined by the MPO or the State. For each State, a maximum of 
75 miles of highway or 10 percent of the primary highway freight system mileage in the State, 
whichever is greater, may be designated as a critical urban freight corridor. 
 
States may use funding to improve freight mobility on the network. The Administrator will 
calculate each State’s proportion of the primary highway freight system based on mileage in a 
State. If a State’s proportion is greater than or equal to two percent, the State may obligate 
funds apportioned to the State for projects on the primary highway freight system and critical 
rural and urban corridors. In States with less than two percent of the miles, the State may 
obligate funds for any component of the National Highway Freight Network. 
 
States are required to develop a freight plan within two years or lose the ability to obligate funds. 
Project eligibility is defined as being able to contribute to the efficient movement of freight on the 
National Highway Freight Network and to be identified in a freight investment plan included in a 
freight plan of the State that is in effect. 
 
Each fiscal year, a State may obligate no more than ten percent of the total apportionment of 
the state for freight rail projects or freight intermodal projects. Uses of the funds are further 
defined as development phase activities, preliminary engineering and design, other 
preconstruction activities, construction, Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS), reduction of 
environmental impacts and many other activities that improve the flow of freight into and out of a 
facility. 
 
 



 

9 
 

Funding 

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

$1,140,250,003 $1,090,673,914 $1,189,826,092 $1,338,554,353 $1,487,282,615 

 
Sec. 1122. State Flexibility for National Highway System Modifications 
In Section 1122, USDOT is directed to issue guidance within 90 days to States on the 
reclassification of roads recently added to the NHS per MAP-21 and to identify any needed 
functional classification changes to rural and urban principal arterials. 
 
Subtitle B – Planning and Performance Management 
 
Sec. 1201. Metropolitan Transportation Planning 
Existing Program 
Section 1201 amends current law by directing planners to consider new planning factors. The 
Transportation Plan and TIP for each metropolitan area are amended by directing planners to 
consider intermodal facilities that support intercity transportation, including intercity buses and 
intercity bus facilities and commuter vanpool providers. Planners must also include 
considerations of resiliency and responsiveness to natural disasters.  
 
Tourism and natural disaster risk reduction are added in MPO consultation in Plan and TIP 
coordination. MPOs are encouraged to consult with State agencies that plan for tourism and 
natural risk reduction. System resiliency and reliability and reducing or mitigating storm-water 
impacts on surface transportation are added as new planning factors.  
 
MAP-21 language that required representation by providers of public transportation in each 
MPO that serves a transportation management area has been clarified. Designation or selection 
of officials or representatives will be determined by the MPO according to the bylaws or 
enabling statute of the organization. A public transportation representative may also serve as a 
representative of a local municipality, subject to the bylaws or enabling statute of the MPO.  
 
A new optional Congestion Management Plan is also added, in addition to the currently required 
Congestion Management Process. An MPO serving a transportation management area may 
develop a plan that includes projects and strategies that will be considered in the MPO’s TIP. 
Such a plan must  

1) Develop regional goals to reduce vehicle miles traveled during peak commuting hours 
and improve transportation connections between areas with high job concentration and 
areas with high concentrations of low-income households; 
2) Identify existing public transportation services, employer-based commuter programs 
and other existing transportation services that support access to jobs in the region; and 
3) Identify proposed projects and programs to reduce congestion and increase job 
access opportunities. 

 
In developing the Transportation Plan, an MPO shall consult with employers, private and 
nonprofit providers of public transportation, transportation management organizations and 
organizations that provide job access reverse commute projects or job-related services to low-
income individuals. 
 
Funding 

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

$329,270,722 $335,938,378 $342,996,446 $350,360,775 $358,516,037 



 

10 
 

Sec. 1202. Statewide and Nonmetropolitan Transportation Planning 
Similar changes as above in the Metropolitan Transportation Planning Section 1201. Current 
law is amended to direct planners to consider intermodal facilities that support intercity 
transportation, including intercity buses and intercity bus facilities and commuter vanpool 
providers, public ports, travel and tourism, as well as include considerations of resiliency and 
responsiveness to natural disasters. Private transportation should include consideration of 
intercity bus operators and employer-based commuting programs.  
 
Subtitle C – Acceleration of Project Delivery 
 
Sec. 1304. Efficient Environmental Reviews for Project Decision Making 
Section 1304 redefines the term “multimodal project” as a project that requires the approval of 
more than one USDOT operating administration or secretarial office. Redefines the term 
“project” as any highway project, public transportation capital project or multimodal project that, 
if implemented as proposed by the project sponsor, would require approval by any operating 
administration or secretarial office within the USDOT and adds consideration of Federal funding 
or financing.  
 
The deadline for a lead agency to identify participating agencies is changed from “as early as 
practicable in the environmental review process” to a 45-day deadline from the date of 
publication of a notice of intent to prepare an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) or 
Environmental Assessment (EA).  
 
An operating administration of USDOT is allowed to be the lead agency and the role of the lead 
agency is expanded to consider and respond to comments from participating agencies with 
special expertise. The lead agency is required to develop an environmental document sufficient 
to satisfy the requirements for any Federal approval or other Federal action required for the 
project, including permits. Other participating agencies must cooperate with the lead agency 
and provide timely information. An agency participating in the process must provide comments, 
responses, studies or methodologies on the areas within the agency’s expertise or jurisdiction.  
 
Language is added for the project sponsor to notify the Secretary about any additional 
information the sponsor considers to be important to the project. The Secretary has 45 days, 
after receiving a notification from the sponsor to initiate a review, to provide a written response 
to a project sponsor in the decision to proceed, decline or request additional information.   
 
Language is added addressing reducing duplication in the evaluation process. The lead agency 
is allowed to eliminate an alternative proposed in an environmental impact statement and list the 
potential reasons for elimination. 
 
A lead agency must prepare an EIS or initiate an EA no later than 90 days after publication of 
the notice of intent (NOI). The lead agency is required to establish a schedule of completion of 
the environmental review process as part of its coordination plan. 
 
A new paragraph titled, “Accelerated decision making in environmental reviews” is added and 
allows the lead agency to use errata sheets rather than requiring draft EIS when modifying a 
response to minor comments and factual corrections. The lead agency is required to develop a 
single document that consists of a final EIS and a record of decision (ROD). A Federal agency 
participating in the process is required to provide information to the Secretary on the status and 
progress of the approval of the project for online publication. State and local agencies 



 

11 
 

participating the process are encouraged to provide information regarding the status and 
approval of the project to be published online.  
 
Sec. 1305. Integration of Planning and Environmental Review 
Section 1305 defines a planning product as a decision, analysis, study or other documented 
information that is the result of an evaluation or decision making process carried out by an MPO 
or a State during metropolitan or statewide transportation planning. Agencies meeting certain 
requirements are now allowed to adopt or incorporate by reference and use a planning product 
in proceedings relating to any class of action in the environmental review process of the project.  
Agencies meeting certain requirements are allowed to adopt or incorporate by reference an 
entire planning product or select portions of a planning project. 
 
The relevant agency in the environmental review process may adopt or incorporate by reference 
a planning product under this section if the relevant agency determines the planning product is 
necessary for a cooperating agency to issue a permit, review, or approval for the project, with 
the concurrence of the cooperating agency. Any planning product adopted or incorporated by 
reference by the relevant agency in accordance with this section may be 1) incorporated directly 
into an environmental review process document or other environmental document and 2) relied 
on and used by other Federal agencies in carrying out reviews of the project. 
 
Sec. 1308. Surface Transportation Project Delivery Program 
Section 1308 allows a State to provide the Secretary any information considered reasonably 
necessary, instead of necessary. A State can assume responsibility in lieu of the responsibilities 
of the Secretary with respect to one or more highway projects within the State under the 
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, and without further approval of the Secretary. The 
Secretary can carry out education, training and other initiatives with cooperation of State 
officials. A State is granted authority to act on behalf of a local government on a locally 
administered project and outlines such responsibilities.  
 
Sec. 1309. Program for Eliminating Duplication of Environmental Reviews 
Section 1309 adds a new program for eliminating duplication of environmental reviews. The 
Secretary will establish a pilot program to authorize five States, selected by the Secretary, to 
conduct environmental reviews and make approvals for projects. A State that is participating in 
the program is allowed to apply the NEPA process, instead of the alternative environmental 
review and approval procedures of the State. Federal agencies with project authority will adopt 
or incorporate documents produced by the participating State. States with an approved program 
can exercise authority on behalf of up to 25 local governments for local administered projects. 
The program will terminate 12 years after enactment of this section.  
 
Sec. 1311. Accelerated Decision Making in Environmental Reviews 
Section 1311 amends current law by adding “Accelerated Decision Making in Environmental 
Reviews.” In preparing a final environmental impact statement under NEPA, when a lead 
agency modifies the statement in response to comments that are minor, the lead agency may 
write on errata sheets attached to the statement, instead of rewriting the draft statement. 
 
The lead agency must expeditiously develop a single document that consists of a final 
environmental impact statement and a record of decision, and lists the exceptions. The process 
for avoiding duplication of documents is outlined further in this section.  
 
Within 180 days, the Secretary must issue guidance to implement this section. 
 



 

12 
 

Sec. 1313. Aligning Federal Environmental Reviews 
Within one year, the USDOT must develop a coordinated and concurrent environmental review 
and permitting process for transportation projects when initiating an environmental impact 
statement under NEPA.  
 
Within 90 days, the Secretary and Federal agencies of jurisdiction likely to have substantive 
review or approval responsibilities on transportation projects must jointly develop a checklist to 
help project sponsors identify potential natural, cultural and historic resources in the area of a 
proposed project. 
 
Consistent with Federal environmental statutes, the Secretary must facilitate annual interagency 
collaboration sessions at the appropriate jurisdictional level to coordinate business plans and 
facilitate coordination of workload planning and workforce management. 
 
Within one year, the Secretary must establish a program to measure and report on progress 
toward aligning Federal reviews and reducing permitting and project delivery time. 
 
Within two years and biennially thereafter, the Secretary must submit a progress report to 
Congress.  
 
Sec. 1316. Assumption of Authorities 
Under Section 1316, the Secretary will allow a State to assume the responsibilities of the 
Secretary for project design, plans, specifications, estimates, contract awards and inspection of 
projects, on both a project-specific and programmatic basis.  
 
No later than 18 months after enactment of this Act, the Secretary, in cooperation with the 
States, must submit recommendations for legislation to permit the assumption of additional 
authorities by States, to the Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure of the House of 
Representatives and the Committee on Environment and Public Works of the Senate. 
 
Sec. 1317. Modernization of the Environmental Review Process 
Within 180 days, the Secretary must examine ways to modernize, simplify and improve the 
implementation of the NEPA process. The Secretary must submit a Congressional report 
describing the results of the report.  
 
Subtitle D – Miscellaneous 
 
Sec. 1401. Prohibition on the use of funds for automated traffic enforcement 
Section 1401 prohibits any federal HSIP money apportioned for FY16-20 from being used to 
purchase, operate or maintain an automated traffic enforcement system.  
 
Sec. 1402. Highway Trust Fund transparency and accountability 
Within 180 days, USDOT must implement requirements for semiannual reporting to the public of 
state highway obligations, balances and spending rates of HTF apportionments.  
 
Sec. 1403. Additional Deposits into Highway Trust Fund 
If any additional laws are enacted after the enactment of the FAST Act that makes special 
deposits into the HTF, the money will be added to highway and transit formula programs, 
prorated and automatically made available for obligation.  
 
 



 

13 
 

Sec. 1404. Design Standards 
Section 1404 permits local jurisdictions to use design standards that differ from a State’s under 
certain circumstances.  
 
Sec. 1407. Vehicle-to-Infrastructure Equipment 
Section 1407 makes the installation of vehicle-to-vehicle communication equipment eligible for 
NHPP and STBGP.  
 
Sec. 1408. Federal Share Payable 
Section 1408 amends current law to add engineering or design approaches to innovative project 
delivery for 100 percent federal share category and adds additional examples to the list of 
innovative methods.  
 
Sec. 1411. Tolling; HOV facilities; Interstate Reconstruction and Rehabilitation 
Section 1411 provides over-the-road buses the same access to high occupancy vehicle (HOV) 
facilities as public transportation buses.  
 
Greater tolling of HOV facilities by public authorities is allowed and a three-year sunset on toll 
pilot project applications provisionally approved by USDOT is set. The application may be 
approved if any part of the application met the deadline.  
 
MPOs must be consulted if tolls are placed on high occupancy vehicle tolled facilities on an 
Interstate in its planning area.  
 
A state must have approved enabling legislation before it can participate in the current Interstate 
System Reconstruction and Rehabilitation Pilot program. An application provisionally approved 
by the Secretary will expire unless certain conditions are met, but the Secretary may extend the 
provisional approval for up to one additional year if the State demonstrates material progress 
toward implementation of the project. 
 
Sec. 1413. National Electric Vehicle Charging and Hydrogen, Propane, and Natural Gas 
Fueling Corridors 
Section 1413 directs USDOT to designate national electric vehicle charging, hydrogen, propane 
and natural gas fueling corridors within one year. In designating the corridors, the Secretary 
shall solicit nominations from State and local officials for facilities to be included in the corridors, 
incorporate existing charging and fueling corridors designated by a State or group of States and 
consider the demand for, and location of, existing electric vehicle charging stations, hydrogen 
fueling stations, propane fueling stations and natural gas fueling infrastructure. The Secretary 
will also involve stakeholders on a voluntary basis. After five years, and every five years 
thereafter, the Secretary will update and redesignate the corridors.  
 
The Administrator of General Services is allowed to install, construct, operate and maintain 
battery charging stations for Federal employees in Federal employee private vehicle parking 
lots.  
 
Sec. 1427. Highway Work Zones 
It is the sense of Congress that the Federal Highway Administration should do all within its 
power to protect workers in highway work zones and move rapidly to finalize regulations to 
protect the lives and safety of construction workers in highway work zones from vehicle 
intrusions. 
 



 

14 
 

Sec. 1430. Use of Modeling and Simulation Technology 
It is the sense of Congress that the Department should utilize, to the fullest and most 
economically feasible extent practicable, modeling and simulation technology to analyze 
highway and public transportation projects authorized by this Act to ensure that these projects 
will increase transportation capacity and safety, alleviate congestion, reduce travel time and 
environmental impacts, and are as cost effective as practicable. 
 
Sec. 1431. National Advisory Committee on Travel and Tourism Infrastructure 
Within 180 days, the Secretary must establish an advisory committee to be known as the 
National Advisory Committee on Travel and Tourism Infrastructure to provide information, 
advice, and recommendations to the Secretary on matters relating to the role of intermodal 
transportation in facilitating mobility related to travel and tourism activities. 
 
Sec. 1437. Border State Infrastructure 
After consultation with relevant transportation planning organizations, the Governor of a State 
that shares a land border with Canada or Mexico may designate for each fiscal year no more 
than five percent of the funds made available to the State for border infrastructure projects. 
 
Sec. 1438. Adjustments 
On July 1, 2020, a rescission of $7,569,000,000 in unobligated balances of contract authority of 
the States would take place. The Highway Safety Improvement Program, Railway-Highway 
Crossings Program, Metropolitan Planning and suballocated portions of the Surface 
Transportation Block Grant Program are not subject to the rescission, along with safety-related 
apportionments.  The rescission amounts would be prorated based on the unobligated balances 
held by States on September 30, 2019, and within each State, the amount will be 
proportionately applied to each program based on the unobligated balances in that program at 
the time.  
 
Sec. 1442. Safety for Users 
The Secretary shall encourage each State and MPO to adopt standards for the design of 
Federal surface transportation projects that provide for the safe and adequate accommodation 
of all users of the surface transportation network, including motorized and nonmotorized users, 
in all phases of project planning, development and operation. 
 
Within two years, the Secretary must make a report available to the public cataloging examples 
of State law or State transportation policy that provide for the safe and adequate 
accommodation of all users of the surface transportation network, in all phases of project 
planning, development and operation.  
 
Based on the report, the Secretary must identify and disseminate examples of best practices 
where States have adopted measures that have successfully provided for the safe and 
adequate accommodation of all users of the surface transportation network in all phases of 
project planning, development and operation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

15 
 

TITLE II – INNOVATIVE PROJECT FINANCE 
This title makes modifications to the TIFIA program.  
 
Sec. 2001. Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act of 1998 
Amendments (TIFIA) 
Existing Program 
 
Section 2001 adds modifications to expand access to the TIFIA program to rural areas and 
small projects. Current law is amended to add capitalizing a rural project fund under eligible 
project costs. The definition for rural infrastructure project is expanded to encompass a project 
located in an area outside of an urbanized area with a population greater than 150,000 
individuals. Assistance to small projects is added to eligible projects with costs equal or 
exceeding $75,000,000. Transit-oriented development (TOD) projects are also now eligible to 
apply for TIFIA loans. 
 
USDOT is directed to establish a streamlined application process for use by an eligible applicant 
under certain circumstances. The ability of a state to capitalize their state infrastructure bank 
with their federal-aid highway funds for FY16-20 is reinstated.  
 
Funding 

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

$275,000,000 $275,000,000 $285,000,000 $300,000,000 $300,000,000 

 
TITLE III – PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
This title reauthorizes the programs of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) through fiscal 
year 2020 and includes reforms aimed at improving mobility, streamlining capital project 
construction and acquisition, as well as works to increase the safety of public transportation 
systems. 
 
Sec. 3001. Short Title 
This title may be cited as the Federal Public Transportation Act of 2015. 
 
Sec. 3003. Metropolitan and Statewide Transportation Planning 
Similar to Section 1201 Metropolitan Transportation Planning under the Highway title of this Act, 
MAP-21 language that required representation by providers of public transportation in each 
MPO that serves a transportation management area has been clarified. Designation or selection 
of officials or representatives will be determined by the MPO according to the bylaws or 
enabling statute of the organization.  
 
Again, similar to Section 1201, an optional Congestion Management Plan may be included in 
the TIP. The plan will develop regional goals that reduce vehicle miles traveled (VMT) during 
peak commuting hours, improve connections between people and jobs and identify proposed 
projects and programs that reduce congestion.  
 
Funding 

 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

Metropolitan Transportation Planning 
(5303) 

 $108,141,510  $110,347,597  $112,664,897  $115,053,393  $117,492,524  

Statewide Trans Planning (5304)  $22,590,490   $23,051,336   $23,535,414   $24,034,364   $24,543,893  

 Planning Programs Total (5305) $130,732,000 $133,398,933 $136,200,310 $139,087,757 $142,036,417 



 

16 
 

Sec. 3004. Urbanized Area Formula Grants 
Section 3004 amends current law to create an exception to the urbanized area formula grants 
that allows for partnerships between public transportation systems. The exception to the rule will 
permit operating assistance within the urbanized area to allow two or more systems to allocate 
funds for operations under a written agreement. Facilities and equipment must also be 
maintained in accordance with the recipient’s transit asset management plan.  
 
Funding 

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

$4,538,905,700 $4,629,683,814 $4,726,907,174 $4,827,117,606 $4,929,452,499 

 
Sec. 3005. Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants 
Section 3005 amends current law by striking the requirement that corridor based bus rapid 
transit (BRT) operate short headway bidirectional service for a part of weekend days.  
 
The definition of program of interrelated projects is amended to include Small Starts projects.  
The definition of Small Starts is amended to increase the federal assistance up to $100 million 
and increase the total net capital costs to $300 million.  
 
Current law is amended to introduce an early rating procedure for fixed guideway capital 
investment grants. The federal share of a full funding grant agreement for a new fixed guideway 
capital project is changed to 60 percent and the remaining costs locations are defined. 
Grants are provided for joint public transportation and intercity passenger rail projects.  
 
A pilot program is introduced that streamlines regulatory steps for up to eight grants for new 
fixed guideway capital projects, core capacity improvement projects or small start projects 
seeking a Federal funding level of 25 percent or less. 
 
Funding 

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

$2,301,785,760 $2,301,785,760 $2,301,785,760 $2,301,785,760 $2,301,785,760 

 
Sec. 3006. Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities 
Introduces a pilot program to provide grants for innovative projects that improve the coordination 
of transportation services and non-emergency medical transportation, including the deployment 
of technology. Directs the Interagency Transportation Coordinating Council to create a strategic 
plan that outlines the role and responsibilities of each federal agency with respect to local 
transportation, identify areas of collaboration and address recommendations made by the 
report.  
 
Funding 

 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and 
Individuals with Disabilities 

$262,949,400  $268,208,388  $273,840,764  $279,646,188  $285,574,688  

Pilot Program for Enhanced Mobility  $2,000,000   $3,000,000   $3,250,000   $3,500,000   $3,500,000  

 
Sec. 3008. Public Transportation Innovation 
Section 3008 directs the Secretary to provide assistance for projects and activities that advance 
innovative public transportation research and development. The Secretary is directed to select 
at least one facility to engage in research associated with low or no emission vehicles. 



 

17 
 

Sec. 3009. Technical Assistance and Workforce Development 
Section 3009 allows the Secretary to make grants, contracts and agreements for programs that 
will assist recipients of public transportation with more effective and improved service. The 
Secretary is directed to establish a competitive grant program to assist in the development of 
innovative workforce development. The Secretary will also establish a national transit institute 
and award grants to a public four-year degree-granting institution of higher education in order to 
carry out the duties of the institute. 
 
Sec. 3011. General Provisions 
Section 3011 amends the current Buy America waiver provision to include rolling stock 
manufactures that procure iron and steel produced in the US, to include the cost of that iron and 
steel in the domestic content calculation, when the iron or steel is used in the rolling stock 
frames or cars. If the Secretary denies a Buy America waiver, the Secretary must issue written 
certification that the steel, iron or manufactured goods are produced in America in a sufficient 
and reasonably available amount. 
 
Sec. 3013. Public Transportation Safety Program 
Section 3013 provides the Secretary with increased authority to assist public transportation 
systems and the State with safety needs. 
 
Sec. 3015. State of Good Repair Grants 
Section 3015 states that a grant for a capital project under this section shall be for 80 percent of 
the net project cost. The remainder of the net project cost shall be provided in cash from non-
Government sources, from revenues derived from the sale of advertising and concessions, or 
from an undistributed cash surplus, a replacement or depreciation cash fund or reserve or new 
capital. 
 
Funding 

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

$2,507,000,000 $2,549,007,000 $2,593,700,000 $2,638,400,000 $2,683,800,000 

 
Sec. 3016. Authorizations 
The table below shows the funds available from the Mass Transit Account of the Highway Trust 
Fund to carry out sections 5305, 5307, 5310, 5311, 5312, 5314, 5318, 5335, 5337, 5339, and 
5340, section 20005(b) of the Federal Public Transportation Act of 2012 and sections 3006(b) of 
the Federal Public Transportation Act of 2015. 
 

FAST Act Funding Authorizations – FTA Programs 

 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

Formula and 
Bus Grant 
Programs 

$8,595,000,000 $9,347,604,639 $9,534,706,043 $9,733,353,407 $9,939,380,030 $10,150,348,462 

Estimated Split Among Programs: 

Planning 
Programs 

(5305) 
$128,800,000 $130,732,000 $133,398,933 $136,200,310 $139,087,757 $142,036,417 

Urbanized 
Area Formula 
Grants (5307) 

$4,458,700,00 $4,538,905,700 $4,629,683,814 $4,726,907,174 $4,827,117,606 $4,929,452,499 



 

18 
 

FAST Act Funding Authorizations – FTA Programs 

 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

Estimated Split Among Programs Continued: 

Elderly/ 
Disabled 

(5310) 
$258,300,000 262,949,400 268,208,388 $273,840,764 $279,646,188 $285,574,688 

Mobility of 
Seniors/ 

Disabled Pilot 
Program 

(5310) 

$0 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $3,250,000 $3,500,000 $3,500,000 

Rural Formal 
Grants (5311) 

$607,800,000 $619,956,000 $632,355,120 $645,634,578 $659,322,031 $673,299,658 

Transit 
Research 

(5312) 
$0 $20,000,000 $20,000,000 $20,000,000 $20,000,000 $20,000,000 

Bust Testing 
Facility (5318) 

$3,000,000 $3,000,000 $3,000,000 $3,000,000 $3,000,000 $3,000,000 

National 
Transit 

Database 
(5335) 

$3,900,000 $4,000,000 $4,000,000 $4,000,000 $4,000,000 $4,000,000 

State of Good 
Repair Grants 

(5337) 
$2,165,900,000 $2,507,000,000 $2,549,007,000 $2,593,700,000 $2,638,400,000 $2,683,800,000 

Bus and Bus 
Facility 

Grants (5339) 

                
$427,800,000  

         
$695,800,000  

                  
$719,956,000  

                 
$747,033,476  

               
$777,024,469  

                
$808,653,915  

Fast 
Growth/High 

Density 
(5340) 

          
$525,900,000  

                
$536,261,539  

              
$544,433,788  

                 
$552,783,547  

                 
$561,315,120  

               
$570,032,917  

Other Programs: 

Capital 
Investment 

Grants (5309) 
$2,120,000,000 $2,301,785,760 $2,301,785,760 $2,301,785,760 $2,301,785,760 $2,301,785,760 

Positive Train 
Control 
Grants 

$0 $0 $199,000,000 $0 $0 $0 

 
Sec. 3017. Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities 
Section 3017 allows the Secretary to make grants to assist eligible recipients in financing capital 
projects to replace, rehabilitate and purchase buses and related equipment, including 
technological changes or innovations to modify low or no emission vehicles or facilities and to 
construct bus-related facilities. Eligible recipients are designated recipients that allocate funds to 
fixed route bus operators or State or local governmental entities that operate fixed route bus 
service. 
 
Current law is amended to allow recipients in a specific State to pool their formula funds to allow 
for the accommodation of larger scale procurements. For each of fiscal years 2016 through 
2020, the Secretary will carry out a pilot program under which an eligible recipient in an 
urbanized area with population between 200,000 and 999,999 may elect to participate in a State 
pool.  
 



 

19 
 

The Bus and Bus Facilities Competitive Grant program is reinstated to assist in the financing of 
buses and bus facilities capital projects, including replacing, rehabilitating, purchasing or leasing 
buses or related equipment and rehabilitating, purchasing, constructing or leasing bus-related 
facilities. The Secretary will consider the age and condition of buses, bus fleets, related 
equipment, and bus-related facilities. States are allowed to submit statewide applications for bus 
needs, allowing the state to distribute competitively awarded funds. Grant requirements include 
a 10 percent rural set-aside and a cap that not more than 10 percent of all grant amounts can 
be awarded to a single grantee.  
 
The Secretary can make low or no emission grants to recipients to finance to a project or 
eligible program of projects in an eligible area for: 

 acquiring low or no emission vehicles 

 leasing low or no emission vehicles 

 acquiring low or no emission vehicles with a leased power source 

 constructing facilities and related equipment for low or no emission vehicles 

 leasing facilities and related equipment for low or no emission vehicles 

 constructing new public transportation facilities to accommodate low or no emission 
vehicles 

 rehabilitating or improving existing public transportation facilities to accommodate low or 
no emission vehicles 

 
Funding 

 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Grants $427,800,000  $436,356,000  $445,519,476  $454,964,489  $464,609,736  

Bus and Bus Facilities Competitive 
Grants 

$268,000,000  $283,600,000  $301,514,000  $322,059,980  $344,044,179  

 
Sec. 3020. Review of Public Transportation Safety Standards 
Section 3020 directs the Secretary to review the safety standards used in United States transit. 
The Secretary will evaluate the need to establish additional federal minimum public transit 
safety standards and to make a comprehensive set of recommendations to improve the safety 
of the public transportation industry.  
 
Sec. 3023. Paratransit System under FTA Approved Coordinated Plan 
Section 3023 permits any paratransit system currently coordinating complementary paratransit 
service for more than 40 fixed route agencies to continue using an existing tiered, distance-
based coordinated paratransit fare system. 
 
Sec. 3028. Authorization of Grants for Positive Train Control 
Section 3028 authorizes $199 million from the Mass Transit Account of the Highway Trust Fund 
in FY17 for installation of positive train control (PTC). Funds are to be awarded competitively 
with 80 percent federal share and only recipients of funds under transit are eligible.  
 
Funding 

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

$0 $199,000,000 $0 $0 $0 

 
 
 
 



 

20 
 

TITLE IV – HIGHWAY TRAFFIC SAFETY 
This title makes reforms to existing law to help keep drivers, pedestrians and roads safer.  
 
Sec. 4001. Authorization of Appropriations 
Section 4001 reauthorizes highway traffic safety programs administered by the National 
Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHSTA) through FY 2020. 
 
Sec. 4002. Highway Safety Programs 
Section 4002 requires States that have an automated traffic enforcement system to use 
apportioned funds to conduct a biennial online survey about the system.  
 
The Secretary, in coordination with the Governors Highway Safety Association, will develop 
procedures to allow States to submit highway safety plans in electronic form.  
 
Sec. 4005. National Priority Safety Programs 
Section 4005 allocates funding to the following programs: Occupant Protection, State Traffic 
Safety Information System Improvements, Impaired Driving Countermeasures, Distracted 
Driving, Motorcyclist Safety, State Graduated Driver Licensing Laws and Nonmotorized Safety.  
 
TITLE V – MOTOR CARRIER SAFETY 
This title includes reforms to improve truck and bus safety.  
 
Subtitle A – Motor Carrier Safety Grant Consolidation 
 
Sec. 5101. Grants to States 
Section 5101 creates a motor carrier safety assistance program where the Secretary will 
prescribe procedures for a State to submit a multiple-year plan and update the plan annually. 
The State agrees to assume responsibility for improving motor carrier safety by adopting and 
enforcing State regulations, standards and orders that are compatible with the regulations, 
standards and orders of the Federal Government on commercial motor vehicle safety and 
hazardous materials transportation safety. 
 
The Secretary will establish an innovative technology deployment grant program to make 
discretionary grants to eligible States for the innovative technology deployment of commercial 
motor vehicle information systems and networks. 
 
The Secretary will administer a commercial motor vehicle operator grant program. 
 
Sec. 5103. Authorization of Appropriations 
Section 5103 authorizes the programs of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration 
(FMCSA) through FY 2020. The Act also authorizes a new testing method to detect the use of 
drugs and alcohol by commercial motor vehicle drivers.  
 
TITLE VI – INNOVATION 
This title reauthorizes the programs for the research activities of the USDOT through fiscal year 
2020 and includes provisions to promote innovations and the use of transportation technology.  
 
Sec. 6001. Short title. 
Section 6001 defines this title as the Transportation for Tomorrow Act of 2015. 
 
 



 

21 
 

Sec. 6002. Authorization of appropriations. 
Section 6002 reauthorizes the programs for the research activities of the USDOT through fiscal 
year 2020. 
 
Sec. 6004. Advanced Transportation and Congestion Management Technologies 
Deployment 
Within six months, the Secretary must establish an advanced transportation and congestion 
management technologies deployment initiative to provide grants to eligible entities to develop 
model deployment sites for large scale installation and operation of advanced transportation 
technologies to improve safety, efficiency, system performance and infrastructure return on 
investment.  
 
Sec. 6020. Surface Transportation System Funding Alternatives 
The Secretary will establish a program to provide grants to states to demonstrate user-based 
alternative revenue mechanisms that utilize a user fee structure to maintain the long-term 
solvency of the Highway Trust Fund.  
 
Sec. 6028. Performance Management Data Support Program 
The Federal Highway Administrator must develop, use and maintain data sets and data analysis 
tools to assist metropolitan planning organizations, States and the Federal Highway 
Administration in carrying out performance management analyses, including the performance 
management requirements. 
 
TITLE VIII – MULTIMODAL FREIGHT TRANSPORTATION 
 
Sec. 8001. Multimodal Freight Transportation 
Section 8001 amends current national multimodal freight policy by directing the Under Secretary 
of Transportation for Policy to oversee and implement a national multimodal freight policy and 
objectives. Within two years, the Under Secretary must develop a national freight strategic plan 
and publish the plan on the USDOT website.   
 
The Under Secretary must also establish a National Multimodal Freight Network that includes 
the National Highway Freight Network, the freight rail systems of Class I railroads, public ports, 
the inland and intracoastal waterways of the US, the Great Lakes, the St. Lawrence Seaway, 
the 50 airports with the highest annual landed weight and other strategic freight assets.  
 
The Under Secretary will solicit input from stakeholders, transportation providers, metropolitan 
planning organizations, local governments, ports, airports, railroads and States through a public 
process to identify critical freight facilities and corridors. No later than five years after the initial 
designation and every five years thereafter, the Under Secretary, must redesignate the National 
Multimodal Freight Network. 
 
The Secretary of Transportation will encourage each State to establish a freight advisory 
committee consisting of a representative cross-section of public and private sector freight 
stakeholders, including representatives of ports, freight railroads, shippers, carriers, freight-
related associations, third-party logistics providers, the freight industry workforce, the 
transportation department of the State and local governments. States will also develop a freight 
plan that provides a comprehensive plan for the immediate and long-range planning activities 
and investments of the State with respect to freight. 
 
 



 

22 
 

Within one year, the Secretary must begin development of new tools and improvement of 
planning tools and methodologies.  
 
Nothing in this subtitle provides additional authority to regulate or direct private activity on freight 
networks.  
 
TITLE IX – NATIONAL SURFACE TRANSPORTATION AND INNOVATIVE FINANCE 
BUREAU 
 
Sec. 9001 National Surface Transportation and Innovative Finance Bureau 
Section 9001 creates the National Surface Transportation and Innovative Finance Bureau, 
within USDOT, to run the TIFIA, RRIF, and the National Significant Freight and Highway 
Projects Program. The Secretary will eliminate any USDOT office that is made redundant by the 
creation of the bureau.  
 
TITLE XI – RAIL 
 
Subtitle A – Authorizations 
 
Sec. 11101. Authorization of Grants to Amtrak 

Program FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

Amtrak Activities with the 
Northeast Corridor 

$450,000,000 $474,000,000 $515,000,000 $557,000,000 $600,000,000 

Amtrak Activities with the National 
Network 

$1,000,000,000 $1,026,000,000 $1,085,000,000 $1,143,000,000 $1,200,000,000 

 
Subtitle B – Amtrak Reforms 
 
Sec. 11201. Accounts 
Within 180 days, the Secretary of Transportation must define an account structure and 
improvements to accounting methodologies to support the Northeast Corridor and the National 
Network. 
 
Within one year, Amtrak must implement any account structures and improvements so that 
Amtrak is able to produce profit and loss statements for each of the business lines. No later than 
one month after the implementation and monthly thereafter, Amtrak must submit updated profit 
and loss statements for each of the business lines and asset categories to the Secretary.  
 
For the purposes of account management, Amtrak may transfer funds between the Northeast 
Corridor account and National Network account without prior notification and approval if they 
would not materially affect Amtrak’s ability to meets its goals or violate grant agreements.  
 
Sec. 11204. State-Supported Route Committee 
Within 180 days, the Secretary of Transportation must establish the State-Supported Route 
Committee to promote mutual cooperation and planning pertaining to the rail operations of 
Amtrak and related activities of trains operated by Amtrak on State-supported routes.  
 
Sec. 11206. Route and Service Planning Decisions 
Within 180 days, Amtrak must obtain the services of an independent entity to develop and 
recommend objective methodologies to use in determining what intercity rail passenger 



 

23 
 

transportation routes and services it should provide, including the establishment of new routes, 
the elimination of existing routes and the contraction or expansion of services.  
 
Within one year, Amtrak must transmit the recommendations to Congress. No later than 90 
days after the recommendations are transmitted, the Amtrak Board of Directors must consider 
the adoption of each recommendation and transmit a report to Congress explaining the reasons 
for adopting or not adopting each recommendation. 
 
Sec. 11212. Station Development 
Within one year, Amtrak must submit a report to Congress that describes the options to 
enhance economic development and accessibility of and around Amtrak stations and terminals 
and options for additional Amtrak stops that would have a positive incremental financial impact 
to Amtrak. 
 
Subtitle C – Intercity Passenger Rail Policy 
 
Sec. 11301. Consolidated Rail Infrastructure and Safety Improvements 
Section 11301 creates a competitive grant program for the improvement of passenger and 
freight rail transportation. The Secretary may make grants under this section to an eligible 
recipient to assist in financing the cost of improving passenger and freight rail transportation 
systems in terms of safety, efficiency or reliability. Applicants can be states, groups of states, 
interstate compacts, political subdivisions of states, Amtrak, Class II or III railroads or rail labor 
unions.  
 
Sec. 11302. Federal-State Partnership for State of Good Repair 
The Secretary must develop and implement a program for issuing grants on a competitive basis 
to applicants to fund capital projects that reduce the State of Good Repair backlog. Projects 
eligible for grants include capital projects to replace or rehabilitate qualified railroad assets.  
 
Sec. 11303. Restoration and Enhancement Grants 
Section 11303 creates a new competitive grant program for operating assistance grants for the 
purpose of initiating, restoring or enhancing intercity rail passenger transportation.  
 
Sec. 11315. Miscellaneous Provisions 
Section 11315 amends current law to require State rail plans to be resubmitted every four years 
instead of every five years, adds a maglev project that is capable of safe public use in excess of 
240 mph to be eligible for Railroad Rehabilitation and Improvement Financing (RRIF) loan 
assistance if all qualifications are met, and clarifies the USDOT Secretary’s ability to approve or 
disapprove revised PTC implementation plans.  
 
Subtitle D – Safety 
 
Sec. 11401. Highway-Rail Grade Crossing Safety 
Within one year, the Administrator of the Federal Railroad Administration must develop a model 
of a State-specific highway-rail grade crossing action plan and distribute the plan to each State. 
Within 18 months after the Administrator develops a grade crossing plan and distributes the 
model plan, the Administrator must promulgate a rule that requires each State to develop and 
implement a State highway-rail grade crossing action plan. 
 
 
 



 

24 
 

Sec. 11402. Private Highway-Rail Grade Crossings 
The Secretary, in consultation with railroad carriers, must conduct a study to determine whether 
limitations or weaknesses exist regarding the availability and usefulness for safety purposes of 
data on private highway-rail grade crossings and evaluate existing engineering practices on 
private highway- rail grade crossings. 
 
Sec. 11404. Positive Train Control at Grade Crossings Effectiveness Study 
The Secretary must conduct a study of the possible effectiveness of positive train control and 
related technologies on reducing collisions at highway-rail grade crossings and submit a report 
containing the results of the study to Congress. 
 
Sec. 11406. Speed Limit Action Plans 
Within 90 days, each railroad carrier providing intercity rail passenger transportation or 
commuter rail passenger transportation, in consultation with any applicable host railroad carrier, 
must survey its entire system and identify each main track location where there is a reduction of 
more than 20 miles per hour from the approach speed to a curve, bridge, or tunnel and the 
maximum authorized operating speed for passenger trains at that curve, bridge or tunnel. 
Within 120 days after the survey is complete, a railroad carrier must submit an action plan to the 
Secretary that identifies each main track location where there is a reduction of more than 20 
miles per and describe appropriate actions to enable warning and enforcement of the speed. 
 
Sec. 11409. Commuter Rail Track Inspections 
The Secretary must evaluate track inspection regulations to determine if a railroad carrier 
providing commuter rail passenger transportation on high density commuter railroad lines 
should be required to inspect the lines in the same manner as is required for other commuter 
railroad lines. 
 
Sec. 11411. Recording Devices 
Within two years, the Secretary must promulgate regulations to require each railroad carrier that 
provides regularly scheduled intercity rail passenger or commuter rail passenger transportation 
to the public to install inward- and outward-facing image recording devices in all controlling 
locomotive cabs and cab car operating compartments in such passenger trains. 
 
Sec. 11415. Rail Passenger Liability 
Section 11415 updates the aggregate allowable awards to all rail passengers, against all 
defendants, for all claims, including claims for punitive damages, arising from a single accident 
or incident involving Amtrak occurring on May 12, 2015, shall not exceed $295,000,000 (up from 
$200,000,000). The $200,000,000 liability cap is adjusted for inflation every fifth year after the 
date of enactment of this Act. The Secretary must also provide appropriate public notice of each 
adjustment; the adjustment will become effective 30 days after notice is given. 
 
Subtitle E – Project Delivery 
 
Sec. 11501. Short Title 
Section 11501 may be cited as the Track, Railroad and Infrastructure Network Act or TRAIN 
Act.  
 
Sec. 11503. Efficient Environmental Reviews 
The Secretary is directed to apply the environmental review procedures already used for 
highways and transit to be used for rail. Within one year, the Secretary must identify additional 



 

25 
 

categorical exclusions used in transportation projects and to propose new and existing 
exclusions for rail that require Secretary approval under NEPA.  
 
Subtitle F – Financing 
 
Sec. 11601. Short Title; References 
Section 11601 defines this title as the Railroad Infrastructure Financing Improvement Act. 
 
Sec. 11603. Eligible Applicants 
Section 11603 amends current law by expanding eligible applicants to allow non-railroad entities 
to apply for RRIF loans. Entities that exist solely for the purpose of constructing rail connection 
between a plant or facility and a railroad have been added to eligible applicants.  
 
Sec. 11604. Eligible Purposes 
Section 11604 amends current law by expanding eligible purposes to include reimbursement of 
planning and design expenses and economic development and transit-oriented development 
projects. The Secretary is directed to require loan recipients for TOD projects to provide a non-
federal match of at least 25 percent.  



 

 

Regional Transportation Council Workshop 
Managed Lanes Communication 

 
Thursday, January 14, 2016 

11:00 am – 12:30 pm 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

1. Welcome and Introductions……………………………………………………Amanda Wilson 
 
 

2. Workshop Purpose……………………………………………………………...Chairman Riley 
 
 

3. Communications Plan Elements………………………………………………Amanda Wilson 
 
 

4. Messaging Discussion…………………………………………………………………………All 
 
 

5. Next Steps……………………………………………………………………….Amanda Wilson 

ELECTRONIC ITEM 8



MANAGED LANES MESSAGING RTC Workshop

January 14, 2016



WORKSHOP OVERVIEW

Workshop Purpose

Communications Plan Elements

Messaging Discussion

Next Steps

2



WORKSHOP PURPOSE

Policy officials and Public Information Officers 
should come together to identify messaging and 
communications needs to help the public better 
understand managed lanes.

3



COMMUNICATIONS PLAN ELEMENTS

GOAL

Educate consumers regarding the benefits of 
managed lanes.

4



COMMUNICATIONS PLAN ELEMENTS

OBJECTIVES

Create common sense terminology to which the 
customer can relate

Explain why managed lanes exist

Explain how managed lanes help

Describe each facility and the system

Explain how to use managed lanes

5



COMMUNICATIONS PLAN ELEMENTS

TACTICS

Video

Infographic

Fact Sheet/Brochure

Social Media Messages

Short Articles

Presentation

6



MESSAGING DISCUSSION

KEY POINTS

Focus on “what’s in it for me”

Long-term DFW residents need more information

Most people don’t travel around the whole region

Terminology needs to be consistent and relevant

Lack of understanding about the funding reality

Signage and pricing may seem overwhelming

Impetus for managed lanes was guaranteed speeds
7



MESSAGING DISCUSSION

KEY POINTS, continued

Drivers have the option to select managed lanes, main 
lanes or frontage roads

Toll revenues offset maintenance and operations costs

Positive impact to economy

Managed lanes are being used by many different 
people and businesses, therefore, impacting cost to 
each consumer

Others? (General RTC/PIO Discussion)

8



NEXT STEPS

Develop communications plan

Identify funding for implementation

Produce elements to be shared with agencies and 
elected officials

Proactively schedule opportunities to distribute 
the information to the community

9



RTC PROPOSED PROJECTS FOR TxDOT 
CONGESTION RELIEF PROGRAM:  
ALL ARE NON‐TOLLED FACILITIES
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COUNCIL
February  11,  2016

UPDATE

E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 IT

E
M

 9



BACKGROUND
Expedite congestion relief projects

Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) to allocate    
$1.0 billion ‐$1.3 billion statewide confirmed

Need early construction timeframes

Only available in Houston, Austin, San Antonio, and 
Dallas‐Fort Worth

TxDOT Commission discussion on January 28, 2016 with 
action on February 25, 2016

2



FUNDING PARTNERSHIP
Create a funding partnership with the Texas Department of  

Transportation (TxDOT) and the Texas Transportation Commission 
(TTC) to implement priority projects in the West and East

All projects move forward as a congestion relief package 

Provide performance measures along with proposed project list

TxDOT commits funding (new Congestion Relief Program)

RTC commits funding and creates supplemental project commitments
◦ Surface Transportation Program – Metropolitan Mobility (STP‐MM)
◦ Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ)
◦ Regional Toll Revenue (RTR)

3



PROPOSED FUNDING 
ALLOCATIONS

Anticipated Dallas‐Fort Worth Allocation 
at Upper and Lower End of Range

($ in Millions)

TxDOT
District

At $1 Billion 
Statewide Allocation

At $1.3 Billion 
Statewide Allocation

Fort Worth 126.00 163.80
Dallas 280.00 364.00

Total 406.00 527.80

4

Current discussions include a statewide allocation of $1.0 billion 
$1.3 billion



PROPOSED CONGESTION 
RELIEF PROJECTS
Western Subregion Eastern Subregion

(Previously Presented Priorities)

SH 121/SH 360 Interchange 
(staged)

SH 199 (staged)

IH 820 (from SH 121 to Randol 
Mill, staged)

IH 35E
Southern Gateway (IH 35E and US 67)
Lowest Stemmons (IH 35E)

SUPPLEMENTAL PROJECTS: 
IH 635 East

Noise Walls
Skillman/Audelia

US 75 (Peak Hour Shoulder Use)

5



WESTERN SUBREGION



SH 121 AT SH 360 (STAGED)
Project scope includes:
◦ Reconstruction of the SH 121/SH 360 interchange

Cost is $60 million 

Revenue:
◦ $60 million TxDOT Congestion
Relief Program

Timeframe:
◦ Start Construction: Summer 2016
◦ Complete Construction: 2018

7



SH 199 (STAGED)
Project scope includes:
◦ From north of Western Center Blvd. 
to south of Nine Mile Road

◦ Widen 4 to 6 main lanes, overpasses over 
Nine Mile Bridge Road and Hanger Cut Off Road, underpass at Western   
Center Blvd., and exit/entrance ramps for SH 199

Cost is $56.5 million 
Revenue:
◦ $56.5 million TxDOT Congestion Relief Program

Timeline:
◦ Start Construction: Summer 2016
◦ Complete Construction: 2020

8



IH 820 (STAGED) 
Project scope includes:
◦ From north of SH 121 to Randol Mill Road
◦ Widen 4 to 6 main lanes, replace Trinity River bridges, re‐beam 
IH 820 bridges, add eastbound SH 121 to southbound IH 820 direct connectors, 
and add northbound IH 820 to westbound 
SH 121 direct connectors

Cost is $111 million $137 million since upper range available
Revenue:
◦ $9.5 million $20.5 million TxDOT Congestion Relief Program
◦ $90 million savings from IH 35W project
◦ $11.5 million of TxDOT Bridge funding

Timeline:
◦ Start Construction: Summer 2017
◦ Complete Construction: 2021

9



EASTERN SUBREGION



IH 35E:  SOUTHERN GATEWAY
Project scope includes1:
◦ IH 35E from the Horseshoe to US 67, &
◦ US 67 from the IH 35E split to IH 20

Cost is $655.54 million:
◦ Base construction ‐ $605.54 million

◦ Deck park and foundations ‐
$50 million ($40 million RTC and 
$10 million local)

Notes:
1 US 67 South of IH 20 will proceed as an
independent project ($50 million Prop 1)

2 $133 million from IH 345 savings and 
$5.42 million from MPO Revolver

3 IH 30 Pass‐Through Finance 
4 $23.58 million from LBJ backstop savings and 
$20 million from Horseshoe savings

($ in Millions)

Funding Source TxDOT RTC Local

Category 12 138.722 25.253

Category 2 50.00

CMAQ 54.31

STP‐MM 54.11

RTR 43.584

TxDOT
Congestion Relief

264.00

TAP/RTC Other 16.00

Local/Private 10.00

Total 402.72 243.25 10.00
11

Timeline:
o Construction Let Date: Summer 2017
o Complete Construction: Summer 2021



IH 35E:  SOUTHERN GATEWAY, CONT’D

12



IH 35E:  LOWEST STEMMONS
Project scope includes:
◦ From IH 30 to North of Oak Lawn
◦ Construct 4/6 collector distributor lanes and 
reconstruct 4/6 lane frontage roads
(Lowest Stemmons operational improvements)

Cost is $100 million

Revenue:
◦ $20 million $100 million of TxDOT Congestion 
Relief Program 

◦ $80 million of Proposition 1

Timeline:
◦ Construction Let Date: Summer 2017
◦ Complete Construction: Winter 2019

13



TIMELINE:  WORKING FAST TOGETHER

NCTCOG Public Meetings January 7‐13, 2016

RTC Initial Action January 14, 2016

TxDOT Listening Sessions January 19‐20, 2016

Specially Called RTC Meeting January 20, 2016

TxDOT Commission Workshop/Meeting January 27‐28, 2016

RTC Information ‐ Final Information February 11, 2016

TxDOT Commission Final Action February 25, 2016

14



2017-2020 Transportation Improvement Program

http://www.nctcog.org/trans/tip/17-20/[2/5/2016 8:35:13 AM]

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

 

Select Language ? ?

Home > Transportation > Transportation Funding and Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)

Print this page

 

2017-2020 Transportation Improvement Program

Within metropolitan areas across the country, regional

transportation projects are tracked through Transportation

Improvement Programs. The Transportation Improvement

Program or TIP is a staged, multi-year program of projects

approved for funding by federal, state, and local sources within

the Dallas-Fort Worth metropolitan area. The TIP contains

projects with committed funds in fiscal years 2017, 2018, 2019,

and 2020. Project listings are financially constrained to

available resources.

Every two years, the North Central Texas Council of

Governments (NCTCOG), in cooperation with the Texas

Department of Transportation (TxDOT), local governments, and

transportation agencies, develops a new TIP. Transportation

staff is in the process of developing a new TIP and is currently

seeking approval of the new TIP's draft listings. 

 

2017-2020 Transportation Improvement Program Development

1/22/2016--Draft Project Listings--Surface Transportation Technical Committee

2/11/2016--Draft Project Listings--Regional Transportation Council

BACK TO TIP MAIN PAGE
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

About Us

Committees

Get Involved

Links

Maps & Data

Program Areas

Publications

RFPs

Topics A-L

Topics M-Z

Traveler Information

Transportation Home

Programs Topics A-J Topics K-Z Departments Services About Us

ELECTRONIC ITEM 10.1

http://www.nctcog.org/index.asp
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
http://www.nctcog.org/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/tip/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/tip/17-20/documents/17-20DraftJanSTTC.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/tip/17-20/documents/17-20DraftFebRTC.pdf
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/tip/index.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/committees/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/links.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/admin/rfp/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/travel/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/committees/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/links.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/admin/rfp/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/travel/
http://www.nctcog.org/trans/
http://www.nctcog.org/dept.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/dept.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/about.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/about.asp


2017-2020 Transportation Improvement Program

http://www.nctcog.org/trans/tip/17-20/[2/5/2016 8:35:13 AM]

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

2/1/2016 05/29/2009  LMP

 CONTACT US | SITE MAP | LEGAL | SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS       

 North Central Texas Council of Governments | 616 Six Flags Drive P.O. Box 5888 Arlington, TX 76005-5888 

 Main Operator: (817) 640-3300 | Fax: (817) 640-7806

http://www.nctcog.org/contactus.asp?id_mnu=1
http://www.nctcog.org/site-map/index.asp
http://www.facebook.com/NCTCOGtrans
http://www.twitter.com/NCTCOGtrans
http://www.youtube.com/user/NCTCOGtrans
http://instagram.com/nctcogtrans?ref=badge


Regional Transportation Council
February 11, 2016

E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 IT

E
M

 1
0

.2



2



3



4



5



2017-2020 TIP DEVELOPMENT

TIMELINE/ACTION TABLE

6



http://www.nctcog.org/trans/tip/

2017-2020 TIP DEVELOPMENT

QUESTIONS/COMMENTS

7



AIR QUALITY FREIGHT INITIATIVESAIR QUALITY FREIGHT INITIATIVES

Regional Transportation Council

Jeff Hathcock, Principal Transportation Planner
February 11, 2016

Regional Transportation Council

Jeff Hathcock, Principal Transportation Planner
February 11, 2016

E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 IT

E
M

 1
1



2

DALLAS-FORT WORTH ON-ROAD 
NITROGEN OXIDES (NOX) EMISSIONS
DALLAS-FORT WORTH ON-ROAD 
NITROGEN OXIDES (NOX) EMISSIONS

Source: 2017 Emission Inventory developed by NCTCOG for the Dallas-Fort Worth Attainment Demonstration State Implementation Plan.

Light Duty Gas, 
47.15%

Light Duty 
Diesel, 2.36%

Transit Bus ‐
Gas, 0.001%

Transit Bus ‐
Diesel, 1.50%

School Bus ‐
Gas, 0.05%

School Bus ‐
Diesel, 0.64%

Medium Duty 
Gas, 1.56%

Medium Duty 
Diesel, 5.71%

Heavy Duty 
Gas, 0.002%

Heavy Duty 
Diesel, 41.04%



AIR QUALITY EMPHASIS AREAS

High-Emitting Vehicles/Equipment

Low Speeds

Idling

Vehicle Miles of Travel

Energy and Fuel Use

Cold Starts

Hard Accelerations

2 3



Milestones
Resumed Outreach in June 2015
Contacted 400+ Drivers, Fleet Managers and Vendors Combined
Received  Approximately $68,000 in In-Kind Contributions  

NCTCOG Resources
Informational Brochure
Resource Folders
Meetings and Outreach Events
Individual Technology Assistance
Funding Assistance

Engagement 
Clean Fleet Policy
DFW Clean Cities Coalition
SmartWay Transport Partnership
Anti-Idling Efforts

4wwww.nctcog.org/SMARTE

SAVING MONEY AND REDUCING 
TRUCK EMISSIONS (SMARTE) 
SAVING MONEY AND REDUCING 
TRUCK EMISSIONS (SMARTE) 



5

NORTH TEXAS IDLING LIMITATIONS AND 
IDLE-REDUCTION INFRASTRUCTURE 
NORTH TEXAS IDLING LIMITATIONS AND 
IDLE-REDUCTION INFRASTRUCTURE 

TSE = Truck Stop Electrification 



6

HEAVY-DUTY DIESEL INSPECTION AND 
MAINTENANCE (I/M) PILOT PROGRAM
HEAVY-DUTY DIESEL INSPECTION AND 
MAINTENANCE (I/M) PILOT PROGRAM
Phase 1

Evaluate the Feasibility of Incorporating Heavy-Duty      
Diesel Vehicles into the State’s I/M Program for 
Reduction of NOx Emissions

Identify Viable Technology to be Considered for 
Emissions Testing of Heavy-Duty Diesel Vehicles

Completed June 2012: www.nctcog.org/dieselreport

Phase 2 
Refine On-Road Heavy-Duty Emissions 
Measurement System Design Developed from 
Phase 1

Investigate and Test Other Remote Sensing 
Technologies 

Deploy Improved System to Collect Real-World Data
Currently Underway: Expected Results Fall 2016



DALLAS-FORT WORTH REGIONAL 
TRUCK LANE RESTRICTIONS
DALLAS-FORT WORTH REGIONAL 
TRUCK LANE RESTRICTIONS

7Total Current Truck Lane Restriction Miles = 486



8

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE WEIGHT 
ENFORCEMENT (CVE) UPDATE
COMMERCIAL VEHICLE WEIGHT 
ENFORCEMENT (CVE) UPDATE

New Department of Public Safety (DPS) Regulation 
All agencies that have not received recorded CVE training through DPS 
must attend an updated DPS training course before weight enforcements 
can be conducted.

Any officer that has completed training as of September 2015 will be 
allowed to continue weight enforcement activities through December 2016.  
After this date, the officer will need to attend the revised DPS Training.



9

TEXAS FREIGHT MOBILITY PLANTEXAS FREIGHT MOBILITY PLAN

Texas Freight Mobility Plan 
The State’s First Comprehensive Plan that 
Focuses on Goods Movement 

Provides Details on all Modes of Freight 
Transportation and Infrastructure Including 
Primary and Secondary Freight Networks

Includes Opportunities along with Strategies 
and Policies that will be Implemented to 
Enhance Economic Growth and Goods 
Movement throughout the State

Many of the Freight Mobility Plan 
Recommendations are from other State and 
Federal Agencies Including Metropolitan 
Planning Organizations



10

TEXAS FREIGHT MOBILITY PLAN (CONT.)TEXAS FREIGHT MOBILITY PLAN (CONT.)

Texas Freight Mobility Plan (Cont.)
Future Projects are Prioritized as High,
Medium, or Low 

NCTCOG is Actively Focused on the 
Prioritization of Regional Initiatives Detailed
in the Plan

FAST Act Funding may be allocated to 
Projects Listed in the Plan 

Next Steps for Approval
The Plan was Approved by the Texas 
Transportation Commission on January 28, 2016

The Next Step is Federal Highway Administration 
Approval



Shannon Stevenson
Program Manager

817-608-2304
sstevenson@nctcog.org

Air Quality Information: www.nctcog.org/airquality

11

CONTACT INFORMATIONCONTACT INFORMATION

Jeff Hathcock
Principal Transportation 

Planner
817-608-2354

Jhathcock@nctcog.org

Jason Brown
Air Quality Operations 

Manager
817-704-2514

jbrown@nctcog.org



 

 

 
 

 March 10, 2016 
 
 
 
The Honorable John C. Cruden  
Assistant Attorney General 
United States Department of Justice 
Environment & Natural Resources Division 
Law and Policy Section 
950 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, DC  20530-0001 
 
The Honorable Ken Paxton 
Attorney General of the State of Texas 
Office of the Attorney General 
PO Box 12548 
Austin, TX 78711-2548 
 
Dear Assistant Attorney General Cruden and Attorney General Paxton: 
 
The Regional Transportation Council (RTC), which serves as the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization for North Central Texas and responsible for meeting federal transportation 
conformity requirements, is requesting a portion of any financial settlement which results from 
the Department of Justice’s (DOJ) Civil Action filed on January 4, 2016, (Volkswagen AG, Audi 
AG, Volkswagen Group of America, Inc., Volkswagen Group of America Chattanooga 
Operations, LLC, Dr. Ing. H.c. F. Porsche AG, and Porsche Cars North America, Inc.) and the 
Texas Attorney General’s (AG) lawsuit filed on October 8, 2015, (Volkswagen Group of 
America, Inc. and Audi America, LLC), be distributed equitably to all nonattainment counties. 
 
The actions by both the DOJ and Texas AG were a result of findings that Volkswagen AG 
installed illegal emissions defeat devices in light-duty vehicles with diesel engines.  These 
defeat devices allow tailpipe emissions up to 40 times the legal level of Nitrogen Oxides (NOX). 
 
These settlement funds would be earmarked to implement air quality projects and/or programs 
to off-set the increased emissions from the diesel vehicles equipped with the emission test 
defeat devices.  This is important because the Dallas-Fort Worth region is NOX-limited, which 
means decreases or increases in NOX emissions, such as the increases resulting from the 
emissions test-cheat devices, have a more profound effect on the overall ozone levels. 
 
It is a federal requirement that regions designated nonattainment for ozone must demonstrate 
transportation conformity for the long-range Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP).  As the 
region develops or amends the MTP, the North Central Texas Council of Governments 
(NCTCOG), as staff to the RTC, must ensure it complies with these federal requirements and 
the associated motor vehicle emissions budgets for NOX and volatile organic compounds set by 
the State Implementation Plan.  To develop the on-road emissions inventories for the region, 
NCTCOG uses the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) Motor Vehicle Emissions 

ELECTRONIC ITEM 12.1



Assistant Attorney General Cruden and Attorney General Paxton  March 10, 2016 
Page Two 

 

Simulator, which includes local inputs and built-in federal vehicle emission standards.  The 
overall emissions for the region are based on many factors, including the assumption vehicle’s 
emission systems design and function are in compliance with State and federal emissions 
standards.  As a result of the recent findings, certain Volkswagen, Audi, and Porsche diesel 
vehicles are operating above the federally allowed NOX emissions limits, air quality planning has 
underestimated these emissions and additional emission reduction control strategies are 
necessary.  Financial assistance through any level of settlement funds would allow 
nonattainment areas such as the Dallas-Fort Worth region to implement said emission reduction 
control strategies to offset unhealthy emission impacts. 
 
NCTCOG will continue to partner with the EPA and the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality through developing emissions inventories and providing assistance with on-road vehicle 
emissions data for our region.  Although restitution for the individual owners of vehicles 
equipped with emissions test-cheat devices is prudent, providing a portion of any financial 
settlement resulting from violations of the Clear Air Act to the nonattainment regions will benefit 
all citizens through the continued improvement for air quality. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please contact Michael Morris, P.E., Director of 
Transportation for NCTCOG at (817) 695-9241 or mmorris@nctcog.org. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Mark Riley 
Chair, Regional Transportation Council 
County Judge, Parker County 

 
JPL:ch 
 
cc: Bethany Engel, Trial Attorney, US Department of Justice 
 Barbara L. McQuade, US Attorney, US Department of Justice 
 Anthony W. Benedict, Assistant Attorney General, State of Texas 
 Pedro Perez, Jr., Assistant Attorney General, State of Texas 
 Richard Hyde, P.E., Executive Director, TCEQ 
 David Brymer, Director, Air Quality Division, TCEQ 
 Michael Morris, P.E., Director of Transportation, NCTCOG 
 Ken Kirkpatrick, Counsel for Transportation, NCTCOG 
 Chris Klaus, Senior Program Manager for Air Quality Planning and Operations, NCTCOG 



Lawsuits Against Volkswagen Group
of America, Inc.,

Audi of America, LLC, and 
Porsche Cars North America

Regional Transportation Council 

Chris Klaus, Senior Program Manager

February 11, 2016

E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 IT

E
M

 1
2

.2



OVERVIEW

Volkswagen (Volkswagen, Audi, & Porsche) 2.0 and 3.0 liter diesel 
engine vehicles

Found to exceed the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) 
standard for emissions of Nitrogen Oxides (NOX)

Vehicles included “defeat” devices (software)

Software sensed when vehicles undergoing an emissions test and 
activated equipment to reduce emissions

Software turned the equipment off during regular driving to save 
fuel or improve performance; increasing emissions 

Up to 40 times the permitted levels of NOX

Volkswagen vehicle recall proposals have yet to be accepted
2



AFFECTED DIESEL VEHICLES
2.0 Liter Vehicles

3Source:  Department of Justice, January 4, 2016, Press Release

VOLKSWAGEN
Beetle and Beetle Convertible

2013-2015

VOLKSWAGEN
Passat

2012-2015

VOLKSWAGEN
Jetta

2009-2015

VOLKSWAGEN
Jetta SportWagen

2009-2014

VOLKSWAGEN
Golf

2010-2015

AUDI
A3

2010-2015

VOLKSWAGEN
Golf SportWagen

2015



AFFECTED DIESEL VEHICLES

4Source:  Department of Justice, January 4, 2016, Press Release

AUDI
A6 Quattro
2014-2016

AUDI
A7 Quattro
2014-2016

VOLKSWAGEN
Touareg

2009-2016

AUDI
Q5

2014-2016

AUDI
Q7

2009-2015

AUDI
A8 & A8L
2014-2016

PORSCHE
Cayenne

2013-2016

3.0 Liter Vehicles



State of Texas filed two separate lawsuits against Volkswagen:

1) Deceptive Trade Practices – Consumer Protection Act Suit 
alleging false, misleading, and deceptive trade practices

2) Texas Clean Air Act Suit* alleging violations of emission 
control statutory and regulatory requirements

Both suits seek injunctive relief, civil penalties, attorney fees and 
costs.

5

LEGAL ACTION

*A separate suit has been filed by Harris County 
for violations occurring in Harris County.



The Department of Justice (DOJ) filed a civil complaint against 
Volkswagen for Alleged Clean Air Act Violations

Alleges these vehicles had illegal defeat devices installed

Alleges violation of the Clean Air Act by offering vehicles 
designed differently from applications for certification 

Seeks Injunctive Relief and Assessment of Civil Penalties

Nearly 600,000 2.0 and 3.0 liter diesel engine vehicles in the U.S.

Sanctions could total more than $40 Billion

6

LEGAL ACTION

Source:  Department of Justice & Reuters



DIESEL VEHICLES AFFECTED IN DFW 
10-COUNTY NONATTAINMENT AREA

7

County Number of 
Affected Vehicles

Collin 467

Dallas 718

Denton 503

Ellis 80

Kaufman 61

Johnson 94

Parker 171

Rockwall 57

Tarrant 750

Wise 54

Grand Total 2,955

Total vehicles registered: 
5,056,8471

Approximate vehicles 
registered: 2,9552

1Texas Department of Motor Vehicle Registration Data, July 2015
2Eastern Research Group



DRAFT REGIONAL CORRESPONDENCE FOR 
CONSIDERATION FOR FUTURE ACTION

8

Letter to the DOJ and the Texas Attorney General 

If a financial settlement is reached, disperse funds to 
nonattainment regions in Texas 

Serve as financial assistance for implementation of air 
quality strategies to offset vehicle emissions

Projects and/or programs would be used in transportation 
conformity



For Further Information
AIR QUALITY UPDATE

Chris Klaus
Senior Program Manager

817-695-9286
cklaus@nctcog.org

Jenny Narvaez
Principal Transportation Planner

817-608-2342
jnarvaez@nctcog.org

Jody Purvis Loza
Senior Air Quality Planner

817-704-5609
jloza@nctcog.org

9



Regional Transportation Council Attendance Roster
February 2015 - January 2016

RTC MEMBER Entity 2/12/15 3/12/15 4/9/15 5/14/15 6/11/15 7/9/15 8/13/15 9/10/15 10/8/15 11/12/15 12/10/15 1/14/16 1/20/16
Monica R. Alonzo (07/15) Dallas -- -- -- -- -- P P P P P P P A
Bruce Arfsten (08/15) Addison -- -- -- -- -- -- P P E(R) P P P P
Douglas Athas (06/13) Garland P P P P E P P P P P P P A
Brian Barth (09/13) TxDOT, FW P P E(R) P P P P E(R) P P P P P
Carol Bush (01/15) Ellis Cnty P E(R) P P E P P E P A A P A
Mike Cantrell (1/07) Dallas Cnty P A P P P P A(R) P P P P E(R) E
Rudy Durham (7/07) Lewisville P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Andy Eads (1/09) Denton Cnty P P P P P E P P P P P P A
Charles Emery (4/04) DCTA P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Gary Fickes (12/10) Tarrant Cnty P P P E(R) P E P E(R) E P P P P
Robert Franke (1/08) Cedar Hill E P E P P P P E(R) P P P P P
Sandy Greyson (11/11) Dallas P E P P P E P P P P P P A
Mojy Haddad (10/14) NTTA P P P A P A P P P A A P A
Roger Harmon (1/02) Johnson Cnty E(R) E(R) P P E(R) E P P E P P P P
Clay Jenkins (04/11) Dallas Cnty P A P P P E P P P P P P P
Ron Jensen (06/13) Grand Prairie P A(R) P P P P A(R) P P P P P E(R)
Jungus Jordan (4/07) Fort Worth P P P P P E P P P P P P P
Lee Kleinman (09/13) Dallas E E E P P E P P P E E(R) A P
Stephen Lindsey (10/11) Mansfield P P P E P P P P P P P P P
Brian Loughmiller (04/15) McKinney -- -- P P A A A(R) P A(R) P P P A
David Magness (06/13) Rockwall Cnty P A P P P P P P A P P E(R) A
Scott Mahaffey (03/13) FWTA P P P P P E(R) P P P E(R) E(R) P E(R)
Matthew Marchant (07/08) Carrollton P A P P P P A P P P P P A
Maher Maso (10/08) Frisco P A E E(R) E(R) P P E(R) P P E(R) P E
Cary Moon (06/15) Fort Worth -- -- -- -- A P E P P P P P P
Stan Pickett (06/15) Mesquite -- -- -- -- P P P P E(R) P P P A
Mark Riley (1/09) Parker Cnty P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Kevin Roden (6/14) Denton P A P P P P P P P E P P E(R)
Amir Rupani (11/14) Dallas P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Kelly Selman (02/15) TxDOT, Dallas P P E(R) P P P P P P E(R) P P P
Gary Slagel (11/15) DART -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- P P P P
Lissa Smith (6/12) Plano P P E P P P P P P P P P P
Mike Taylor (7/14) Colleyville P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Stephen Terrell (6/14) Allen P P P E(R) P P P E P P P P P
Oscar Trevino (6/02) Nrth Rch Hills P A P E(R) P E(R) P P P P P P P
William Velasco (11/11) Dallas E P P E A P P E E P E P A
Oscar Ward (6/14) Irving P P P P P P P P P P P P P

P= Present
A= Absent
R=Represented by Alternate
--= Not yet appointed

E= Excused Absence (personal illness, family emergency, 
jury duty, business necessity, or fulfillment 
of obligation arising out of elected service)

R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 IT

E
M

 1
3
.1



Regional Transportation Council Attendance Roster
February 2015 - January 2016

RTC MEMBER Entity 2/12/15 3/12/15 4/9/15 5/14/15 6/11/15 7/9/15 8/13/15 9/10/15 10/8/15 11/12/15 12/10/15 1/14/16 1/20/16
Bernice Washington (4/09) DFW Airport P E(R) P P E(R) P P P P P P P E
Duncan Webb (6/11) Collin Cnty P P P P E(R) P P P E(R) P P P P
B. Glen Whitley (2/97) Tarrant Cnty P P E P P E P E P E(R) P E(R) P
Kathryn Wilemon (6/03) Arlington P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Jeff Williams (10/15) Arlington -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- P P A P E(R)
Erik Wilson (07/15) Dallas -- -- -- -- -- P P P P P P P A
Zim Zimmerman (9/12) Fort Worth P P P P P E(R) A(R) P A(R) P P A(R) A(R)
Note:  Date in parenthesis indicates when member was 1st eligible to 
attend RTC meetings

P= Present
A= Absent
R=Represented by Alternate
--= Not yet appointed

E= Excused Absence (personal illness, family emergency, 
jury duty, business necessity, or fulfillment 
of obligation arising out of elected service)



Surface Transportation Technical Committee Attendance Roster
October 2014-December 2015

STTC MEMBERS Entity 10/24/14 12/5/14 1/23/15 3/27/15 4/24/15 5/22/15 6/26/15 7/24/15 8/28/15 9/25/15 10/23/15 12/4/15
Antoinette Bacchus Dallas Cnty A A A A P P A P P P P P
Bryan Beck Fort Worth A A P A P A P A P P P P
Marc Bentley Farmers Branch -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- A A A
Kristina Brevard DCTA -- -- P P P P P P P P P R
Keith Brooks Arlington A P P P P P P P P P P P
John Brunk Dallas P P A P P P A P A P P P
Mohammed Bur TxDOT, Dallas P P P P P A P P P A A A
Chris Burkett Mansfield R P P R R R P P P R P R
Loyl Bussell TxDOT, FW P P P P P P P P P P A P
Jack Carr Plano P P P A P P A P P P P P
Dave Carter Richardson P P A P P P P P P P P A
John Cordary, Jr. TxDOT, FW -- -- -- P P P P P P P P P
Hal Cranor Euless P P P P R P P P P P P P
Clarence Daugherty Collin County P P P P A P A R P P P R
Chad Davis Wise Cnty P A A P P P P P P P A P
Greg Dickens Hurst R R R P A A R R R R R R
David Disheroon Johnson County -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- P P P
Massoud Ebrahim Greenville A R P A A P P P P R R P
Chad Edwards DART P P P P P P P P P A P A
Claud Elsom Rockwall Cnty A P P P P P P A P P P P
Keith Fisher Keller P R P P P P A R P R A P
Eric Fladager Fort Worth A P P P P P P P A P A P
Chris Flanigan City of Allen R P P A R P P P P P P P
Gary Graham McKinney R R R P R P A P P P P R
Tom Hammons City of Carrollton A A A A P A P A A A A A
Michael Hasler Duncanville -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- A P P P
Curvie Hawkins FWTA P A A A P P P A P P P P
Chris Holsted Wylie P P P A P A P A P A A P
Thomas Hoover Bedford A A A P A A P P R P P P
Matthew Hotelling Flower Mound P P P P P P P P P P A P
Kirk Houser City of Dallas P P P P A A P P P P P A
Terry Hughes Parker County P P P P P P P P P P P P
Jeremy Hutt Colleyville R P P P R P P P A P A A
Paul Iwuchukwu Arlington P P P P P P A P P P A P
Joseph Jackson Ellis County -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- P P P P
Tim James Mesquite P P A P P P A P A A P A
David Jodray Fort Worth P P P P P P P P P P A A
Kelly Johnson NTTA P A A A A A A A A P P A
Tom Johnson DeSoto P A P P P A A P P P P P
Sholeh Karimi Grand Prairie P P P P P P P P P A P P
Chiamin Korngiebel Dallas P A P P A A P A A P P P

P =Present             A= Absent
R =Represented    -- =Not yet eligible to attend

E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 IT

E
M

 1
3

.2



Surface Transportation Technical Committee Attendance Roster
October 2014-December 2015

STTC MEMBERS Entity 10/24/14 12/5/14 1/23/15 3/27/15 4/24/15 5/22/15 6/26/15 7/24/15 8/28/15 9/25/15 10/23/15 12/4/15
Richard Larkins Grapevine -- -- -- P A P P P A A P A
Paul Luedtke Garland P A P A A P P P A P P P
Stanford Lynch Hunt Cnty P A P R R A P P P P P R
Rick Mackey TxDOT Paris P P P P A P P P P P A P
Srini Mandayam Mesquite P P P P A R P P P R R P
Geroge Marshall Coppell A P P R R P P P P A P P
Laura Melton Burleson A A A A A A A A A A A A
Brian Moen Frisco A A A A P A A P A A A A
Cesar Molina, Jr. Carrollton P P P A A P A P P A P R
Lloyd Neal Plano P P P A P P A A P P A P
Mark Nelson Denton P P P P P A P P P R P P
Jim O'Connor Irving P P P P P P A P P P P P
Kevin Overton Dallas A P A P P P A P P P P P
Dipak Patel Lancaster P P P P P P P P A P P P
Derica Peters Waxahachie -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- P
Todd Plesko DART A P P P P P A P P A P A
John Polster Denton Cnty P P P P P A P P P P P P
Lisa Pyles Town of Addison A A A A P P P A P A P A
William Riley Tarrant Cnty P P P P A P A P P P P P
Greg Royster DFW Int. Airport P P P P P P A P A P A P
Moosa Saghian Kaufman County -- -- -- -- -- P P P P A P P
David Salmon Lewisville P P R P R A P P P P R A
Elias Sassoon Cedar Hill P P P P P R P P R P P P
Gordon Scruggs The Colony A P R P P P P P P P P P
Lori Shelton NTTA P P P P P P P P P P A P
Walter Shumac, III Grand Prairie -- -- P A P P A P P P P P
Randy Skinner Tarrant Cnty P P P A P A P A P P P P
Angela Smith FWTA -- -- -- -- -- -- -- P P A P P
Caleb Thornhill Plano P A P P A P P A P P A A
Mark Titus Richardson P P P P P P P P P P R A
Jonathan Toffer Dallas Cnty A A P P A A P A A A A A
Timothy Tumulty Rockwall A R P P A P A P P A A P
Gregory Van Nieuwenhuize Haltom City P P P P P P P P P P P P
Daniel Vedral Irving P P P A P A P P A A A A
Caroline Waggoner North Richland Hills P P P P P P P P R P P P
Jared White Dallas P P P P P P A P P P P P
Bill Wimberley Hood County P P P P R P A P P P P P
Alicia Winkelblech Arlington A P P R R P P A P P P R
Mykol Woodruff TxDOT, Dallas -- -- -- P P P P A P P P A
Jamie Zech TCEQ -- -- -- -- -- -- -- A A A A A

P =Present             A= Absent
R =Represented    -- =Not yet eligible to attend



MINUTES 
 

SURFACE TRANSPORTATION TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 
 December 4, 2015 

 
The Surface Transportation Technical Committee (STTC) held a meeting on Friday,  
December 4, 2015, at 1:30 pm, in the 9-1-1 Training Room of the North Central Texas Council 
of Governments (NCTCOG). The following STTC members or representatives were present:  
Antoinette Bacchus, Bryan Beck, Anna Mosqueda (representing Kristina Brevard), Keith Brooks, 
John Brunk, David Boski (representing Chris Burkett), Loyl Bussell, Jack Carr, John Cordary Jr., 
Hal Cranor, Tracy Homfeld (representing Clarence Daugherty), Chad Davis, Jim Juneau 
(representing Greg Dickens), David Disheroon, Massoud Ebrahim, Claud Elsom, Keith Fisher, 
Eric Fladager, Chris Flanigan, Robyn Root (representing Gary Graham), Michael Hasler, Curvie 
Hawkins, Chris Holsted, Thomas Hoover, Matthew Hotelling, Terry Hughes, Paul Iwuchukwu, 
Joseph Jackson, Tom Johnson, Sholeh Karimi, Chiamin Korngiebel, Paul Luedtke, Alan Hendrix 
(representing Stanford Lynch), Ricky Mackey, Michael Zdansky (representing Srini Mandayam), 
George Marshall, Marcos Fernandez (representing Cesar Molina Jr.), Lloyd Neal, Mark Nelson, 
Jim O'Connor, Kevin Overton, Dipak Patel, Derica Peters, John Polster, William Riley, Greg 
Royster, Moosa Saghian, Elias Sassoon, Gordon Scruggs, Lori Shelton, Walter Shumac III, 
Randy Skinner, Angela Smith, Timothy Tumulty, Gregory Van Nieuwenhuize, Caroline 
Waggoner, Jared White, Bill Wimberley, and Christina Sebastian (representing Alicia 
Winkelblech).  
 
Others present at the meeting were:  Bev Alder, Vickie Alexander, Natalie Bettger, Ron Brown, 
Angie Carson, David Dryden, Kevin Feldt, Rebekah Hernandez, Amy Hodges, Mohammed 
Howlander, Nandita Kaundinya, Dan Kessler, Ken Kirkpatrick, Garry Kraus, Dan Lamers, 
Rachel Linnewiel, Mickey Marlow, Wes McClure, Michael Morris, Vercie Pruitt-Jenkins, Milton 
Richter, Daniel Snyder, Jahnae Stout, Blas Uribe, Whitney Vandiver, Karla Weaver, Kendall 
Wendling, and Jeremy Williams.  
 
1. Approval of October 23, 2015, Minutes:  The minutes of the October 23, 2015, meeting 

were approved as submitted in Reference Item 1. Michael Hasler (M); Lloyd Neal (S).  The 
motion passed unanimously.  
 

2. Consent Agenda:  The following item was included on the Consent Agenda.  
 
2.1. Transportation Improvement Program Modifications:  A motion was made to 

recommend Regional Transportation Council approval of revisions to the 2015-
2018 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) provided in Reference Item 2.1.1. 
Administrative amendments were provided in Electronic Item 2.1.2 for information.  

 
2.2. General Electric Test Track Funding Proposal:  A motion was made to recommend 

Regional Transportation Council approval of the General Electric Test Track 
funding proposal, which would allocate up to $3 million in Regional Toll Revenue 
funds from cost savings from the BNSF Railway Mainline relocation project. Details 
were provided in Reference Item 2.2.  

 
Bryan Beck (M); John Polster (S). The motion passed unanimously.  

 
3. Second and Final Installment of the Metropolitan Planning Organization Revolver 

Fund and partnership with City of Dallas and Dallas County:  Christie Gotti presented a 
partnership with the City of Dallas and Dallas County to complete the Metropolitan Planning 



 

Organization (MPO) Revolver Fund. In September 2015, the Regional Transportation 
Council (RTC) approved the first partnership proposal with the Texas Department of 
Transportation (TxDOT) and Dallas County. Following this partnership, approximately 
$4.577 million was needed to create the remaining balance of the $10 million MPO Revolver 
Fund. Since that time, staff has worked with the City of Dallas and Dallas County to identify 
additional projects that are on-system (eligible for Category 12 funds) and that have existing 
local funds. Two additional projects have been identified. The first project, IH 635 at 
Skillman/Audelia, is a partnership with the City of Dallas and Dallas County for  
$4.377 million and is a portion of existing City of Dallas/Dallas County funds. The local funds 
will be reallocated to the revolver fund in exchange for a corresponding amount of  
Category 12 funds. In addition, $60.23 million in previously approved Proposition 1 funds 
are proposed to fund the balance of the project in FY2019. As Proposition 7 or other funds 
become available, staff may request to change the funding source in order to advance the 
project to FY2018, if possible. The second project, SH 183/Midtown Express, is located in 
the cities of Irving and Dallas. For this project, $200,000 in Dallas County funds will be 
reallocated to the Revolver Fund in exchange for a corresponding amount of Category 12 
funds. It was noted that the balance of the SH 183/Midtown Express project has already 
been funded. Ms. Gotti noted that background information regarding the MPO Revolver 
Fund was provided in Electronic Item 3.2. A motion was made to recommend Regional 
Transportation Council approval of the funding allocations/transfers identified in Reference 
Item 3.1 as a result of the MPO Revolver Fund creation adding $4.577 million to the MPO 
Revolver Fund for a total of $10 million. Additionally, action approves staff to administratively 
amend the changes to the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)/Statewide TIP and 
other necessary administrative/planning documents. John Polster (M); Bryan Beck (S). The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 

4. Contingency Emergency Supplemental Transit Operations for Texoma Area 
Paratransit System Service:  Jessie Huddleston provided an update on recent issues 
related to Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) and outlined interim service strategies 
that may be needed to provide continuous transit operations in Collin and Wise counties. 
She noted that TAPS serves two counties in the region and provides public transit and non-
emergency medical transportation in Wise County and the portions of Collin County outside 
the Dallas Area Rapid Transit service area. Since August, the agency has been working to 
address financial problems including significant mounting debt. TAPS also began planning 
service reductions in October and cities began looking for transit alternatives at that time. In 
November, the agency missed a series of payrolls resulting in unplanned service reductions 
and is currently only providing limited medical trips. In addition, cities have begun to cancel 
contracts with the agency. At the beginning of December, three of the four Collin County 
TAPS Board members resigned. Ms. Huddleston discussed Regional Transportation Council 
(RTC) action at its October meeting to assist the agency:  1) secure financial consulting 
services for TAPS to prepare billings and rebuild records to access grant funds and  
2) provide a financial backstop for a local loan for $250,000. She noted that consultants are 
currently on site at the Texoma Area Paratransit System and that at this time, no agency 
has been willing to provide a loan to TAPS. Entities who receive service from TAPS are 
looking for interim service while they develop long-term transit solutions. In urban areas, the 
most likely providers of service are metropolitan transportation authorities such as Dallas 
Area Rapid Transit and the Denton County Transportation Authority. These agencies have 
experience running efficient, fixed-route and large volume demand-response services. In 
rural areas of Collin and Wise counties, the most likely providers are traditional rural 
operators such as STAR Transit and SPAN, Inc. The agencies specialize in feeder services 
and demand-response trips that cover long distances. In either geography, there are also 
groups of citizens that need specialized services, such as trips for seniors to centers for 

2



 

meals. In the interim, these citizens may be best served using taxi vouchers, so a mix of 
providers may be needed. Reference Item 4 outlines a contingency plan for the next  
90-120 days to provide continuous transit operations. In the southern Collin County area 
(metro) RTC is responsible for this geography. The estimate to keep essential services 
running for this time frame is up to $500,000. This money would come from Regional Toll 
Revenue (RTR) funds allocated to transit sustainability. In the McKinney urban area, the 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and TAPS are both responsible in this geography. The 
estimate of needed funds is up to $100,000, also from RTR funds allocated to transit 
sustainability or federal funds (if funds that have already been allocated can be accessed). 
In this action, staff is asking to assist McKinney in reestablishing its direct recipient status. 
McKinney would gain responsibility for what happens in its urban area and work with FTA to 
access federal funds if available. If federal funds cannot be accessed, the money would be 
used to fund operations as in the southern Collin County area. In the rural portions of Collin 
and Wise counties served by TAPS, the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) is 
responsible for this geography. If the counties leave TAPS or the agency no longer exists 
before the counties leave, funding of up to $75,000 could be loaned to the interim provider 
and would be repaid by TxDOT once it could complete its necessary paperwork to fund 
services. Jim O'Connor asked about long-term options. Ms. Huddleston noted that the plan 
is for the affected geographies to develop a permanent solution. Part of the action being 
taken by NCTCOG staff is to assist agencies in determining a permanent solution. Anna 
Mosqueda asked if the City of McKinney would be responsible for operations if it were to 
become the direct recipient. Ms. Huddleston noted that it was possible and that the City has 
procured consultants to look into long-term options. Paul Luedtke asked where money at 
TAPS has been allocated. Ms. Huddleston noted that currently there are funds tied up in 
federal grants that cannot be accessed. The local funds were being used to fund services 
until the agreements were canceled. Staff is working with FTA to gain access to the federal 
funds. A motion was made to recommend Regional Transportation Council approval to 
provide up to $675,000 to support interim transit services in Collin and Wise counties as 
outlined in Reference Item 4. Chad Davis (M); Tracy Homfeld (S). The motion passed 
unanimously.  
 

5. Mobility 2040:  Chad McKeown provided an update on the development of Mobility 2040 
and highlighted recommendations that will be presented at public meetings in December. He 
noted that a more detailed version of the presentation will be e-mailed to members following 
the meeting. The structure of Mobility 2040 was highlighted and includes financial reality, 
social and environmental considerations, operational efficiency, and mobility options. 
Guiding principles include a comprehensive review of all roadway corridors in the region to 
determine the category of the improvement that may be needed, reevaluation of priced 
facility recommendations in the light of new funding and restrictions, review of needed 
arterial improvements, reevaluation of regional rail recommendations, update of the 
Regional Veloweb, strengthening the role of sustainable development, continued emphasis 
on traffic management operations, and consideration of the role of new technology. Mr. 
McKeown discussed prioritization of projects and expenditures for Mobility 2040 
recommendations. Draft Mobility 2040 expenditures total approximately $108.9 billion over 
the life of the Plan. Existing, funded, and planned recommendations were highlighted for the 
Regional Veloweb from the active transportation section of the bicycle/pedestrian network. 
The presentation e-mailed to members will also include a map for community paths and on-
street facilities that add additional networks to the bicycle/pedestrian portion of the Plan. 
Major transit corridor recommendations were also presented. Planned corridors were 
highlighted, including bus and rail corridors. He noted two corridors that previously had a 
planned rail line for which high-intensity bus service is recommended for Mobility 2040:   
IH 35W from downtown Fort Worth north on IH 35W towards Alliance Airport and Chisholm 

3



 

Trail Parkway from downtown Fort Worth south to Cleburne. He also noted a corridor in 
Collin County where DART’s Red Line terminates in Plano and extends north on or near  
US 75. On this corridor, the recommendation is to introduce the line to build ridership before 
a rail line is built in the corridor. A new corridor recommendation is IH 30 using the managed 
lanes that are under construction from Arlington to downtown Dallas. Mr. McKeown 
presented major roadway recommendations for freeways/tollways. He noted that the 
information builds on information presented previously to the Committee regarding efforts to 
pivot away from tolled/priced facilities. Categories include new or expanded capacity 
corridors without toll components, new or expanded capacity corridors with either toll road or 
managed lane components, or corridors with capital maintenance components. New or 
expanded capacity corridors without toll components that differ from the current Plan include 
the Southern Gateway on IH 35E and US 67, as well as US 820/US 287 in Tarrant County. 
In addition, he highlighted the recommended Outer Loop through the northern counties from 
IH 35 in Denton County moving through Collin County south to IH 30 in Rockwall County. 
This is a staged corridor for which portions are not included in the current Plan. Mr. 
McKeown noted that a major element which has not been included in previous Plans is a 
capital maintenance program to make strategic improvements to corridors within the existing 
right-of-way versus total reconstruction. Recommendations include IH 20 throughout much 
of the region (Parker, Tarrant, and Dallas counties), an ongoing project on IH 35E in Ellis 
County, and US 75 from IH 635 to the Sam Rayburn Tollway. For US 75, the plan is to 
remove the high-occupancy vehicle (HOV) lane and restore the shoulder for use during the 
peak periods and for incident management. Mr. McKeown discussed improvements on the 
roadway system apart from the freeway/tollway system. The arterial recommendations 
address some of the concerns expressed about needed improvements on regionally 
significant arterials such as US 380 in Denton and Collin counties, SH 34 in Ellis County, 
and FM 1187 in Tarrant County. Members previously discussed concern about the lack of 
an arterial network in fast-growing parts of the region, particularly in Collin County. He noted 
that staff is currently working with the county to develop a plan to ensure that the arterial 
network is planned for the additional population expected in Collin County by 2040. Staff is 
also analyzing the needs for additional north-south and east-west corridors. In addition, staff 
is reviewing needs in Tarrant County west of IH 35W. He noted that recommendations will 
not be completed in time for Mobility 2040 but that the work is ongoing. Following adoption 
of Mobility 2040, the 2016 air quality transportation conformity analysis work will begin. 
Parameters for conformity were highlighted, including analysis years, latest planning 
assumptions, and motor vehicle emissions budgets. He also noted that the 2027 analysis 
year will serve as the 10-year plan required by HB 20. Mr. McKeown noted that this 
information will be presented to RTC at its December 10, 2015, meeting and to the public in 
December 2015 and January 2016. Approval of Mobility 2040 is anticipated to be requested 
from the RTC in March 2016 and he noted that staff was requesting RTC approval to 
present recommendations at December public meetings. Staff requested that members 
provide comments regarding the recommendations as soon as possible so that the changes 
can be incorporated into recommendations. Electronic Item 5.1 and Electronic Item 5.2 
included background information regarding Mobility 2040 recommendations. Mr. McKeown 
noted that a more detailed version of the presentation will be provided to members following 
the meeting. In addition, Reference Item 5.3 was provided to members at the meeting and 
contains the draft recommendations for the major freeway/tollway network. John Polster 
discussed Corridor ID 13, IH 35W. He noted that the North Central Texas Council of 
Governments' (NCTCOG's) map shows the corridor as a non-tolled facility and asked about 
managed lanes. Mr. Polster said he does not believe a determination has been made about 
building IH 35W with or without managed lanes and asked if a decision was made and not 
communicated. Mr. Morris noted that the Dallas District, John Polster, and NCTCOG staff 
should discuss. Mr. Polster also discussed Corridor ID 16, IH 35E. The corridor still has the 

4



 

managed lane component but the notes indicate constructing concurrent managed lanes. In 
other columns, the term HOV/managed lanes is used. He asked that the HOV portion be 
removed. Mr. McKeown noted that HOV/managed lane is the typical nomenclature used in 
the tables. Mr. Morris noted that he prefers the use of tolled managed lanes to be clear it is 
tolled, but suggested adding a footnote that states managed lanes include using auto 
occupancy. Mr. Polster noted that for Project 27, it lists that a new six-lane frontage road is 
proposed. Denton County is about to adopt its new thoroughfare plan and is looking at a 
rural freeway, not only frontage roads. Mr. Morris noted that it should be a staged freeway 
with frontage roads in Mobility 2040. Mr. Morris noted the corridor should be included as a 
freeway, and requested Mr. Polster’s assistance in determining how to phase the cross 
section over time. A motion was made to approve that the Surface Transportation Technical 
Committee review the Mobility 2040 findings, NCTCOG staff get consensus from the 
appropriate agencies, and that North Central Texas Council of Governments staff present 
the current recommendations at public meetings. Members will provide needed comments to 
NCTCOG. John Polster (M); Mark Nelson. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

6. Proposed Regional Transportation Council Policies for Mobility 2040:  Michael Morris 
presented draft Regional Transportation Council (RTC) policies and the creation of a credit 
bank, proposed to be included in the development of Mobility 2040. He noted that this effort 
provides an incentive to local governments to implement the proposed policies. The RTC 
would place $100 million transportation development credits in a bank to substitute for local 
funds on federal projects. Local governments would submit the credits to offset local funds 
on federal projects. This policy would likely not be implemented for 18 months to give 
agencies time to determine which bundle of policies they would like to implement. Entities 
can adopt on a voluntary basis and decide which subset of policies it prefers. A 50 percent 
target is proposed. Mr. Morris reviewed the proposed policies. He noted that a detailed 
listing of the policies was provided in Reference Item 6. Type 1 policies would require joint 
staff coordination such as staffs meeting with major employers to promote the Employer Trip 
Reduction Program. He also noted the addition of best practices to prevent copper theft. 
Type 2 policies would require governing body approval through minute orders or resolutions, 
such as adoption of the existing Clean Fleet policy. In this category, staff proposes that 
Policy 9 addressing urban sustainable development and Policy 10 addressing rural 
sustainable development be combined. Mayor Rob Franke from the City of Cedar Hill has 
discussed a third type of sustainable development that involves ecotourism and State parks. 
The new proposed policy addresses each of the three types of sustainable development, 
including urban, rural, and suburban. Details were provided at the meeting in Reference 
Item 6.1. Staff also proposed that urban thoroughfare revitalization include projects both on 
and off the State highway system. Type 3 policies would require ordinances such as the 
Locally Enforced Motor Vehicle Idling Limitations, and Type 4 policies would require election 
by participating in membership with a transportation authority. A motion was made to 
recommend Regional Transportation Council approval to present the draft RTC policies and 
creation of a credit bank proposed to be included in Mobility 2040 at public meetings. Bryan 
Beck (M); David Disheroon (S). John Polster and Chad Davis were opposed. The motion 
passed.  
 

7. High Occupancy Vehicle Occupancy Technical Equipment Procurement:  Ken 
Kirkpatrick provided an update on the procurement for automatic occupancy-detection 
technology. As a reminder, the Regional Transportation Council's (RTC) Tolled Managed 
Lane Policies provide for a discount for high-occupancy vehicles of 50 percent during the 
peak periods. The policy is currently enforced manually with technology support, but 
provides that over time more advanced technology verification will be used as it becomes 
available. In the spring, the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) with the support of 

5



 

RTC staff, issued a procurement and evaluated proposals. In November, TxDOT canceled 
its procurement of the automatic occupancy-detection technology. TxDOT has 
recommended that the procurement be reissued and that RTC staff take the lead on 
reissuing the procurement, with TxDOT support. Although the procurement was canceled, 
staff believes that technology is available, or will soon be available and recommends that 
the procurement be reissued. Staff believes that some refinements to the procurement 
elements and the process can maximize the competition to meet the intent of the RTC 
policy. TxDOT is in the process of sending a formal request to RTC staff to take the lead, 
with TxDOT support in reissuing the procurement. Updates will continue to be provided to 
the Committee. John Polster asked that staff ensure that more money is not spent on the 
technology than will be collected. Mr. Kirkpatrick noted that staff is aware of the cost issues 
and believes that the procurement can be refined to address cost implications. Jim 
O'Connor asked if the procurement was canceled due to lack of response and asked if this 
was a statewide initiative. Mr. Kirkpatrick noted that it is possible that competition could be 
increased if the procurement is refined. In addition, staff clarified that the policy could 
potentially be used nationwide.  
 

8. Air Quality Freight Initiatives:  Jeff Hathcock provided information regarding current air 
quality initiatives related to freight activities. Heavy-duty diesel vehicles contribute 
approximately 41 percent of all on-road nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions in the Dallas- 
Fort Worth nonattainment area. Due to the lowered standard of 70 parts per billion (ppb), it 
will be important that the region work to offset the emissions in the freight industry. Through 
these initiatives, air quality will be improved through three of the seven air quality emphasis 
areas:  high-emitting vehicles, idling, and energy/fuel consumption. Mr. Hathcock highlighted 
North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) freight industry outreach. The 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) provided grant funds for face-to-face outreach to 
the trucking industry, the promotion of SmartWay-verified technologies, and education on 
efficient operational practices. The original strategy was to carry out this effort through an 
outside contractor, and a physical storefront was opened in May 2013 and closed January 
2014. Staff evaluated the original strategy and decided the best approach would be for the 
program to be directly implemented by NCTCOG. Personal visits will be made to trucking 
firms and truck stops to meet face-to-face with drivers and fleet managers. The initiative has 
been rebranded as the Saving Money and Reducing Truck Emissions (SMARTE) Program. 
In June 2015, outreach was resumed. Staff has contacted over 400 drivers, fleet managers, 
and vendors combined and have received approximately $68,000 in in-kind contributions. 
NCTCOG outreach resources were highlighted, as well as the topics discussed during the 
outreach including the Clean Fleet Policy, the DFW Clean Cities Coalition, the SmartWay 
Transport Partnership, and anti-idling efforts. Mr. Hathcock reviewed various initiatives that 
impact freight, including the EPA SmartWay Transportation Program, idling limitations/idle 
reduction infrastructure, the Heavy-Duty Diesel Inspection and Maintenance Pilot Program, 
and Dallas-Fort Worth regional truck lane restrictions. In addition, an update on commercial 
vehicle weight enforcement was provided. Details on each of these initiatives were provided 
in Electronic Item 8. Jim O'Connor discussed truck lane restrictions on SH 114 and IH 635. 
He asked when restrictions were expected to begin. Mr. Hathcock noted that restrictions are 
expected to begin within the next 2-3 months, once the signs have been placed in the 
corridors. IH 30 may take longer due to construction that is underway. Mr. O'Connor noted 
construction on the Midtown Express portion of SH 114 and that it may be difficult to 
implement the restrictions during the construction. 
 

9. High-Speed Rail Update:  Kevin Feldt provided an update regarding high-speed rail 
initiatives for the Dallas-Fort Worth region. The Mobility 2035 – 2014 Amendment currently 
includes the Regional Transportation Council (RTC) adopted three-station concept that 

6



 

includes stations in Fort Worth, Arlington, and Dallas. The Mobility Plan also incorporates 
regional connectivity, grade-separated rail, and at-grade rail. North Central Texas Council of 
Governments staff are currently providing assistance for three projects:  the Texas 
Oklahoma Passenger Rail Study (TOPRS), the Houston to Dallas corridor being studied by 
Texas Central Partners, and the DFW Core Express Service. Mr. Feldt reviewed the 
proposed alignments and details for each project, as well as the expected dates for records 
of decisions for each project. It is proposed that Mobility 2040 include the RTC adopted 
policy for stations in downtown Fort Worth, Arlington, and downtown Dallas. In addition, the 
proposal will include high-speed rail system integration to ensure a one-seat ride, encourage 
private partnerships, and a review of all potions for the environmental process. A draft map 
illustrating the alignment for Mobility 2040 high-speed rail recommendations was highlighted 
displaying at-grade and grade-separated rail, and the preferred station location concept. 
Next steps include the adoption of Mobility 2040, continued efforts with Arlington regarding 
regional transit connections, the December 10 RTC Multimodal/Intermodal/High-Speed 
Rail/Freight Subcommittee, and continued coordination with the Texas Department of 
Transportation, Texas Central Partners, local governments, and the Commission for High-
Speed Rail in the Dallas/Fort Worth Region. Michael Hassler discussed high-speed rail 
corridor options, noting that recommendations no longer include options for a corridor going 
into the Dallas-Fort Worth International Airport. Michael Morris noted discussions that rail 
should go to the downtown areas. It was determined that those who travel to the airport, 
simply travel directly to the airport. In working with the airlines in the region and in others 
working in Houston, the airlines seem to be okay with high-speed rail as long as it is equal to 
both airports. The proposed high-speed rail system has changed into focusing on the 
downtowns. John Polster asked if a technically, locally preferred alternative has been 
reached on the DFW Core Express Service project. Mr. Feldt noted at this time, there is not 
enough analysis for a recommendation. One of the considerations being analyzed is 
ridership, and a consultant is currently working to develop the model for the analysis. Mr. 
Polster asked if staff was aware of local government preferences. Mr. Morris noted that staff 
has received no information about the impact of the options in the corridor. Anna Mosqueda 
asked if the DFW Core Express Service project would eventually replace the Trinity Railway 
Express. Mr. Feldt noted that it would be a complimentary service.  
 

10. Fast Facts:  Rachel Linnewiel highlighted current air quality funding opportunities for 
vehicles. She specifically noted information regarding the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality Emissions Reduction Incentive Grants Program and the 
AirCheckTexas Program. Details were provided in Electronic Item 10.1.  

 
Whitney Vandiver highlighted the Air North Texas 2014-2015 Partner Awards recipients. 
Hood County received the Outstanding Advertising award, City of Grand Prairie received the 
Outstanding Outreach award and the Outstanding Initiative award, University of North Texas 
Health Science Center received the Outstanding Partner Involvement award, City of Fort 
Worth received the Outstanding Media Engagement award, and City of Plano received the 
Air North Texas Partner of the Year award. Details were provided in Electronic Item 10.2.  
 
Amy Hodges provided a Clean Fleet Policy adoption update. To date, 52 local entities and 
12 private companies have adopted the revised policy. Details were provided in Electronic 
Item 10.3. 
 
Natalie Bettger presented information regarding the draft Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS) 
ordinance provided in Electronic Item 10.4 and the UAS fact sheet provided in Electronic 
Item 10.5. In addition, she noted the FY2017 Traffic Safety Request for Proposals. Details 
were provided at the meeting in Reference Item 10.14.  

7



 

Kendall Wendling noted that the North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) 
recently received funding from the Department of Defense Office of Economic Adjustment to 
conduct an update to the Joint Land Use Study for the Naval Air Station, Fort Worth Joint 
Reserve Base in western Tarrant County. The purpose is to promote compatible community 
growth around military installations. Due to the strategic importance of the military in the 
region, this study will have an expanded scope to include all major military installations in 
the North Central Texas region.  
 
Kendall Wendling also discussed the Strategic Highway Research Program 2. Funds were 
recently received from the Federal Highway Administration as part of a program to 
showcase use of its PlanWorks tool. PlanWorks is a decision support tool that assists 
transportation agencies with integrating economic, environmental, and community values 
into transportation projects and plans. NCTCOG will be using PlanWorks to develop and test 
scenarios for future mobility plans and to assist with developing performance measures.  
 
Rebekah Hernandez provided a Federal Legislative update. She noted that the President 
was expected to sign a long-term transportation bill that was approved by Congress on 
December 3. The new bill, Fixing America's Surface Transportation (FAST) Act, authorizes 
surface transportation programs for federal fiscal years 2016-2020 with $305 billion total 
funding. Staff will prepare a summary of the bill and provide additional information to the 
Committee. Rebekah Hernandez also highlighted the Proposition 7 fact sheet provided in 
Electronic Item 10.10. The fact sheet includes a summary of the recent statewide funding 
enhancements on transportation. She noted that due to recent changes to future allocations 
of Proposition 1, staff will be updating the fact sheet.  
 
Daniel Snyder noted that in January 2016 members will be provided correspondence 
requesting nominations for the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee.  
 
Jeremy Williams noted the Designing for Pedestrian Safety Workshops being held in the 
region December 15-16 (Dallas) and December 17-18 (Fort Worth). Details were provided in 
Electronic Item 10.6. He also noted the Modern Roundabouts Workshop on February 2, 
2016. Details were provided in Electronic Item 10.7.  
 
Jahnae Stout noted that a summary of the October public meeting minutes was provided in 
Electronic Item 10.8. She also noted that a public meeting notice for upcoming December 
public meetings was provided in Electronic Item 10.9. In addition, she highlighted the 
January 2016 public meeting schedule.  
 
Mr. O'Connor noted that the 2016 meeting scheduled for the Regional Transportation 
Council and Surface Transportation Technical Committee are provided in Reference  
Item 10.11.  
 
The current Local Motion was provided in Electronic Item 10.12 and transportation partner 
progress reports were provided in Electronic Item 10.13.  
 

11. Other Business (Old and New):  There was no discussion on this item.  
 

12. Next Meeting:  The next meeting of the Surface Transportation Technical Committee is 
scheduled for 1:30 pm on January 22, 2016, at the North Central Texas Council of 
Governments. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:40 pm.   

8



A monthly update on activities of the Regional Transportation Council and the North Central Texas Council of Governments Tran sportation Department  

NCTCOG at 50 
NCTCOG is beginning a yearlong 

celebration of 50 years of  
regional planning with a look at 

public safety: its Regional Police 
academy and Criminal Justice 

Program. Founded in 1968, the 
Regional Police Academy was 
born out of a need for member 
local governments to train law 

enforcement personnel. Having a 
regional academy was deemed 

more efficient and promoted  
consistent instruction across the  

region. For more about the  
Regional Police Academy and 
Criminal Justice Program, visit 

NCTCOG.org/50.   

 

Meetings 

February 4, 11 am 
DRMC-TRTC Joint Meeting  

Noah’s Event Venue 
6101 Campus Circle Drive East  

Irving, TX 75063  

February 11, 1 pm 
Regional Transportation Council 

NCTCOG 
Transportation Council Room 

616 Six Flags Drive 
Arlington, TX 76011 

February 26, 1:30 pm 
Surface Transportation  

Technical Committee 
NCTCOG 

Transportation Council Room 
616 Six Flags Drive 
Arlington, TX 76011 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Congestion-relief plan could bring DFW millions  
A new program intended to improve traffic flow through North Texas and other 

major metropolitan areas could expedite several major projects. Governor Greg 

Abbott wants to create a congestion-relief fund and distribute $1.3 billion to  

Dallas-Fort Worth, Houston, San Antonio and Austin. Locally, that translates to an 

additional $527.8 million for three projects in the western and two in the eastern 

parts of the region. 

Southern Gateway, a $655 million rebuild of part of Interstate Highway 35E and 

US Highway 67, is expected to receive $264 million in congestion relief from the 

state, according to information presented to the Regional Transportation Council in 

January. In addition, the RTC has pledged $243 million toward the project. 

Another project, Lowest Stemmons (IH 35E from IH 30 to north of Oak Lawn), 

would get $100 million. In the west, the State Highway 121/SH 360 interchange 

could receive $60 million, the full cost of the project. Improvements to SH 199 

would receive $56.5 million, while Loop 820 (from SH 121 to Randol Mill Road 

would be assisted with $20.5 million in congestion relief, if the Texas 

Transportation Commission approves the RTC recommendations. Much of the 

funding for this project ($90 million) would come from savings being made to IH 

35W and Texas Department of Transportation bridge funds. The Texas 

Transportation Commission is expected to consider projects when it meets in 

February. TTC Commissioner Bruce Bugg Jr. discussed the governor’s plan 

during a special meeting of the RTC on January 20. Bugg also held several 

listening sessions across the state in advance of the commission’s consideration of 

the program. Bugg said the governor’s congestion-relief efforts will continue to 

help the state improve quality of life and the economy. “This is not a one and done 

deal,” Bugg said. “This is a long-term, well-thought-through project.” 

 

For more information about Local Motion topics, contact Brian Wilson at 817-704-2511 or 

bwilson@nctcog.org. Visit www.nctcog.org/trans for more information on the department.  

February 2016 | nctcog.org/localmotion 

ELECTRONIC ITEM 13.3

http://www.nctcog.org/50


Ozone season begins March 1 
The Ozone season begins in North Texas on 

March 1 and will last through October. The 

height of ozone season typically begins in May 

when temperatures begin rising, but now is a 

good time for North Texans to begin considering 

how their actions could improve the air during 

ozone season. 

With the Environmental Protection Agency 

recently lowering the 8-hour ozone standard from 

75 parts per billion to 70 ppb, the region will 

need to continue to work together to improve air quality. The design value for the 10-county North Texas region is 

currently at 83 ppb. The EPA anticipates announcing designations for the new 8-hour ozone standard in December 

2017.  

NCTCOG maintains many policies and programs intended to help residents and businesses participate in clean air 

efforts. One is Air North Texas, which provides individuals, local governments and businesses lists of strategies they 

can implement when air quality is forecast to be poor.  

Air North Texas implements an annual, regional clean air event, Clean Air Action Day, on the first Friday of summer. 

Clean Air Action Day 2016 will fall on June 24 and participants are asked to implement a clean air action that will help 

reduce ozone in the region. The 2015 event saw the highest participation to date and included a Clean Air Action Day 

Challenge for Surface Transportation Technical Committee members.  

Individuals, businesses and local governments can participate by pledging to implement at least one clean air action not 

normally part of their schedules, such as carpooling, using mass transit, bicycling or walking. Find ideas, learn more 

about the event and submit Clean Air Action Day commitments at www.airnorthtexas.org. 

Signing up for air pollution alerts will help residents and employers stay informed of when additional clean air actions 

are recommended. 

local motion | 2  

               February 2016 

10-County Nonattainment Area  

 

http://www.airnorthtexas.org


Input sought on Mobility 2040, conformity 
NCTCOG staff will seek public input on draft Mobility 2040 

recommendations and 2016 Transportation Conformity at public 

meetings scheduled for 6:30 pm February 9 in Richardson, 2:30 pm 

February 10 in Arlington and 6:30 pm February 15 in Euless. 

This will be the third consecutive month NCTCOG has sought 

comments on the region’s next long-range transportation plan. NCTCOG 

is required to maintain a long-range plan for the region’s multimodal 

transportation system covering a time horizon of at least 20 years. Staff 

members are developing Mobility 2040, the next long-range plan, and 

will highlight draft recommendations for major roadways, transit 

projects and bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure as well as a list of  

near-term Transportation Improvement Program projects affected by the 

plan. Mobility 2040 is expected to be adopted by the RTC in March. 

In addition to long-range planning, NCTCOG also coordinates 

Transportation Conformity, a federal regulation requiring nonattainment 

areas to conduct air quality analysis on projects, programs and policies 

identified in transportation plans, federally funded projects or projects 

requiring federal approval. Ten Dallas-Fort Worth area counties are 

designated nonattainment for the pollutant ozone. Staff will present 

information regarding draft results for the 2016 Transportation 

Conformity.  

AirCheckTexas Drive a Clean Machine Program, Dallas-Fort Worth 

Clean Cities annual report and recognition and the annual list of 

obligated projects will also be highlighted.  

Following the public meeting in Arlington, a video recording will be 

online at www.nctcog.org/input. 

 
local motion | 3 

                      February 2016 

Region develops UAS model 

ordinance to promote safety 

As part of its ongoing coordination 

of small unmanned aircraft systems 

in the Dallas-Fort Worth area, 

NCTCOG is helping to facilitate the 

development of a model ordinance. 

The city of Fort Worth has led the 

process. The goal is the safe  

operation of a class of aircraft rapidly 

growing in popularity. Law  

enforcement, first responders and 

others have expressed a desire for a 

coordinated effort to ensure the safe 

operation of UAS. 

In municipalities that adopt the  

ordinance, operators of small  

unmanned aircraft could be restricted 

from flying within 1.5 miles of an 

airport and military installation  

facilities. They must also comply 

with Federal Aviation Administration 

regulations that require permission 

from airports, military installations, 

and airport control towers to fly  

aircraft within five miles of their  

facilities. The FAA recently required 

the registration of unmanned aircraft 

characterized by weight  

specifications and released the free 

B4UFly smartphone app. Operators 

of small UAS can determine if they 

are within five miles of an airport, or 

if other restrictions exist in their area. 

On the Web: NCTCOG.org/uas 

http://www.nctcog.org/input


policymakers — 

 
Recent NCTCOG Presentations 
NCTCOG.org/trans/presentations 

Facebook 
Facebook.com/nctcogtrans 

Twitter 
Twitter.com/nctcogtrans 

YouTube 
YouTube.com/nctcogtrans 

Instagram 
Instagram.com/nctcogtrans 

Publications 
NCTCOG.org/trans/outreach/
publications.asp 

 
 
 

 
Dallas Area Rapid Transit 
DART.org 

Denton County  
Transportation Authority 
DCTA.net 

North Texas Tollway Authority 
NTTA.org 

The Fort Worth  
Transportation Authority 
The-T.com 

Texas Department  
of Transportation 
TxDOT.gov 

local motion | 4 

                      February 2016 

Entities continue adopting Clean Fleet Policy  

Entities throughout Dallas-Fort Worth continue to adopt the Clean 

Fleet Policy at a brisk pace. As of December 2015, 56 local fleets 

have approved the revised policy, an increase of 33 compared to 

April. Eligibility for clean fleet funding through the Regional 

Transportation Council requires adoption of the policy, and as the 

Dallas-Fort Worth area continues to face air quality challenges, the 

RTC requests all organizations with fleet operations in the 10-county 

DFW ozone nonattainment area adopt the new policy. The RTC 

resolution and new policy template can be viewed at NCTCOG.org/

fleetpolicy. Supporting items are also available online, including a 

Clean Fleet Policy guidance document, which outlines practical 

examples for implementing policy elements.  

Environmental mapping site launched 
The NCTCOG Transportation and Environment & Development 

departments recently launched an interactive mapping website that 

serves as a one-stop shop for partners seeking environmental data. 

The Regional Ecosystem Framework Interactive Viewer is a publicly 

accessible site intended for use by transportation, environmental and 

local government stakeholders to identify potential environmental 

impacts when planning transportation projects.  

The interactive map contains over 40 spatial layers with detailed 

information in the Dallas-Fort Worth region and was developed with 

grant funds from the Federal Highway Administration. The 

interactive mapping site and additional project information can be 

viewed at NCTCOG.org/ref.  

Prepared in cooperation with the Texas Department of Transportation and the US Department  

of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit Administration. The  

contents of this report reflect the views of the authors who are responsible for the opinions,  

findings and conclusions presented herein. The contents do not necessarily reflect the views or  

policies of the Federal Highway Administration, the Federal Transit Administration or the Texas  

Department of Transportation.  

$527.8 million 
The amount expected to come to 

Dallas-Fort Worth to advance  

projects as part of Governor Greg  

Abbott’s congestion-relief plan. 

http://www.nctcog.org/fleetpolicy
http://www.nctcog.org/fleetpolicy
http://www.nctcog.org/ref

	web.agenda.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_1.1.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_1.2.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_2.1.1.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_2.1.2.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_3.1.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_3.2.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_3.3.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_3.4.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_3.5.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_3.6.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_3.7.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_3.8.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_3.9.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_4.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_5.1.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_5.2.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_6.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_7.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_8.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_9.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_10.1.web.rtc021106
	Ref.Itm_10.2.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_11.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_12.1.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_12.2.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_13.1.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_13.2.rtc021116
	Ref.Itm_13.3.rtc021116

	5kaW5nT3Bwb3J0dW5pdGllcy5hc3AA: 
	q: Search NCTCOG
	btnG: 

	cub3JnL3RyYW5zL210cC8yMDQwLwA=: 
	q: Search NCTCOG
	btnG: 

	cub3JnL3RyYW5zL3RpcC8xNy0yMC8A: 
	q: Search NCTCOG
	btnG: 



